Regular Agenda of the Board of Mayor and Aldermen
Monday, July 28, 2025 - 5:30 p.m.
Tullahoma Municipal Building

Reqular Meeting Agenda Page

Call to Order by Mayor Lynn Sebourn

Invocation — Rev. Christine Jones

Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag — Rev. Christine Jones
Roll Call

Commendations and Certificates

e Recognition for the Tullahoma 12U Cal Ripken District and State 1
Champion All-Star Baseball Team

Comments from Citizens

All citizens interested will be invited to speak for up to 3 minutes about any
matter within the purview of the Board. Please speak into the microphone and
begin by stating your name and address.

Approval of the Agenda

Department Reports 15
Reports from the Aldermen
Report from the Mayor
e Announcement of a vacancy on the Tullahoma Utilities Authority Board
for term expiring on August 31, 2025. Interested citizens may submit
Citizen Participation Resume Forms through Friday, August 15, 2025.

Report from the City Administrator

Note: All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and will be
enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items, unless a Board
member or citizen so requests, in which case the item will be removed from the Consent
Agenda and considered separately. During the portion of the meeting reserved for
comments from citizens, as shown on the agenda, citizens may request that the Board
remove an item from the Consent Agenda so that discussion may be held on the item.

Consent Agenda

1. Agenda Item No. 25-76- Approve Minutes of the July 14, 2025, 31
Regular Meeting and Public Hearings.

Unfinished Business

2. ORDINANCE NO. 1653 - AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING 36
MAP OF THE CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE, AS SET FORTH IN
THE TULLAHOMA MUNICIPAL CODE, TO RE-ZONE A PARCEL
LOCATED AT 217-219 BIG SPRINGS AVE (COFFEE COUNTY 124],
GROUP A, PARCEL 010.01) FROM RESTRICTED INDUSTRIAL AND
WAREHOUSING (I-1) TO GENERAL COMMERCIAL (C-2) ZONING
DISTRICT, for passage second and final reading.

Page 1 of 3



Monday, July 28, 2025

3. ORDINANCE NO. 1654 - AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING
MAP OF THE CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE, AS SET FORTH IN
THE TULLAHOMA MUNICIPAL CODE, TO RE-ZONE A PARCEL
LOCATED AT 400-414 BIG SPRINGS AVE (COFFEE COUNTY 124],
GROUP H, PARCEL 005.00) FROM RESTRICTED INDUSTRIAL AND
WAREHOUSING (I-1) TO GENERAL COMMERCIAL (C-2) ZONING
DISTRICT, for passage on the second and final reading.

4. ORDINANCE NO. 1655 - AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING
MAP OF THE CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE, AS SET FORTH IN
THE TULLAHOMA MUNICIPAL CODE, TO RE-ZONE A PARCEL
LOCATED AT 501 S JACKSON ST AND 105 W VOLNEY ST (COFFEE
COUNTY 127C, GROUP C, PARCEL 021.00) FROM GENERAL
COMMERCIAL (C-2) TO CENTRAL COMMERCIAL (C-1) ZONING
DISTRICT, for passage on the second and final reading.

5. ORDINANE NO. 1656 - AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING
MAP OF THE CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE, AS SET FORTH IN
THE TULLAHOMA MUNICIPAL CODE, TO RE-ZONE A PARCEL
LOCATED AT 113-115 DAVID ALLAN DR (COFFEE COUNTY 106,
PARCEL 009.00) FROM AGRICULTURAL (AG) TO LOW DENSITY
RESIDENTIAL (R-1) ZONING DISTRICT, for passage on the second
and final reading.

6. Other Unfinished Business
New Business

7. ORDINANCE NO. 1657 - AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CITY OF
TULLAHOMA'’S OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH PROGRAM
PLAN AND RELATED RULES AND REGULATIONS, for passage on the
first of two readings.

8. ORDINANCE NO. 1658 — AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF
TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 1632
ADOPTING THE ANNUAL BUDGET AND TAX RATE FOR THE FISCAL
YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2024, AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2025, for
passage on the first of three readings.

9. Item No. 25-77 - A request from the Fire Department to approve an
ownership transfer of the Hazardous Materials Truck 706 and Hazardous
Materials Trailer to Coffee County Emergency Management Agency.

10.Item No. 25-78 - A request from the Fire Department to approve the
quote of $70,448.00, from Barrett Construction to replace the current
roof at Fire Hall 2.

Page

64

96

107

123

184

185



Monday, July 28, 2025

11.Item No. 25-79 - A request from the Public Works Department to
approve purchase of the Stormwater Data Management Software from
IWORQ for $16,500.00 and authorize Mayor to execute same.

12.Item No. 25-80 - A request from the Public Works Department to
approve the bid of $85,000.00 from Benchmark Mulch Company,
Christiana, TN, to perform the brush grinding and debris removal service
for the City of Tullahoma.

13.Item No. 25-81 - A request from the Police Department to surplus
fifty-eight (58) awarded firearms to GTs Distributors receiving an in-
store credit of $7,415.00 to be used to purchase optics and/or
ammunition for the department’s issued firearms.

14. Other New Business
Adjourn

Beer Board

Call to Order by Mayor Lynn Sebourn
Public Comments

Unfinished Business
1. Other Unfinished Business

New Business

2. Item No. 25-BB18 - Approve minutes of the July 14, 2025, Regular
Meeting.

3. Item No. 25-BB19 - A request to approve Beer Application (Special
Event Permit/Non-Profit) and waive fees for Beechcraft Heritage Museum
Beech Party - International Fly-In Event to be held on October 8-11,
2025. Ms. Jody Curtis will oversee beer sales for the event.

4, Item No. 25-BB20 - A request to approve Beer Application (Off-
Premises Permit) (subject to passing final fire inspection) for Mapco
Express, Inc. Store #3671, 101 Cedar Lane. Smit Patel will be the
manager in charge of beer sales.

Adjourn

245

259

N/a

268

269

275

Anyone requesting accommodations due to disabilities should contact Human Resources, A.D.A.

Coordinator, at 931-455-2648, before the meeting.































10



11



12



13



14



NEW BUSINESS OPENINGS FOR THE MONTH OF: June 2025

GENERATIONS EARLY LEARNING
CENTER

106 S. POLK ST.

TULLAHOMA, TN 37388

DWM INC.
2 NORTHWAY LN.
LATHAM, NY 12110

THRONEBERRY CONSTRUCTION CO.,
LLC

1531 SHAGBERK TRAIL
MURFREESBORO, TN 37128

LEGACY PARTNERS GROUP LLC
2210 N. JACKSON ST.
TULLAHOMA, TN 37388

RACHEL THE SLP
700 CRESTWOOD DR.
TULLAHOMA, TN 37388

HANDMADE
404 W LINCOLN ST.
TULLAHOMA, TN 37388

TULLAHOMA TN CAREGIVING LLC DBA
CORNERSTONE CAREGIVING

1940 N JACKSON ST., STE 140
TULLAHOMA, TN 37388

MARKRAFT CABINETS LLC
2705 CASTLE CREEK LN.
WILMINGTON, NC 28401

PHOS CARDS, LLC
501 SHARONDALE DR.
TULLAHOMA, TN 37388

Number of Businesses: (18)

15

CRAFTED CHARM BOUTIQUE
2338 N. JACKSON ST.
NORMANDY, TN 37360

JS3 ATHLETICS
208 WALL ST.
TULLAHOMA, TN 37388

LION HEART LIFE COACHING CENTER
809 1ST AVE.
TULLAHOMA, TN 37388

TULLAHOMA LODGING LLC DBA
LIVSMART-TULLAHOMA

251 WILLIAM NORTHERN BLVD.
TULLAHOMA, TN 37388

THE VINTAGE PEONY CAKERY
303 INGLEWOOD DR.
TULLAHOMA, TN 37388

LUBE2U
409 W MOORE ST.
TULLAHOMA, TN 37388

MITCHELL OUTDOOR LIVING LLC
1309 MELROSE ST
TULLAHOMA, TN 37388

FLIGHT OF FANTASY FUSION DESIGNS
509 GLENDALE PL.
TULLAHOMA, TN 37388

CRISTI BOULDIN DBA DARKHORSE
BOOKKEEPING

511 ALBERMARLE DR.
TULLAHOMA, TN 37388



NEW BUSINESS OPENINGS

MONTH FY2020 FY2021 FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025
JUL 7 4 8 12 10 14
AUG 12 21 16 11 13 14
SEP 7 13 8 8 8 26
oCT 7 5 9 6 12 18
NOV 12 8 11 12 16
DEC 2 2 4 8 5 15
JAN 11 19 14 9 15 10
FEB 3 11 4 10 12 10
MAR 14 11 8 15 15 15
APR 10 4 13 15 4 17
MAY 6 19 13 19 19 12
JUN 8 5 7 8 11 18
Totals 91 126 112 132 136 185

Business Openings by Fiscal
Year (July 24-June 25)

FY2025

FY2024

FY2023

FY2022

FY2021

FY2020

50 100

150

200

Monthly Comparison by
Year: June

FY2020

FY2021 FY2022

Number of Businesses: (18)

FY2023

FY2024

FY2025

16

YTD Comparison through
Current Month

FY2020 FY2021 FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025




TULLAHOMA
FIRE/RESCUE
OPERATION SHEET

DATE: June 2025

2025 2024 2025 2024
STRUCTURES FIRES 2 2 MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT 10 12
MEDICAL 1st RESPONDER 153 150 PUBLIC ASSIST. 12 12
TRASH OR RUBBISH 3 5 INVESTIGATE 1 1
FIRE ALARM 22 15 MUTUAL AID 0 2
LEAKS OR SPILLS 1 2 OTHER 1 0
TOTAL RESPONSE CALLS 205 201
DOLLAR AMOUNT SAVED 0 19359258.00 DOLLAR AMOUNT LOSS 0 55800.00

INSPECTORS ACTIVITY SHEET

2025 2024 2025 2024
FIRE RESPONSE 0 04 COMM. ASSIST 0 26
FIRE INVESTIGATIONS 1 03 STORM WATER INSPECTION 0 04
NEW FACILITY INSPECTION 3 33 EXISTING FACILITIES 0 38
TRAINING HOURS 0 08

PUBLIC EDUCATION

2025 2024 2025 2024
TOTAL PROGRAMS 4 7 CONTACT WITH ADULTS 280 410
CONTACT WITH CHILDREN 270 340

TRAINING IN-HOUSE & OUTSIDE THE DEPT.

Daily Training 30(ffs) 960 Hours

PUBLIC RELATIONS

6/01-30 Smoke Alarm Program Adults 18 Kids 2

Firefighter Egress/Bailout 1(ff) 8hrs

6/04/2025 Development Meeting

Extrication Refresher 30(ffs) 240hrs

6/11/2025 Development Meeting

Air Evac CEUS 12(ffs) 24hrs

6/18/2025 Deveiopment Meeting

Commission Testing 2(ffs) 8hrs

6/25/2025 Development Meeting

2025
1240 |

2024

TOTAL HOURS 1050

17

2025 2024
BURNING PERMITS 149 | 173




18



19



20



City of Tullahoma Grant Status Report June 2025

City Department | Grant Program [ Fund-ing Source | Project [ Award | Match| End Date | Status
Applied for / Not Awarded Yet
Fire Assistance to Firefighters Grant AFG Brush Truck / Turnout Gear / Circul-Air Washer $286,020 $31,780 n/a Applied
Finance THDA 2025 HOME Residential Home Repairs and Rehab $750,000 $0 n/a Applied
Awarded / Not Started Yet
Administration [Tennessee Whiskey Mural [South Central TN Tourism |Whiskey Mural | $15,000] $7,500] n/a Awarded
Oongoing / In Progress
Airport TN Aeronautics Div. TDOT Obstruction Mitigation Phase 1 $56,600 $2,830 n/a Ongoing
Airport TN Aeronautics Div. TDOT Land Acquisition $101,600 $5,080 n/a Ongoing
Airport Replacement Grant TDOT Electrical vault and rotating beacon replacement $237,500 $12,500( 9/1/2026 Ongoing
Airport TN Aeronautics Div. TDOT Airport Layout Plan Update $300,000 $0 n/a Ongoing
Finance Urban Development Action Grant UDAG Commercial Revolving Loan Fund $850,000 $0 n/a Ongoing
Finance Rural Development USDA Small Business Revolving Loan Fund $199,000 $10,000 n/a Ongoing
Finance American Rescue Plan Act Federal Multiple $5,802,232 $0| 12/31/2026 Ongoing
Police VCIF Grant TN Criminal Justice Police Equipment- Radio's LPR's, Body Cams $214,000 $0| 1/1/2026 Ongoing
Police SRO Grant Program TN Dept Homeland Sec School Resource Officers $525,000 $0 n/a Ongoing
Police TN Highway Safety Grant TN Dept Homeland Sec Officer Supplies and Overtime $34,400 $0| 9/30/2025 Ongoing
Police TLETA Cost Sharing Grant TDCI Training reimbursement $40,000 $0 annual Ongoing
Police Training & Recruitment Program TDCI Recruitment Incentives $40,000 $0 annual Ongoing
Police Patrick Leahy BPV Grant US DOJ Bullet proof vests $5,100 $2,550 annual Ongoing
Public Works Surface Transportation Block Grant TDOT State RT 2/Jackson St/Cedar Ln Sidewalks $927,000 $92,980 n/a Ongoing
Public Works Surface Transportation Block Grant TDOT Ledford Mill Road Widening $682,910 $170,727 n/a Ongoing
Public Works Stormwater Noncollaborative Grant TDEC Stormwater Projects $2,370,558 $592,640 n/a Ongoing
Executed / Completed
Administration 2021 CDBG-IT TN Dept. ECD Waggoner Street Repairs $225,000 $90,000 n/a Executed
Administration TAEP Grant TN Dept. Ag Farmers Market Tullahoma 2024 $1,500.00 $0 n/a Executed
Administration 2022 CDBG Childcare Grant SCTDD Little Angels Daycare $250,000 $0 n/a Executed
Admin / Parks Eddie Program SCTDD Renovations to Baltz Historical Building $5,000 $0 n/a Executed
Airport TN Aeronautics Div. TDOT FY23 Airport Maintenance $15,000 $0 n/a Executed
Airport TN Aeronautics Div. TDOT Operations Data Tracker $6,000 $0| 9/11/2024 Executed
Finance THDA 2022 HOME Residential Home Repairs and Rehab $750,000 $0| 12/31/2024 Executed
HR / Parks Property Conservation Public Entity Partners New Signage at Ball Fields $528 $0 n/a Executed
Human Resources [Safety Partners Public Entity Partners Turnout Gear $3,000 $3,000( 4/1/2024 Executed
Human Resources |Property Conservation Grant Public Entity Partners Security Cameras for Community Centers $4,000 $0 n/a Executed
Parks & Recreation [TN Agricultural Enhancement Progam |TAEP Tree Plantings $5,000 $5,000 n/a Executed
Planning Community Planning Grant TDOT Study of the Cedar Lane/ Westside Drive Corridor $60,000 $5,831 n/a Executed
TAEDC Placemakers Pivot and Recover TN Dep.ECD Local Business Training $75,000 $0 n/a Executed
Discharged / Not Completed / Not Awarded / Declined to Apply

TAEDC ARC Grant Management ARC Downtown Facade Improvement $200,000 $25,000 n/a Discharged
Administration CDBG Child Care grant SCTDD Tullahoma Daycare $250,000 $0| 1/30/2024 Declined
Parks & Recreation [BCBS Healthy Places Grant BCBS of TN Healthy Places playground at Waggoner Park $750,000 $0| Q2 - FY26 Not Awarded
Planning TAP TDOT Eastern Gateway / N Jackson Streetscape $1,133,414 $226,683| 11/28/2023 Declined

21




CITY OF TULLAHOMA

June 2025

Human Resources Department

Recruitment

FULL-TIME

PART-TIME

Filled Positions

Open Positions

Filled Positions

Open Positions

School Resource Officer
Police Officer (2)

Police Officer (3)
Program Coordinator
Community Center Coordinator

Recreation Leader I
Lifeguard

School Crossing Guard
Parks Custodian

FY25-YTD FY24 FY23 FY22
FT Employee Turnover 20.47% 23.78% 23.78% | 16.15%
# Full-time Hired 25 33 33 21
# Part-time Hired 70 44 44 63
# FT Promotions 28 17 17 19

Workers’ Compensation

Employees who are injured on the job and require medical attention are reported to OSHA on a
calendar year basis. Employees report injuries that do not require a doctor’s appointment in the event
they have a future need for medical attention.

CY24 -YTD cY23 cy22 CcY21
Medical Attention Required 11 25 16 23
No Medical Attention 1 14 20 13

June Employee of the Month

“I am pleased to nominate Danny Carlo for Employee of the Month. Over the past several months,
Danny has consistently gone above and beyond to ensure that our department runs smoothly and
efficiently. His dedication and technical expertise have had a direct, positive impact on our team’s
productivity and morale.

Key contributions include:

¢ Rapid Response & Problem-Solving: Whenever we encounter a software glitch or network
hiccup, Danny is on the scene. He has helped us with our Cameras, Pool Controllers,
Printers, other hardware when we were at a stopping point. His willingness to research if he
cannot figure out the issue at that moment in time and determination to see the job done is
second to none. His ability to diagnose and resolve issues quickly minimizes downtime and
keeps our department at DW Wilson running smoothly during our busy season.

e Team Player Attitude: No question is too small and no request too large, Danny tackles
every task with a positive attitude and genuine concern for our success. He’s not just the go-
to for IT emergencies; he’s a trusted partner in helping us achieve our goals.

I wholeheartedly recommend Danny for Employee of the Month and encourage you to recognize his
outstanding efforts. Submitted by: Jessica Moore, Administrative Coordinator

22




“I am writing to nominate our IT Support Specialist, Danny Carlo, for Employee of the Month.
His exceptional technical expertise and persistence have significantly improved the efficiency of
our workplace, and everyone at the police department greatly appreciates his contributions.

Danny has consistently demonstrated outstanding technical skills. He is very knowledgeable and
has resolved a wide range of technical issues, helping us be more efficient and productive.

What has made the most significant impact is Danny’s positive attitude and patience. He always
always takes the time to listen to concerns, empathize with our challenges and address issues in a
way that fosters a supportive environment. He never makes anyone feel belittle, no matter how
simple or complex the problem may be.

A notable example of his professionalism occurred when our Police Clerk, Donna Auguletto,
struggled with a new computer court program. The vendor’s IT specialist was unhelpful and
condescending, making Ms. Donna feel frustrated and unsupported. Danny stepped in, listened to
her concerns, and took the time to repeat back the technical details to ensure he fully understood
the issue. He acknowledged her frustration, apologized for the poor experience with the vendor,
and reassured her that he was there to ensure she had the tools and support she needed to succeed.
He then worked diligently to resolve the problem.

Danny’s positive disposition, combined with his technical expertise, creates a supportive and

productive work environment. His contributions have had a lasting positive impact on our

department, and his commitment to his work makes him an invaluable asset to the City of

Tullahoma.

For these reasons, I wholeheartedly recommend Danny Carlo for Employee of the Month.”
Submitted by: Bro@RBe Arthur, Training Lieutenant




3500

3000

2500

2000

1500

1000

500

100
90
80
70
60
50
40
30
20
10

2718
2480 I

Active Members

Meeting Rooms

Department Report

June Facility Usage

3045

2800

Monthy Facility

503 600

Daily Fee Passes

Usage -# of Visits  ($3 activity fees)

N 2025 m2024

745
384

Resident
Basketball Passes
(+ Skills)

June Facility Rentals

17 19

Pavilions

9
l
Athletic Fields
H 2025 m2024

24

9 13
mB

Pool Parties



JUNE 2025 PROGRAMMING & EVENTS

JUNE 6™

JUNE 7TH

JUNE 16™

JUNE 19™

JUNE 30™

Ribbon Cutting for Restrooms and Concession
Pavilion at Johnson Lane Soccer field.

Dedication to the Joe Moon field
National Guard Community Assistance
Program.

Juneteenth Celebration

Splash Island Visits in June

35 participants
60 Participants
30 Members of 230"

Engineering Battalion

100 Participants

10,422 Visits

25



Facilities Maintenance Report June 2025

Request Summary Report
Current Month|Month Last Year| Current Yr-To-Date | Last Yr-To-Date

June 2025 June 2024 1/1/2025 - 6/30/2025|1/1/2024 - 6/30/2024
Adminisiration
count | 1] 2| 37| 100
Airport
count | 0 0 1] 0
Finance Depariment
count | 1] 0 7| 13
Fire Department
count | 0| 0 3 1
Parks & Rec
count | 23] 47] 295 609
Planning & Codes
count | 0 3 12] 17
Puolice Depariment
Count | 1] 2| 18] 21
Public Works
Count 5 3 27| 44
Tolal Count 36 57 398 805

26



PERMIT ACTIVITY REPORT
TULLAHOMA SAFETY AND CODES COMPLIANCE

JUNE 2025
RESNEW | RESNEW SFD | RESNEW | RESNEW MFD |RES OTHER coMM COMM | COMM OTHER
RES OTHER VAL COMM NEW VAL TOTAL QTY TOTAL VAL
DATE | separy VAL MFD QTY VAL Qry NEW QTY OTHER QTY VAL s
MAY 4 $1,354,697.25 0 $0.00 10 $150,287.95 0 $0.00 7 $30,560.00 21 $1,535,545.20
JUN 13 $3,431,719.89 18] $2,056,743.00 18 $353,944.19 2 $3,069,360.00 28 $548,988.00 63 $9,460,755.08
[ yoo T 51 [ $15294,714.99] 18.00 [ $2,056,743.00] 102 | $2,589,724.26] 3 $3,869,360.00] 88 [ $1,995562.20] 246 |  $25,806,104.45]
TOTAL PERMITS ISSUED
80
70
63
59
60
48
50 46
44
41 4 41 43
40 36 38 37 34 W 2024 PERMITS QTY
2 2 30 30 2025 PERMITS QTY
21
20 18
0
JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JuL AUG SEP ocT NOV DEC

Residential and Commercial NEW includes ONLY new construction.

Residential and Commercial OTHER includes remodels, additions, accessory buildings, demolitions, signage, fireworks tents, zoning, stormwater, and bonds.

27



PROPERTY MAINTENANCE ACTIVITY REPORT
TULLAHOMA SAFETY AND CODES COMPLIANCE

JUNE 2025
VIOLATION 2024 2025
Code Enforcement Officers 1 1
Staff Assistants 1 1
Staff Located Complaints 2 3
Complaints Received 14 15
Complaints Closed 16 16
Complaints Unresolved 59 57
City Attorney Cases 0 0
Citation / AHO 0 0
Citation / City Court 2 1
Total Site Inspections 72 89
Average Inspector Response Time (Days) 3 2
Average Case Resolution Time (Days) 45 45
Complaints Resolved by Owner 13 15
Unfounded Complaints 0 2
Accumulation of Rubbish 3 7
Unsafe Structures 2 0
Failure to Maintain Exterior 1 0
Inoperable Vehicle 3 3
Zoning Ord. Accessory Structure Location 0 0
TMC - Travel Trailer Locaton 0 1
Weeds/Tall Grass 7 9
Vacant Structure 0 0
lllegal Signs 1 0

28




TULLAHOMA POLICE DEPARTMENT
MONTHLY STATISTICS FOR JUNE 2025

TOTAL POLICE CALLS ANSWERED THIS MONTH
TOTAL POLICE CALLS ANSWERED SAME TIME LAST YEAR

TOTAL TRAFFIC ACCIDENTS THIS MONTH
TOTAL TRAFFIC ACCIDENTS SAME TIME LAST YEAR

TOTAL PROPERTY DAMAGE ACCIDENTS THIS MONTH
TOTAL PROPERTY DAMAGE ACCIDENTS SAME TIME LAST YEAR

TOTAL TRAFFIC ACCIDENTS WITH INJURY THIS MONTH
TOTAL TRAFFIC ACCIDENTS WITH INJURY SAME TIME LAST YEAR

TOTAL FATAL TRAFFIC ACCIDENTS THIS MONTH
TOTAL FATAL TRAFFIC ACCIDENTS SAME TIME LAST YEAR

TOTAL CITATIONS ISSUED THIS MONTH
TOTAL CITATIONS ISSUED SAME TIME LAST YEAR

TOTAL ARRESTS MADE FOR THIS MONTH
TOTAL ARRESTS MADE SAME TIME LAST YEAR

29

1751
1876

56
54

47
46

o O

216
338

142
152



TULLAHOMA POLICE DEPARTMENT
JUNE 2025 TRAINING

OFFICER POSITION TRAINING COURSE COMPLETED
YOUNG, WILLIE SRO TN SRO CONFERENCE
HAYES, LARRY SRO TN SRO CONFERENCE
WALLS, TYLER SRO TN SRO CONFERENCE
SPURGEON, WILLIAM SRO TN SRO CONFERENCE
DALTON, STEVEN SRO TN SRO CONFERENCE
KRAUSE, JOHN SRO TN SRO CONFERENCE
YOUNG, WILLIE SRO CIT SHELBYVILLE
KAISER, TAYLOR PTL CIT SHELBYVILLE
REAGAN, RILEY PTL CIT SHELBYVILLE
KENNEDY, JASON DC ALICE
ALL OFFICERS TPD FIREARMS IN-SERVICE

TULLAHOMA ANIMAL CARE & CONTROL
MONTHLY STATISTICS FOR JUNE 2025

ANIMALS IN SHELTER AT BEGINING OF MONTH 59
ANIMALS THAT ENTERED SHELTER THIS MONTH 28
ANIMALS THAT LEFT SHELTER THIS MONTH 18
ANIMALS IN FOSTER AT END OF MONTH 26

ANIMALS IN SHELTER AT END OF MONTH 69

30




BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN (BMA)
MINUTES FOR
July 14, 2025

The Board of Mayor and Aldermen of the City of Tullahoma, Coffee and Franklin
Counties, Tennessee assembled at the Municipal Building, in Tullahoma, for a meeting on
Monday, July 14, 2025, at 5:30 p.m. with Mayor Lynn Sebourn presiding and the following
named members of the Board of Mayor and Aldermen: Kurt Glick, Mayor Pro Tem Jerry
Mathis, Sernobia McGee, Busch Thoma, and Bobbie Sue Wilson. Matthew Bird was not
present.

Mr. Jason Quick, City Administrator; Mr. Steve Worsham, City Attorney; Mrs. Paige
Jackson, Assistant Finance Director; and Mrs. Lori Ashley City Recorder, were present at the
meeting.

Mayor Sebourn called the meeting to order.

The Invocation was said by Rev. Christine Jones, and she led the Pledge of Allegiance.

COMMENTS FROM CITIZENS: N/A

THE AGENDA WAS PRESENTED FOR APPROVAL

A motion was made by Alderman Mathis and seconded by Alderman Wilson to approve
the agenda.

On roll call all members present voted aye to approve the agenda.

REPORTS FROM THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF MAYOR AND
ALDERMEN

ALDERMAN THOMA explained his vote and comments on the first reading of the proposed
FY26 budget. It was a procedural vote, he did not feel he had reviewed the budget in its entirety
therefore didn’t feel he could vote yes. He missed the last BOMA meeting while he was attending
a Tullahoma Utility Authority conference. The State of TN requires yearly continuing education
to sit on the Utility Authority. He spoke about the economy and the uncertainty in the future.

ALDERMAN WILSON — No report

ALDERMAN McGEE thanked the Tullahoma Parks & Recreation Department for their work on
the 4" of July Celebration. She sent her condolences to the Eggleston family and the TUA work
family.

MAYOR PRO TEM MATHIS - No report

ALDERMAN GLICK congratulated the City on hosting the 4™ of July Celebration once again,
he stated that it is a great event.

l|Page

31



ALDERMAN THOMA had the opportunity to attend the TMPPA Conference, which is
Tennessee Public Power Association. He spoke about the process of the creating and passing the
budget, visions that the Board of Mayor & Aldermen have for the City of Tullahoma.

MAYOR SEBOURN commended the staff for the Fireworks Show, it was an excellent event.

CITY ADMINISTRATOR QUICK spoke about how the outstanding Fireworks Show and
thanked all the sponsors. The City of Tullahoma issued 186 business licenses in the past fiscal
year. New construction permits in the month of June totaled $5.4 million. Applications are still
being accepted for the TAEDC Executive Director position. He requested the board to schedule a
study session to review plans for the Municipal Building. The fall paving schedule will begin in
September. The construction at Kings Ln and Country Club is going well.

CONSENT AGENDA:

Item No. 25-73 — Approve Minutes of the June 23, 2025, Regular Meeting.

A motion was made by Alderman McGee and seconded by Alderman Glick to approve the
consent agenda.

On roll call all members present voted aye and it was so ordered.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: N/A

ORDINANCE NO. 1652 - AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF TULLAHOMA,
TENNESSEE TO AMEND FUTURE COMPENSATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE
BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN, for passage on the second and final reading.

A motion was made by Alderman Bird and seconded by Alderman McGee to approve
Ordinance No. 1652.

A discussion ensued.
On roll call all members present voted as follows to approve Ordinance No. 1652;

Aye(s): Bird, Sebourn
Nay(s): Glick, Mathis, McGee, Thoma, Wilson

The vote being two (2) aye(s) and five (5) nay(s), Ordinance No. 1652 failed.

NEW BUSINESS:

ORDINANCE NO. 1653 - AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING MAP OF THE
CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE, AS SET FORTH IN THE TULLAHOMA
MUNICIPAL CODE, TO RE-ZONE A PARCEL LOCATED AT 217-219 BIG SPRINGS
AVE (COFFEE COUNTY 124J, GROUP A, PARCEL 010.01) FROM RESTRICTED

2|Page

32



INDUSTRIAL AND WAREHOUSING (I-1) TO GENERAL COMMERCIAL (C-2)
ZONING DISTRICT, for passage on the first of two readings.

A motion was made by Alderman Glick and seconded by Alderman Mathis approve
Ordinance No. 1653.

On roll call all members present voted aye and it was so ordered.

ORDINANCE NO. 1654 - AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING MAP OF THE
CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE, AS SET FORTH IN THE TULLAHOMA
MUNICIPAL CODE, TO RE-ZONE A PARCEL LOCATED AT 400-414 BIG SPRINGS
AVE (COFFEE COUNTY 124J, GROUP H, PARCEL 005.00) FROM RESTRICTED
INDUSTRIAL AND WAREHOUSING (I-1) TO GENERAL COMMERCIAL (C-2)
ZONING DISTRICT, for passage on the first of two readings.

A motion was made by Alderman Glick and seconded by Alderman Mathis approve
Ordinance No. 1654.

On roll call all members present voted aye and it was so ordered.

ORDINANCE NO. 1655 - AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING MAP OF THE
CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE, AS SET FORTH IN THE TULLAHOMA
MUNICIPAL CODE, TO RE-ZONE A PARCEL LOCATED AT 501 S JACKSON ST AND
105 W VOLNEY ST (COFFEE COUNTY 127C, GROUP C, PARCEL 021.00) FROM
GENERAL COMMERCIAL (C-2) TO CENTRAL COMMERCIAL (C-1) ZONING
DISTRICT, for passage on the first of two readings.

A motion was made by Alderman McGee and seconded by Alderman Thoma approve
Ordinance No. 1655.

On roll call all members present voted aye and it was so ordered.

ORDINANE NO. 1656 - AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING MAP OF THE
CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE, AS SET FORTH IN THE TULLAHOMA
MUNICIPAL CODE, TO RE-ZONE A PARCEL LOCATED AT 113-115 DAVID ALLAN
DR (COFFEE COUNTY 106, PARCEL 009.00) FROM AGRICULTURAL (AG) TO LOW
DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (R-1) ZONING DISTRICT, for passage on the first of two
readings.

A motion was made by Alderman Mathis and seconded by Alderman McGee approve
Ordinance No. 1656.

On roll call all members present voted aye and it was so ordered.

Item No. 25-74 - A request from the IT Department and City Administrator to approve the
funding of $50,745.20 for additional Computer and Identity Security with annual renewal
and authorize Mayor to execute same.

A motion was made by Alderman McGee and seconded by Alderman Mathis approve Item
No. 25-74.

3|Page

33



On roll call all members present voted aye and it was so ordered.
Item No. 25-75 - A request from the Police Department to approve the purchase of the (4)
four 2025 Ford Interceptor SUVs and upfitting all (4) four vehicles with emergency
equipment through Lonnie Cob Ford for $233,872.00.

A motion was made by Alderman Wilson and seconded by Alderman Thoma to approve
Item No. 25-75.

On roll call all members present voted aye and it was so ordered.

There being no further business to come before the Board of Mayor and Alderman at this
time, the Board Meeting adjourned at 6:06 p.m.

CITY RECORDER MAYOR

4|Page

34



PUBLIC HEARING
MINUTES
July 14, 2025

The Board of Mayor and Aldermen of the City of Tullahoma, Coffee and Franklin
Counties, Tennessee met in a Public Hearing at the Municipal Building, in Tullahoma, on
Monday, July 14, 2025, with Mayor Lynn Sebourn presiding and the following named members
of the Board: Kurt Glick, Mayor Pro Tem Jerry Mathis, Busch Thoma, Sernobia McGee, and
Bobbie Wilson. Mathew Bird was not present.

Mr. Jason Quick, City Administrator, Mr. Steve Worsham, City Attorney; Mrs. Paige
Jackson, Assistant Finance Director, and Mrs. Lori Ashley, City Recorder, were also present at
the meeting.

Mayor Lynn Sebourn opened the Public Hearing and read the notice for the following:
A Public Hearing on Ordinance No. 1653, to re-zone a parcel located at 217-219 Big
Springs Ave., from Restricted Industrial and Warehousing (I-1) to General Commercial
(C-2).
Since there were no comments by the public; Mayor Lynn Sebourn closed this hearing.
A Public Hearing on Ordinance No. 1654, to re-zone a parcel located at 400-414 Big
Springs Ave., from Restricted Industrial and Warehousing (I-1) to General Commercial
(C-2).

Since there were no comments by the public; Mayor Lynn Sebourn closed this hearing.

A Public Hearing on Ordinance No. 1655, to re-zone a parcel located at 501 S. Jackson St.,
and 105 W. Volney St., from General Commercial (C-2) to Central Commercial (C-1).

Since there were no comments by the public; Mayor Lynn Sebourn closed this hearing.

A Public Hearing on Ordinance No. 1656, to re-zone a parcel located at 113-115 David
Allan Dr., from Agricultural (AG) to Low Density Residential (R-1).

Since there were no comments by the public; Mayor Lynn Sebourn closed this hearing.

COMMENTS FROM CITIZENS: N/A

All public hearing(s) for this evening were adjourned at 5:32 p.m.

CITY RECORDER MAYOR

35



CITY OF TULLAHOMA

Planning & Development Department Phone 931-455-2282
PO Box 807, 321 N. Collins Street Fax: 931-454-1765
Tullahoma, TN 37388

DATE: July 28, 2025
TO: Board and Mayor Alderman
FROM: Samuel Luthi, Interim Director of Planning & Development

SUBJECT: Ordinance 1653 - An amendment to the Zoning Map of Tullahoma

BACKGROUND:

The Planning Commission voted to send a favorable recommendation to the Board of Mayor and Alderman for the
property located at 217-219 Big Springs Ave to be rezoned from Restricted Industrial and Warehousing (I-1) to
General Commercial (C-2). Coffee County Tax Map and Parcel Numbers: Map 124J, Group A, Parcel 010.01. This
rezone was requested by the property owner.

ATTACHMENTS:

Ordinance 1653

Staff Report

Application for Rezoning
Location Map

Zoning Map

Future Land Use Map

36



ORDINANCE NO. 1653
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF TULLAHOMA,
TENNESSEE, AS SET FORTH IN THE TULLAHOMA MUNICIPAL CODE, TO RE-
ZONE A PARCEL LOCATED AT 217-219 BIG SPRINGS AVE (COFFEE COUNTY 124J,
GROUP A, PARCEL 010.01) FROM RESTRICTED INDUSTRIAL AND
WAREHOUSING (I-1) TO GENERAL COMMERCIAL (C-2) ZONING DISTRICT.

WHEREAS, a public hearing before this body was held on July 14%, 2025, commencing
at 5:30 p.m. and notice thereof published in the Tullahoma News on the 29" day of June 2025 at
which hearing members of the public were allowed to be present and to speak on the issues, and

WHEREAS, there being no substantial opposition to the re-zoning of the subject property
as is hereinafter set out and the same being in the best interest of the safety, welfare, and ordinary
growth of the City of Tullahoma and its residents;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF MAYOR AND
ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. The Zoning Map of the City of Tullahoma, Tennessee known to be hereby
amended by the rezoning at 217-219 Big Springs Ave (Coffee County 124J, Group A, Parcel
010.01) to General Commercial zoning districts, said property more particularly identified on the
attached map.

SECTION 2. That all Ordinances in conflict herewith and all provisions in the Code of
Ordinances of the City of Tullahoma, in conflict herewith are hereby repealed in their entirety, to
the extent of any conflicts.

SECTION 3. That if any section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, item, or clause of this
Ordinance shall for any reason be declared unconstitutional or invalid, such declaration shall not

affect any other portion of this Ordinance, it being the intent that the sections, subsections,

paragraphs, sentences, items, or clauses of this Ordinance shall be treated as severable.

37



SECTION 4. That this Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and effect from and
after its passage and from and after its caption being published one time in a newspaper of general

circulation in Coffee County, Tennessee, the public welfare requiring it.

CITY OF TULLAHOMA

BY:
Charles Lynn Sebourn, Mayor

ATTEST:

Ms. Lori Ashley, City Recorder

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:

Mr. Stephen M. Worsham, City Attorney

PASSED ON FIRST READING; _ July 14, 2025

PASSED ON SECOND READING:

38



Staff Report

Project Title: 217-219 Big Springs Ave Rezone Request

Staff: Samuel Luthi, Interim Director of Planning and Development

Applicant: Dan J. Marcum

Request: For the Board of Mayor and Alderman to approve a rezoning application to rezone the
property from Restricted Industrial and Warehousing (I-1) to General Commercial (C-
2)

Zoning: I-1 (Restricted Industrial and Warehousing)

Property Size: 1.38 acres
Location: 217/219 Big Springs Ave

Tax Map and Parcel Numbers: Coffee County: Map 124J, Group A, Parcel 010.01

Background Summary:
This application for rezone appeared before the Planning Commission at the June 16™ meeting, where

it received a positive recommendation and was passed forward to the Board of Mayor and Alderman
for final approval after the second reading.

Planning Considerations: The following general considerations, planning concepts, and other facts
should be considered in the review of this application:

1. The proposed zoning is compliant with the future land use plan. The area in question is depicted
as commercial, not industrial.

2. There is currently multiple tenants at the large commercial structure. Rezoning the property
would allow compliance, as well as enable compliance for future tenants.

Staff Recommendation:

Staff has reviewed the request to rezone the property and has found no reason for its denial.
The Planning Commission has provided a positive recommendation for this rezoning.

39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



217-219 Big Springs Ave Location Map

I |200ft

Parcels Coffee Addresses Tullahoma Airport Approach Zones

Coffee Parcels .

Tullahoma Parcels

Coffee County Boundary

49

Tullahoma UGB Tullahoma City Limit




217-219 Big Springs Ave Zoning Map

I |200ft

Parcels Coffee Addresses Tullahoma Airport Approach Zones

Coffee Parcels . I

Tullahoma Parcels

Tullahoma Zoning

R-1

R-2

R-3

Coffee County Boundary

50

Tullahoma UGB

Tullahoma City Limit




REVISED 2011 FUTURE LAND USE MAP (ADOPTED)

2] v0
A, & z /VE/(
Cx a? QQ' < o
Q Or) u =
s Rip, M la} o
N Q ©3 < JOE CAMPBELL @
NG WK % r T e
WiND %, @2 % Z
Z r g o (€] T S
<o, W > a S 5] U
% E & =) Voo 5 @
3 74 444;( @) o
T x T 2 e g 5
-
ORDRCK & 2 g Ry, LAKE CRest
pr BR ed 7
I Vo) e B > A POW
P < FE £ [ ELL
e \\l\\\]\e w o
*&o & € @ S
W Yo, ww T <
v S, BRIAR AUTUMN 2 o© c
%, Xy, S kS N ARTER
zZ w Q& 7
Y TRalLs S 2 3 TR > & e
= © Q s 4 3 ° & x
PONT % 3 52 5 < ok s}
z 9 o oG %, B O 3 2
r ) > o 23 o =< pa bl
a 2 S £ s w % 2 3 2 w o
.y 3 % 5 gy o, %S 2 % e
o 4 BELL < = < 5 O, a =2 %)
35 I&L 4 = g 3 1 a < %
2 9
o W Qy  SHERW T w ]
w ) OooD @ 12 ¥ 7]
S LEDFORD py; %, HiLLwooD 2 rooN S e E:
Y 9, 0AKwoOD £ TWELVE 0aks D
A ©X, NosLiTT y ] % i
wa 3 Asy PE
Rivg oF o 3 < o)
é S ] D>:- O %()9
X0
N4
% T LAKEWAY Y, § < b o o
S AVENUEEE © LAYNE D L B° ®
2 @ LARUE 2 % &
Q. \, ~ <&
<, 8 PN
W %) < »
ovg, 006 QYL Ji STUART - 6%)0 %\0 %%) &o»
OLD SHELBYVILLE 2, § 1@ S B % 70»;3 %74/ 02
&
T %, 04/ e?y\ N &% 6\& (6%, /O,f_ OO
S A0 s <<\ m
£ Qé Tpo SN % &R
(5\ o Q * (//$ QS) % O\’?X Ks
K3 R23 & K N
o = < c &% W O
w =2 0 o P ‘L74’ < v O
WiLSON 8 5 37 % Y %% Q%
= e B oM 22 G e « %, 2,
S cowan GLgy, 2 3% ©% > Y
BRAG DA 2 % T s
z G e % = < O < W,
o] @ ™3 & Q@Q/%Q‘ ¢ ATTENDORF ME
I o) > 2. O B A
K BN 0% g CE Y 2
® DG Y zZ %t & 0B % %
@ WELROSE % B 2y b &% 1sE % 2 KN
3 & - 9 {0\\\@ A\ ot & (N Ao@ >
INIRN{ 5= AS ooy 9, 0. 4
W~ i © K (A
v i & S OAKPARk N\ TRo $o
W o Oak p. Ors %
o 2 0 & ark Dr % <
> o EN SIMs %, P
Z >
% g g & « ¢ % &
© x S 3 i O Y
Z ¢ 2 S B 4 P o
Z /¢ g) O/O’ = +2 O e &
D 5 < 7 Hermjj 3 R\ \0(‘ o
72 S - Cho, - itage p, B X X >
z78 £ LYo E 9 (o) Q&
® £ & s T3 o) & o® o°
c, o 2 o w Q
R MR g Siemonr 2 % g o
Myy, E Iy 4] 2 =z )
Up 5 &' Glade Dr 5 o) S5 0,
5 T E %" % ¥y ® ?oo
© [te) %
E ~ Y \(“0 Q\S‘ s%
3 61 2 ? %
3 > % )
= T > & z g P
Sh, § 46 Se Iy
Legend . ey & 5
i urkey Creek Drive O3y %3 § %
|:| Commercial, Central COMM C 5 =1 P fé&
IC (e} 23
® Zz
- Commercial, General Neighborhood COMM GN 3&, 4,
[} Pl ‘v,
[ Industrial, IND 8 3 o "«,7
5 o 7.
|| Residential Low Density Single-Family, RLD 8 © %
|| Residential Medium Density Single-Family, RMD
" Hendrix Lane K
[ | Residential High Density Multi-Family, RHD " Lap, g 8
- Xx
/7 Institutional and Other Public, INST s §
&
> [} \;a“
I:l Recreation and OPen Space, RECOS J%‘ Z R
2 Todd Lane A Growden Lane
P al
"/ TULLAHOMA UGB 5 © ook
51 Roag



msamaniego
Textbox
(ADOPTED)


CITY OF TULLAHOMA

Planning & Development Department Phone 931-455-2282
PO Box 807, 321 N. Collins Street Fax: 931-454-1765
Tullahoma, TN 37388

DATE: July 28, 2025
TO: Board and Mayor Alderman
FROM: Samuel Luthi, Interim Director of Planning & Development

SUBJECT: Ordinance 1654 - An amendment to the Zoning Map of Tullahoma

BACKGROUND:

The Planning Commission voted to send a favorable recommendation to the Board of Mayor and Alderman for the
property located at 400-414 Big Springs Ave to be rezoned from Restricted Industrial and Warehousing (I-1) to
General Commercial (C-2). Coffee County Tax Map and Parcel Numbers: Map 124J, Group H, Parcel 005.00. This
rezone was requested by the property owner.

ATTACHMENTS:

Ordinance 1654

Staff Report

Application for Rezoning
Location Map

Zoning Map

Future Land Use Map

52



ORDINANCE NO. 1654
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF TULLAHOMA,
TENNESSEE, AS SET FORTH IN THE TULLAHOMA MUNICIPAL CODE, TO RE-
ZONE A PARCEL LOCATED AT 400-414 BIG SPRINGS AVE (COFFEE COUNTY 124J,
GROUP H, PARCEL 005.00)0 FROM RESTRICTED INDUSTRIAL AND
WAREHOUSING (I-1) TO GENERAL COMMERCIAL (C-2) ZONING DISTRICT.

WHEREAS, a public hearing before this body was held on July 14%, 2025, commencing
at 5:30 p.m. and notice thereof published in the Tullahoma News on the 29" day of June 2025 at
which hearing members of the public were allowed to be present and to speak on the issues, and

WHEREAS, there being no substantial opposition to the re-zoning of the subject property
as is hereinafter set out and the same being in the best interest of the safety, welfare, and ordinary
growth of the City of Tullahoma and its residents;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF MAYOR AND
ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. The Zoning Map of the City of Tullahoma, Tennessee known to be hereby
amended by the rezoning at 400-414 Big Springs Ave (Coffee County 124J, Group H, Parcel
005.00) to General Commercial zoning districts, said property more particularly identified on the
attached map.

SECTION 2. That all Ordinances in conflict herewith and all provisions in the Code of
Ordinances of the City of Tullahoma, in conflict herewith are hereby repealed in their entirety, to
the extent of any conflicts.

SECTION 3. That if any section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, item, or clause of this
Ordinance shall for any reason be declared unconstitutional or invalid, such declaration shall not

affect any other portion of this Ordinance, it being the intent that the sections, subsections,

paragraphs, sentences, items, or clauses of this Ordinance shall be treated as severable.

53



SECTION 4. That this Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and effect from and
after its passage and from and after its caption being published one time in a newspaper of general

circulation in Coffee County, Tennessee, the public welfare requiring it.

CITY OF TULLAHOMA

BY:
Charles Lynn Sebourn, Mayor

ATTEST:

Ms. Lori Ashley, City Recorder

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:

Mr. Stephen M. Worsham, City Attorney

PASSED ON FIRST READING: July 14, 2025

PASSED ON SECOND READING:

54



Staff Report
Project Title: 400-414 Rezoning Application

Staff: Samuel Luthi, Interim Director of Planning and Development

Applicant: Dan J. Marcum

Request: For the Board of Mayor and Alderman to approve a rezoning application to rezone

the property from Restricted Industrial and Warehousing (I-1) to General
Commercial (C-2)

Zoning: I-1 (Restricted Industrial and Warehousing)
Property Size: 4.64 acres
Location: 400-414 Big Springs Ave

Tax Map and Parcel Numbers: Coffee County: Map 124J, Group H, Parcel 005.00

Background Summary:
This application for rezone appeared before the Planning Commission at the June 16th meeting,

where it received a positive recommendation and was passed forward to the Board of Mayor and
Alderman for final approval after the second reading.

Planning Considerations: The following general considerations, planning concepts, and other facts
should be considered in the review of this application:

1. The proposed zoning is compliant with the future land use plan. The area in question is depicted
as commercial, not industrial.

2. There is currently multiple tenants at the large commercial structure. Rezoning the property
would allow compliance, as well as enable compliance for future tenants.

Staff Recommendation:

Staff has reviewed the request to rezone the property and has found no reason for its denial.
The Planning Commission has provided a positive recommendation for this rezoning.

55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



400-414 Big Springs Ave Location Map

I |200ft

Parcels Coffee Addresses Tullahoma Airport Approach Zones

Coffee Parcels .

Tullahoma Parcels

Coffee County Boundary

65

Tullahoma UGB Tullahoma City Limit




400-414 Big Springs Ave Zoning Map

I |200ft

Parcels Coffee Addresses Tullahoma Airport Approach Zones

Coffee Parcels

Tullahoma Parcels

Tullahoma Zoning

R-1

R-2

R-3

Coffee County Boundary

66

Tullahoma UGB

Tullahoma City Limit




REVISED 2011 FUTURE LAND USE MAP (ADOPTED)

2] v0
A, & z /VE/(
Cx a? QQ' < o
Q Or) u =
s Rip, M la} o
N Q ©3 < JOE CAMPBELL @
NG WK % r T e
WiND %, @2 % Z
Z r g o (€] T S
<o, W > a S 5] U
% E & =) Voo 5 @
3 74 444;( @) o
T x T 2 e g 5
-
ORDRCK & 2 g Ry, LAKE CRest
pr BR ed 7
I Vo) e B > A POW
P < FE £ [ ELL
e \\l\\\]\e w o
*&o & € @ S
W Yo, ww T <
v S, BRIAR AUTUMN 2 o© c
%, Xy, S kS N ARTER
zZ w Q& 7
Y TRalLs S 2 3 TR > & e
= © Q s 4 3 ° & x
PONT % 3 52 5 < ok s}
z 9 o oG %, B O 3 2
r ) > o 23 o =< pa bl
a 2 S £ s w % 2 3 2 w o
.y 3 % 5 gy o, %S 2 % e
o 4 BELL < = < 5 O, a =2 %)
35 I&L 4 = g 3 1 a < %
2 9
o W Qy  SHERW T w ]
w ) OooD @ 12 ¥ 7]
S LEDFORD py; %, HiLLwooD 2 rooN S e E:
Y 9, 0AKwoOD £ TWELVE 0aks D
A ©X, NosLiTT y ] % i
wa 3 Asy PE
Rivg oF o 3 < o)
é S ] D>:- O %()9
X0
N4
% T LAKEWAY Y, § < b o o
S AVENUEEE © LAYNE D L B° ®
2 @ LARUE 2 % &
Q. \, ~ <&
<, 8 PN
W %) < »
ovg, 006 QYL Ji STUART - 6%)0 %\0 %%) &o»
OLD SHELBYVILLE 2, § 1@ S B % 70»;3 %74/ 02
&
T %, 04/ e?y\ N &% 6\& (6%, /O,f_ OO
S A0 s <<\ m
£ Qé Tpo SN % &R
(5\ o Q * (//$ QS) % O\’?X Ks
K3 R23 & K N
o = < c &% W O
w =2 0 o P ‘L74’ < v O
WiLSON 8 5 37 % Y %% Q%
= e B oM 22 G e « %, 2,
S cowan GLgy, 2 3% ©% > Y
BRAG DA 2 % T s
z G e % = < O < W,
o] @ ™3 & Q@Q/%Q‘ ¢ ATTENDORF ME
I o) > 2. O B A
K BN 0% g CE Y 2
® DG Y zZ %t & 0B % %
@ WELROSE % B 2y b &% 1sE % 2 KN
3 & - 9 {0\\\@ A\ ot & (N Ao@ >
INIRN{ 5= AS ooy 9, 0. 4
W~ i © K (A
v i & S OAKPARk N\ TRo $o
W o Oak p. Ors %
o 2 0 & ark Dr % <
> o EN SIMs %, P
Z >
% g g & « ¢ % &
© x S 3 i O Y
Z ¢ 2 S B 4 P o
Z /¢ g) O/O’ = +2 O e &
D 5 < 7 Hermjj 3 R\ \0(‘ o
72 S - Cho, - itage p, B X X >
z78 £ LYo E 9 (o) Q&
® £ & s T3 o) & o® o°
c, o 2 o w Q
R MR g Siemonr 2 % g o
Myy, E Iy 4] 2 =z )
Up 5 &' Glade Dr 5 o) S5 0,
5 T E %" % ¥y ® ?oo
© [te) %
E ~ Y \(“0 Q\S‘ s%
3 61 2 ? %
3 > % )
= T > & z g P
Sh, § 46 Se Iy
Legend . ey & 5
i urkey Creek Drive O3y %3 § %
|:| Commercial, Central COMM C 5 =1 P fé&
IC (e} 23
® Zz
- Commercial, General Neighborhood COMM GN 3&, 4,
[} Pl ‘v,
[ Industrial, IND 8 3 o "«,7
5 o 7.
|| Residential Low Density Single-Family, RLD 8 © %
|| Residential Medium Density Single-Family, RMD
" Hendrix Lane K
[ | Residential High Density Multi-Family, RHD " Lap, g 8
- Xx
/7 Institutional and Other Public, INST s §
&
> [} \;a“
I:l Recreation and OPen Space, RECOS J%‘ Z R
2 Todd Lane A Growden Lane
P al
"/ TULLAHOMA UGB 5 © ook
67 Roag



msamaniego
Textbox
(ADOPTED)


CITY OF TULLAHOMA

Planning & Development Department Phone 931-455-2282
PO Box 807, 321 N. Collins Street Fax: 931-454-1765
Tullahoma, TN 37388

DATE: July 28, 2025
TO: Board and Mayor Alderman
FROM: Samuel Luthi, Interim Director of Planning & Development

SUBJECT: Ordinance 1655 - An amendment to the Zoning Map of Tullahoma

BACKGROUND:

The Planning Commission voted to send a favorable recommendation to the Board of Mayor and Alderman for the
properties located at 501 S Jackson St and 105 W Volney St to be rezoned from General Commercial (C-2) to Central
Commercial (C-1). Coffee County Tax Map and Parcel Numbers: Map 127C, Group C, Parcel 021.00. This rezone
was requested by the property owner.

ATTACHMENTS:

Ordinance 1655

Staff Report

Application for Rezoning
Location Map

Zoning Map

Future Land Use Map

68



ORDINANCE NO. 1655
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF TULLAHOMA,
TENNESSEE, AS SET FORTH IN THE TULLAHOMA MUNICIPAL CODE, TO RE-
ZONE A PARCEL LOCATED AT 501 S JACKSON ST AND 105 W VOLNEY ST
(COFFEE COUNTY 127C, GROUP C, PARCEL 021.000 FROM GENERAL
COMMERCIAL (C-2) TO CENTRAL COMMERCIAL (C-1) ZONING DISTRICT.

WHEREAS, a public hearing before this body was held on July 14%, 2025, commencing
at 5:30 p.m. and notice thereof published in the Tullahoma News on the 29" day of June 2025 at
which hearing members of the public were allowed to be present and to speak on the issues, and

WHEREAS, there being no substantial opposition to the re-zoning of the subject property
as is hereinafter set out and the same being in the best interest of the safety, welfare, and ordinary
growth of the City of Tullahoma and its residents;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF MAYOR AND
ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. The Zoning Map of the City of Tullahoma, Tennessee known to be hereby
amended by the rezoning at 105 S Jackson St and 501 W Volney St (Coffee County 127C, Group
C, Parcel 021.00) to Central Commercial zoning districts, said property more particularly
identified on the attached map.

SECTION 2. That all Ordinances in conflict herewith and all provisions in the Code of
Ordinances of the City of Tullahoma, in conflict herewith are hereby repealed in their entirety, to
the extent of any conflicts.

SECTION 3. That if any section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, item, or clause of this
Ordinance shall for any reason be declared unconstitutional or invalid, such declaration shall not

affect any other portion of this Ordinance, it being the intent that the sections, subsections,

paragraphs, sentences, items, or clauses of this Ordinance shall be treated as severable.

69



SECTION 4. That this Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and effect from and
after its passage and from and after its caption being published one time in a newspaper of general

circulation in Coffee County, Tennessee, the public welfare requiring it.

CITY OF TULLAHOMA

BY:
Charles Lynn Sebourn, Mayor

ATTEST:

Ms. Lori Ashley, City Recorder

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:

Mr. Stephen M. Worsham, City Attorney

PASSED ON FIRST READING: July 14, 2025

PASSED ON SECOND READING:

70



Staff Report

Project Title: Samuel Kehoe Rezone Application

Staff: Samuel Luthi, Interim Director of Planning and Development

Applicant: Susan Baker

Request: For the Board of Mayor and Alderman to approve a rezoning application to rezone
the property from General Commercial (C-2) to Central Commercial (C-1)

Zoning: C-2 (General Commercial)
Property Size: .39 acres
Location: 501 S Jackson St and 105 W Volney St.

Tax Map and Parcel Numbers: Coffee County: Map 127C, Group C, Parcel 021.00

Background Summary:
This application for rezone appeared before the Planning Commission at the June 16th meeting,

where it received a positive recommendation and was passed forward to the Board of Mayor and
Alderman for final approval after the second reading.

Planning Considerations: The following general considerations, planning concepts, and other facts
should be considered in the review of this application:

1. The rezone request is compliant with the Comprehensive Plan.

2. The tax map shows one parcel, but there is actually two parcels. Two rezoning applications
have been filled out.

Staff Recommendation:

Staff has reviewed the request to rezone the property and has found no reason for its denial.
The Planning Commission has provided a positive recommendation for this rezoning.

71



105 W. Volney Street

72



73



74



75

VACANT



76



77



PREPARED BY: OWNER and REAL PROPERTY TAX

Jeremy B. Bell RESPONSIBILITY:

Attorney at Law Samuel Cox Kehoe ,

Copeland & Bell, PLC 50 L3 Cathen B3un S
111 West Grundy Street Didsntlies tr I 27355

Tullahoma, TN 37388

Tax Information: Map 127C; Group C; Control Map 127C; Parcel 021.00
Map 127C; Group C; Control Map 127C; Parcel 012.00

WARRANTY DEED

FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION of the sum of ONE DOLLAR ($1.00), cash in hand paid,
and other good and valuable considerations, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, RANDY
J. MCARTHUR, JANIE Y. HOWARD, PATRICIA LOUISE BENNETT, DOROTHY SHERRILL,
SHIRLEY GRAHAM, and ALLAN MCARTHUR; heirs-at-law of LOLAND MCARTHUR,
(hereinafter referred to as “Grantor”), have bargained and sold, and by these presents do hereby
transfer and convey to SAMUEL COX KEHOE, (hereinafter referred to as “Grantee”), his heirs
and assigns, a certain tract or parcel of land in the Ninth (9") Civil District of Coffee County,

Tennessee, bounded and described as follows:
PARCEL I: MAP 127C; GROUP C; CONTROL MAP 127C; PARCEL 021.00

Lying and being in the Ninth (9") Civil District of Coffee County, Tennessee, and
being more particularly described as follows:

Beginning at nail set in sidewalk, said nail being North 51° 10’ 31” E, 52.21 feet
from a PK nail set at the centerline of the intersection of W. Volney St. and S.
Jackson St.; thence North 15° 58’ 09" E, 103.86 feet to an iron pin; thence South
74° 18 09" E, 80.00 feet to an iron pin; thence South 15° 59’ 03” W, 108.54 feet
to an iron pin in the northerly margin of S. Jackson St.; thence, along the margin
of a sidewalk adjoining S. Jackson St., North 74° 16’ 09" W, 63.45 feet to a point;
thence North 47° 37’ 59" W, 8.79 feet to a point; thence North 69° 42’ 47" W, 8.67
feet to the point of beginning containing .20 acres, plus or minus, according to
survey of Franklin Barnes, Tennessee License No. 1670, dated 12 April 2012,
Job #120135.

78

Book W425 Page 969



Being the same property conveyed to Loland McArthur by Quitclaim Deed
recorded December 5, 2012 of record in Deed Book 352, page 108, Register's
Office of Coffee County, Tennessee. The said Loland McArthur died intestate on
April 2, 2022 and his estate was probated in the Chancery Court of Coffee
County, Tennessee as Case Number 2022-PR-93. The decedent did not have
any children and was not married. The decedent's heirs-at-law are Randy J.
McArthur, Janie Y. Howard, Patricia Louise Bennett, Dorothy Sherrill, Shirley
Graham, and Allan McArthur. The State of Tennessee Division of TennCare
Release issued on or about April 11, 2022.

LEGAL DESCRIPTION COPIED FROM PRIOR DEED. NO NEW SURVEY
PERFORMED.

This conveyance is made subject to all matters on plat of record in Plat Envelope
133-B, Register's Office of Coffee County, Tennessee.

PARCEL I: MAP 127C; GROUP C; CONTROL MAP 127C; PARCEL 012.00

Lying and being in the Ninth (9*) Civil District of Coffee County, Tennessee, and
being more particularly described as follows:

Beginning at an iron pin in the southerly margin of Volney St., same being South
62° 11" 45" W, 149.58 feet to a PK nail set at the centerline of the intersection of
Volney St. and S. Jackson St.; thence, continuing with the southerly margin of
Volney St., N 50° 32’ 46” E, 99.91 feet to an iron pin; thence South 39° 29’ 00” E,
along the margin of alley 130.21 feet to a point in the line with Ortiz; thence South
50° 54’ 15” W, 49.94 feet to an iron pin found in the line with Prince; thence North
39° 27" 49” W, 49.85 feet to a point; thence South 50° 36" 11” W, 49.71 feet to a
point; thence North 39° 41’ 01” W, 80.00 feet to the point of beginning and
containing 0.24 acres, plus or minus, according to survey of Franklin D. Barnes,
Tennessee License No. 1670, dated April 4, 2012, Job #120134.

Being the same property conveyed to Loland McArthur by Quitclaim Deed
recorded December 5, 2012 of record in Deed Book 352, page 111, Register’s
Office of Coffee County, Tennessee. The said Loland McArthur died intestate on
April 2, 2022 and his estate was probated in the Chancery Court of Coffee
County, Tennessee as Case Number 2022-PR-93. The decedent did not have
any children and was not married. The decedent’s heirs-at-law are Randy J.
McArthur, Janie Y. Howard, Patricia Louise Bennett, Dorothy Sherrill, Shirley
Graham, and Allan McArthur. The State of Tennessee Division of TennCare
Release issued on or about April 11, 2022.

LEGAL DESCRIPTION COPIED FROM PRIOR DEED. NO NEW SURVEY
PERFORMED.

This conveyance is made subject to all matters on plat of record in Plat Envelope
133-B, Register’s Office of Coffee County, Tennessee.

79

Book W425 Page 970



TO HAVE AND TO HOLD said tract or parcel of land, with the appurtenances, estate,

title and interest thereto belonging to Grantee, Grantee’s heirs or assigns, forever.

AND Grantor does covenant with the said Grantee, that Grantor is lawfully seized and

possessed of said land in fee simple, have a good right to convey it, and the same is

unencumbered.

AND Grantor does further covenant and bind Grantors’ heirs and assigns, to warrant and

forever defend the title of said land to Grantee, Grantee's heirs or assigns, against the lawful

claims of all persons whomsoever.

WITNESS my hand this j_ day of i %Zk [ Hl;f[ , 2022,
Rondey 5. Meatdf

RANDY J. MCARTHUR

STATE OF TENNESSEE
COUNTY OF COFFEE

Personally, appeared before me, a notary public in and for the said county and state, the
within named RANDY J. MCARTHUR, the bargainor(s), with whom | am personally acquainted,
and who acknowledged that he executed the within instrument for the purposes therein

contained.
WITNESS MY HAND AND ”O.EﬁI,C'AL SEAL, this the 7 day ofm 2022.
iy, —

1y Codwten

NOTARY PUBLIC
Commission Expires: 316/2(0

iy,
/:

4, \.\\\ *

W
.,“!““Iva“.\\\\\m

REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK

80

Book W425 Page 971



WITNESS my hand this [ day of i ?l “/Ju , 2022,
@wﬁ WWN

JANIE Y. HOWARD (/ g

STATE OF TENNESSEE
COUNTY OF COFFEE

Personally, appeared before me, a notary public in and for the said county and state, the
within named JANIE Y. HOWARD, the bargainor(s), with whom | am personally acquainted, and
who acknowledged that she executed the within instrument for the purposes therein contained.

WITNESS MY HAND AND OFFICIAL SEAL, this the T dayor iﬁm 2022.
i )
AN Sy (\

NOTARY PUBLIC

Commission Expires: 3"6/2(0

Sia

TR

REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK

81

Book W425 Page 972



WITNESS my hand this | _ day oqusz 2022.

PATRICIA LOUISE BENNETT

STATE OF TENNESSEE
COUNTY OF COFFEE

Personally, appeared before me, a notary public in and for the said county and state, the
within named PATRICIA LOUISE BENNETT, the bargainor(s), with whom | am personally

acquainted, and who acknowledged that she executed the within instrument for the purposes
therein contained.

WITNESS MY HAND AND OFFICIAL SEAL, this the 7 day oflﬁ‘&ﬂ']&ﬂ022.

lles Catirion

% NOTARYUBLIC

Commission Expires: 3',5’21?

Lt

TTERTAASAY

REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK

82

Book W425 Page 973



WITNESS my hand this 7 day of i{ﬁ’ﬂ]@ 2022.

ooty & Nl

DOROTHY $HERRILL

STATE OF TENNESSEE
COUNTY OF COFFEE

Personally, appeared before me, a notary public in and for the said county and state, the
within named DOROTHY SHERRILL, the bargainor(s), with whom | am personally acquainted,

and who acknowledged that she executed the within instrument for the purposes therein
contained.

WITNESS MY HAND AND OFFICIAL SEAL, this the [ day ofMZOZZ.

IR
\\‘\\\\\ P ’{// Yy,
R Mo LAY S,
By NS

L2, NOTARY PUBLIC

Expires: 3’ /6 -2 o

Commissi

aHlititgg,,

r . AY
ST ITIRTITIOA

=
.

REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK

83

Book W425 Page 974



WITNESS my hand this l day of iﬁwéﬁ( ,2022.

B e

SHIRLEY GRAHAM

STATE OF TENNESSEE
COUNTY OF COFFEE

Personally, appeared before me, a notary public in and for the said county and state, the
within named SHIRLEY GRAHAM, the bargainor(s), with whom | am personally acquainted, and
who acknowledged that she executed the within instrument for the purposes therein contained.

WITNESS MY HAND AND OFFICIAL SEAL, this the [ day Of&PMOZZ.
Wl Caditon

NOTARY PUBLIC

§d e Commission’Expires: 5’15’ 2%

‘\\\\\_\HHH!//
G

LG TR

/s
»f//'.

REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK

84

Book W425 Page 975



WITNESS my hand this | day ofiﬁp\fﬂﬁﬁ[, 2022.

Lo

ALLAN MCARTHUR

STATE OF TENNESSEE
COUNTY OF COFFEE

Personally, appeared before me, a notary public in and for the said county and state, the

within named ALLAN MCARTHUR, the bargainor(s), with whom | am personally acquainted,
and who acknowledged that he executed the within instrument for the purposes therein

contained.
WITNESS MY HAND AND OFFICIAL SEAL, this the II day of&#ﬂl&fﬁwz.

bl Cudshen

NOTARY PURLIC
Commission Expires: 'ISZ(O

g,
\‘\\"\\ e /'///'
e AT,y

REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK

85

Book W425 Page 976



* k k%

|, or we, hereby swear or affirm that the actual consideration for their transfer or value of
the property transferred, whichever is greater is $178,000.00, which amount is equal to or
greater than the amount which the property transferred would command at a fair voluntary sale.

AFFIANT

s

Subsctibed and swarn to before me .
this day o&g(gm@c 2022.

NOTARY PUBflIC

My commissiov expires: 3 162 (0

I FTTEAES

86

Book W425 Page 977



TRUE copy CERTIFICATION

ereby make omit s
version of ih o oath thai | am g lj . .
. e elect o 8 dcensed Atiorne .
i ronic document tengered for regisiratggaer\{ ragror the
erewith gng

Xact co i igi
Py of the ofiginal document €Xecuted and

Daie: e Z 2

STATE OF TEN '
nl NESSEE
COUNTY OF coprpp ©

‘ .i - . Eé pmﬁt 2022

Noiary's Signailre

Swor

My COMMISSIONS EXPIRES: 3’ lt:}Z(_o

AU,
W iz,
A e

Noiary’s Seal:

r;i,'z't’.ililii'ig)jx/!

BK/PG:W425/969-978
22008652

10 PGS : WARRANTY DEED

MARY SHELTON 149281 - 22008652

09/08/2022 - 03:09 DM

YALUE 178000.00
MORTGAGE TAX 0.00
TRANSFER TAX 658.60
RECORDING FEE 50.00
DP FEE 2.00
REGISTER'S FEE 1.00
TOTAL AMOUNT 711.60

STATE of TEWNHESSEE, COFFEE COUHTY

DONNA R TONEY

REGISTER OF DEEDS

87

Book W425 Page 978



88



89



90



91



92



Kehoe Location Map

I |100ft

Parcels Coffee Addresses Tullahoma Airport Approach Zones Tullahoma City Limit
Coffee Parcels .

Tullahoma Parcels

Coffee County Boundary

93



Kehoe Zoning Map

I |100ft

Parcels Coffee Addresses Tullahoma Airport Approach Zones

Coffee Parcels .

Tullahoma Parcels

Tullahoma Zoning

R-1

R-2

R-3

Coffee County Boundary

94

Tullahoma City Limit




REVISED 2011 FUTURE LAND USE MAP (ADOPTED)

2] v0
A, & z /VE/(
Cx a? QQ' < o
Q Or) u =
s Rip, M la} o
N Q ©3 < JOE CAMPBELL @
NG WK % r T e
WiND %, @2 % Z
Z r g o (€] T S
<o, W > a S 5] U
% E & =) Voo 5 @
3 74 444;( @) o
T x T 2 e g 5
-
ORDRCK & 2 g Ry, LAKE CRest
pr BR ed 7
I Vo) e B > A POW
P < FE £ [ ELL
e \\l\\\]\e w o
*&o & € @ S
W Yo, ww T <
v S, BRIAR AUTUMN 2 o© c
%, Xy, S kS N ARTER
zZ w Q& 7
Y TRalLs S 2 3 TR > & e
= © Q s 4 3 ° & x
PONT % 3 52 5 < ok s}
z 9 o oG %, B O 3 2
r ) > o 23 o =< pa bl
a 2 S £ s w % 2 3 2 w o
.y 3 % 5 gy o, %S 2 % e
o 4 BELL < = < 5 O, a =2 %)
35 I&L 4 = g 3 1 a < %
2 9
o W Qy  SHERW T w ]
w ) OooD @ 12 ¥ 7]
S LEDFORD py; %, HiLLwooD 2 rooN S e E:
Y 9, 0AKwoOD £ TWELVE 0aks D
A ©X, NosLiTT y ] % i
wa 3 Asy PE
Rivg oF o 3 < o)
é S ] D>:- O %()9
X0
N4
% T LAKEWAY Y, § < b o o
S AVENUEEE © LAYNE D L B° ®
2 @ LARUE 2 % &
Q. \, ~ <&
<, 8 PN
W %) < »
ovg, 006 QYL Ji STUART - 6%)0 %\0 %%) &o»
OLD SHELBYVILLE 2, § 1@ S B % 70»;3 %74/ 02
&
T %, 04/ e?y\ N &% 6\& (6%, /O,f_ OO
S A0 s <<\ m
£ Qé Tpo SN % &R
(5\ o Q * (//$ QS) % O\’?X Ks
K3 R23 & K N
o = < c &% W O
w =2 0 o P ‘L74’ < v O
WiLSON 8 5 37 % Y %% Q%
= e B oM 22 G e « %, 2,
S cowan GLgy, 2 3% ©% > Y
BRAG DA 2 % T s
z G e % = < O < W,
o] @ ™3 & Q@Q/%Q‘ ¢ ATTENDORF ME
I o) > 2. O B A
K BN 0% g CE Y 2
® DG Y zZ %t & 0B % %
@ WELROSE % B 2y b &% 1sE % 2 KN
3 & - 9 {0\\\@ A\ ot & (N Ao@ >
INIRN{ 5= AS ooy 9, 0. 4
W~ i © K (A
v i & S OAKPARk N\ TRo $o
W o Oak p. Ors %
o 2 0 & ark Dr % <
> o EN SIMs %, P
Z >
% g g & « ¢ % &
© x S 3 i O Y
Z ¢ 2 S B 4 P o
Z /¢ g) O/O’ = +2 O e &
D 5 < 7 Hermjj 3 R\ \0(‘ o
72 S - Cho, - itage p, B X X >
z78 £ LYo E 9 (o) Q&
® £ & s T3 o) & o® o°
c, o 2 o w Q
R MR g Siemonr 2 % g o
Myy, E Iy 4] 2 =z )
Up 5 &' Glade Dr 5 o) S5 0,
5 T E %" % ¥y ® ?oo
© [te) %
E ~ Y \(“0 Q\S‘ s%
3 61 2 ? %
3 > % )
= T > & z g P
Sh, § 46 Se Iy
Legend . ey & 5
i urkey Creek Drive O3y %3 § %
|:| Commercial, Central COMM C 5 =1 P fé&
IC (e} 23
® Zz
- Commercial, General Neighborhood COMM GN 3&, 4,
[} Pl ‘v,
[ Industrial, IND 8 3 o "«,7
5 o 7.
|| Residential Low Density Single-Family, RLD 8 © %
|| Residential Medium Density Single-Family, RMD
" Hendrix Lane K
[ | Residential High Density Multi-Family, RHD " Lap, g 8
- Xx
/7 Institutional and Other Public, INST s §
&
> [} \;a“
I:l Recreation and OPen Space, RECOS J%‘ Z R
2 Todd Lane A Growden Lane
P al
"/ TULLAHOMA UGB 5 © ook
95 Roag



msamaniego
Textbox
(ADOPTED)


CITY OF TULLAHOMA

Planning & Development Department Phone 931-455-2282
PO Box 807, 321 N. Collins Street Fax: 931-454-1765
Tullahoma, TN 37388

DATE: July 28, 2025
TO: Board and Mayor Alderman
FROM: Samuel Luthi, Interim Director of Planning & Development

SUBJECT: Ordinance 1656 - An amendment to the Zoning Map of Tullahoma

BACKGROUND:

The Planning Commission voted to send a favorable recommendation to the Board of Mayor and Alderman for the
property located at 113-115 David Allan Dr to be rezoned from Agricultural (AG) to Low-Density Residential (R-1).

Coffee County Tax Map and Parcel Numbers: Map 106, Parcel 009.00. This rezone was requested by the property
owner.

ATTACHMENTS:

Ordinance 1648

Staff Report

Application for Rezoning
Property Deed

Location Map

Zoning Map

Future Land Use Map

96



ORDINANCE NO. 1656
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF TULLAHOMA,
TENNESSEE, AS SET FORTH IN THE TULLAHOMA MUNICIPAL CODE, TO RE-
ZONE A PARCEL LOCATED AT 113-115 DAVID ALLAN DR (COFFEE COUNTY 106,
PARCEL 009.00) FROM AGRICULTURAL (AG) TO LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (R-
1) ZONING DISTRICT.

WHEREAS, a public hearing before this body was held on June 16, 2025, commencing
at 5:30 p.m. and notice thereof published in the Tullahoma News on the 29" day of June 2025 at
which hearing members of the public were allowed to be present and to speak on the issues, and

WHEREAS, there being no substantial opposition to the re-zoning of the subject property
as is hereinafter set out and the same being in the best interest of the safety, welfare, and ordinary
growth of the City of Tullahoma and its residents;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF MAYOR AND
ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. The Zoning Map of the City of Tullahoma, Tennessee known to be hereby
amended by the rezoning at 113-115 David Allan Dr (Coffee County 106, Parcel 009.00) to Low
Density Residential zoning districts, said property more particularly identified on the attached
map.

SECTION 2. That all Ordinances in conflict herewith and all provisions in the Code of
Ordinances of the City of Tullahoma, in conflict herewith are hereby repealed in their entirety, to
the extent of any conflicts.

SECTION 3. That if any section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, item, or clause of this
Ordinance shall for any reason be declared unconstitutional or invalid, such declaration shall not

affect any other portion of this Ordinance, it being the intent that the sections, subsections,

paragraphs, sentences, items, or clauses of this Ordinance shall be treated as severable.

97



SECTION 4. That this Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and effect from and
after its passage and from and after its caption being published one time in a newspaper of general

circulation in Coffee County, Tennessee, the public welfare requiring it.

CITY OF TULLAHOMA

BY:
Charles Lynn Sebourn, Mayor

ATTEST:

Ms. Lori Ashley, City Recorder

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:

Mr. Stephen M. Worsham, City Attorney

PASSED ON FIRST READING; _ “uly 14, 2025

PASSED ON SECOND READING:

98



Staff Report

Project Title: 113-115 David Allan Dr Rezone Application
Staff: Samuel Luthi, Interim Director of Planning and Development

Applicant: David Allan Crouse

Request: For the Board of Mayor and Alderman to approve a rezoning application to rezone
the property from Agricultural (AG) to Low-Density Residential (R-1)

Zoning: Agricultural (AG)

Property Size: 3.14 acres

Location: 113-115 David Allan Dr

Tax Map and Parcel Numbers: Coffee County: Map 106, Parcel 009.00

Background Summary:
This application for rezone appeared before the Planning Commission at the June 16™ meeting, where

it received a positive recommendation and was passed forward to the Board of Mayor and Alderman
for final approval after the second reading.

Planning Considerations: The following general considerations, planning concepts, and other facts
should be considered in the review of this application:
1. The lot will be used for a single family residence after it is rezoned.

Staff Recommendation:

Staff has reviewed the request to rezone the property and has found no reason for its denial.
The Planning Commission has provided a positive recommendation for this rezoning.

99



TULLAHOMA MUNICIPAL REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION
PO Box 807, 321 North Collins Street, Tullahoma, Tennessee 37388
P: 931-455-2282 F: 931-454-1765 www.tullahomatn.gov

4’s°FTEN“€
REZONING APPLICATION $300 Fee

Applicant’'s Name

David Alan Clouse

AnnlicAantte Mailina Address City State Zip

1 Smyrna TN 37167
Dhana Rienbhar Fax Number Email

( g e

& Codes Department if any contact information has changed.
PLEASE COMPLETE THE FOLLOWING PROPERTY INFORMATION:

Property Owner (If different from Applicant)

The applicant is responsible for notifying the Planning

David Alan Clouse

Property Address City State Zip
113 David Alan Drive Tultahoma Tennessee |37388
Tax Map Group Parcel Size of Parcel Deed Book Page
106 009.00 ~ 3 acres 176 969
Present Zoning of Property Zoning Designation Requested Present Use of Property
Agricultural R-1 Wooland

Do you wish to rezone the entire parcelz [ ves il Nothe approx. 3 ac not currently zoned R-1

If No, how much of the property do you wish to rezone?
NOTE: If you wish to rezone less than the entire parcel, a legal description will be required along with this

application. If the rezoning is approved, a subdivision plat will be required prior to being able to use the
property under the new zone.

PLEASE COMPLETE THE FOLLOWING PROPOSED USE INFORMATION:

Explain in detail what you propose to do with this property and outline any long term plans for the
property. Refer to the use of the zoning district for which you are requesting and explain how your

project will fit within that district.

The plan is to carve off this ~3 acres from the remaining Clouse land and build one single-family
residence.

100



I hereby certify thal the information contained in this application is frue and correct fo the best of my knowledge

and belief.
Ap ant's,Signgature Date
(> Az J%ﬂ“

Applicant's Name (Printed)
David A. Clouse 05/08/2025

PLEASE INITIAL THE FOLLOWING POLICIES STATEMENTS TO INDICATE THAT YOU HAVE READ AND UNDERSTAND THEM:
Please note that this is the first step to completing your rezoning request. Under most circumstances, a
professional engineered site plan will have to be submitted and reviewed by the Planning Commission
before any building permits are issued. All buildings must comply with applicable building codes
and the American Disabilities Act (ADA) for handicap accessibility. Please contact the Planning &
Codes Department at 931-455-2282 with any questions about building permit application
process, site inspections, fees, or requirements.

Applicants Initials

Applicant Deferral/Withdrawal Policy: It is the policy of the Planning Commission that any requests to
defer their consideration of a rezoning application be submitted to the Planning Director in writing prior to
the scheduled public hearing. If an applicant requests deferral or withdrawal after processing has
begun, fees are non-refundable. Applicants requesting a deferral will be charged the cost of preparing
and mailing new notices of public hearing. Applicants may not defer an application for a period
exceeding three (3) months from the original Planning Commission public hearing date of said
application. Any application not considered before the three (3) month deferral timeframe will be
required to submit a new application, along with any required fees, and will be subject to the regulations

in effect at that time.
Applicants Iniﬁcls&/&

Commission Deferment/ Denial Policy: When an applicant or their representative is not present at the
regularly scheduled meeting of the Planning Commiission (PC}, the PC shall defer said application to their
next scheduled meeting. If the applicant or their representative fails to be present at the next meeting,
then the PC shall forward the zoning request on to the Board of Mayor and Aldermen with a
recommendation for denial.

Applicants Initials

The Board, its members, and employees, in the performance of its work, may enter upon any land within
its jurisdiction and make examinations and surveys and place or remove public notices as required by

the Zoning Ordinance.
Applicants Initials M

CHECKLIST
Before we can accept your rezoning application, please make sure you have all the items listed below:
Zf A completed application |2/$300 application fee

[ A copy of the deed to the property

O A Letter of Attorney-in-Fact if submitted by anyone other than the current land owner

Receipt Number

Accepted by

101



Le 2. D. Bk 233 page 540

)

This Instrument Prepared By: ' Real Property Tax Responsibility:

Sam Sawyer Lonnie A. Clouse

Attorney at Law ¢/o W.M. Clouse
Tullahoma, TN 37388 Rt. 5

DAN L. DAMIEL Manchester, TN 37355
:n&PROPERTY

£, BSSESSOR WARRANTY DEED

(X

FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION of the sum of ONE ($1.00) DOLLAR, cash in hand
paid, and for other good and valuable considerations, the receipt of all of
which is hereby acknowledged, we, PHILIP GROSCH and wife, BERTHA GROSCH, have
bargained and sold, and by these presents do hereby transfer and convey unto
LONNIE A. CLOUSE, his heirs and assigns, a certain tract or parcel of land
located and situated in the 5th Civil District of Coffee County, State of
Tennessee, bounded and described as follows, to-wit: |

Beginning at a steel post and concrete monument, said monument being

the northeast corner of this tract of land, and being TVA Monument 5-28;
thence running with an old fence line S 8 deg. 00 min. W, 454.7 feet to
a 20~inch hickory; thence S 7 deg. 08 min. W, 278.4 feet to a 20-inch
hickory; thence S 7 deg. 09 min. W, 571.0 feet to a concrete monument;
thence N 81 deg. 46 min. W, 740.3 feet to an oak stump in the easterly
margin of an old roadway; thence N 81 deg. 49 min. W, 537.0 feet to a
corner fence post; thence S 6 deg. 43 min. W, 530.8 feet to an iron pin
at the northeast corner of a 50-foot easement; thence running with the
north margin of said easement, N 79 deg. 39 min. W, 617.7 feet to a
stake located 509.9 feet east of the easterly margin of Grosch Street;
thence running with an old fence line, N 4 deg. 29 min. E, 712.3 feet

to a 10~inch hickory; thence N 1 deg. 32 min. E, 472.6 feet to an iron
pin and fence corner at a 12-inch maple; thence S 72 deg. 58 min. E,
132.5 feet to an iron pin and old stump; thence N 55 deg. 46 min. E,
192.5 feet to a 12-inch red bak; thence N 81 deg. 35 min. E, 206.3 feet
to a 24-inch walnut in the easterly margin of an old roadway; thence N
87 deg. 14 min. E, 153.3 feet to an iron pin and double poplar; thence

N 35 deg. 53 min. E, 344.6 feet to a 20-inch hickory; thence N 44 deg.
55 min. E, 191.1 feet to an 18-inch white oak at the point where the
fence crosses the TVA line; thence S 72 deg. 50 min. E, 77.6 feet to TVA
Monument 5-27; thence continuing with the TVA marked line, S 81 deg. 12
min. E, 990.5 feet to TVA Monument 5-28, said monument being the point
of beginning, and containing 57.30 acres, according to a survey by Richard
M. Raper, dated June 22, 1981.

Being a portion of the same property conveyed to Philip Grosch and wife,
Bertha Grosch, by warranty deed dated June 29, 1945, of record in Deed
Book 58, page 165, Register's Office, Coffee County, Tennessee.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the said tract or parcel of land with the appurtenances,
estate, title and interest thereto belonging, to the said LONNIE A. CLOUSE, his
heirs and.assigns,‘forever.

AND WE DO COVENANT with the said LONNIE A. CLOUSE that we are lawfully
seized and posséssed of said land in fee simple; have a good and lawful right
to sell and convey same, and that said property is free, clear and unencumbered.
AND WE DO FURTHER COVENANT and bind ourselves, our heirs and assigns, to
warrant and forever defend the title to said land to the said LONNIE A. CLOUSE,

9¢q

102




L
My Commission Expires: ; L
XL whE "
-~/ SR -t Ly e
-~ S A Sl YAV IS BT I
| ~23-%2 Lz oREE s @) Tyl
: Qr;'-i 9 3 < ‘40;’: A
ke
RN R IRNCE-4
P e 3
, of wo, Innby swear or affirm that the uctuc! consideration for this "”n, i & \L_,.."‘
. .
, jravefer, © value of the preperty ftronsfarrod, whithever s crealer Frrepda.poss

770

his heirs and assigns, against the lawful claims of all persons whomsoever.

WITNESS OUR HANDS this R4 day of June, 1981.

(PL ot & aror L

C~7“PHILIP GROSCH

e

BERTHA GROSCH

STATE OF TENNESSEE
COUNTY OF COFFEE

Personally appeared before me, a Notary Public in and for said County and
State, PHILIP GROSCH and wife, BERTHA GROSCH, the within named bargainors, with
whom I am personally acquainted, and who acknow]edged that they executed the
foregoing ,imstrument for the purposes therein contained.

WITNESS MY HAND AND OFFICIAL SEAL this 24 day of June, 1981’5.

Y )Q_;____ which emount Is enuel to or graxter than the
Which K propirty tremloaed would command o o fair

e e
¥ AR
SEA /777 @42
i Sl Y ) = d
; s

STATE OF TENNESSEE, COFFEE COUNTY
The foregoing , instrument and certificate were noted
Note Book>", Page Zgé A Yoo closkeZ M = T lﬁﬂ.

and recorded In Book /74 Page 269

r 0

Recelp_t No.
‘ ; /; Register ? )
7




113-115 David Allan Dr Zoning Map

I |200ft

Parcels Coffee Addresses Tullahoma Airport Approach Zones

Coffee Parcels

Tullahoma Parcels

Tullahoma Zoning

R-1

R-2

R-3

Coffee County Boundary

104

Tullahoma City Limit




105



REVISED 2011 FUTURE LAND USE MAP (ADOPTED)

2] v0
A, & z /VE/(
Cx a? QQ' < o
&) Oy = u |
RAY Rip, N o o
. < Ce JOE CAMPBELL o
NG WK % r T e
WiND %, @2 % Z
Z r g o (€] T S
<o, W > a S 5] U
% E & S Voe, 5 @
s @ ALA/( OO o
T oy T ” AR S &
ORDRCK & 2 z 98y, LAKE CRest
LpH BR ey o > hfﬂ),
a o2 g 2 POWELL
‘4]0 \\]\N\e‘ L'E g
*&o & € @ S
W Yo, ww T <
Ao, P BRIAR AUTUMN 2 o© s
4‘@04/017/4/ é F & oL > RTER
w
TRAILS S 2 3 TR > & e
= © Q s 4 3 ° & x
PONT % 3 52 ES g ot S
> 3 @ 05 2, D, 2 3 a
& Oz o ¢ 2 T B i
Q 2 o £ Zu % 2 O w o)
I g ng K g § < o/\ @ UZJ (O] x
o 4 BELL < = < 5 O, a =2 %)
2 lﬁfL 4 = Lf I 1 a << %
2 9
o W Qy  SHERW T w ]
w ) 00D 2 e 4 7]
24 LEDFORD py; %, HLWOOD X __oon S e E:
Y 4, 0AKWOOD 2 TWELVE 0aks D
T T\ NOBLITT o ] %, W
wa 3 Asy PE
/f//v [ay ) L& < Q
¥ s 23 5 SR
X0 @
N4
% T LAKEWAY Y, § < b o o
= AVENUEEE ° LAYNE 3 5 e 3
g o \)% LARUE Z ‘7@ (ﬂ
2 o ~ A8
W < % ST ¢ v
o%) e QYL i UART - 6%)0 %\0 %% ng»
OLD SHELBY % g (@ %, % &
VILLE N L 1@ ot Q% % % % 7,
=z 7 04/ e?y\ X @ <% (6%, /ij_ OO
3 2, A s 3 N
N & gy XN % 2 &
(5\ o Q * (//$ QS) % O\’?\ Ks
6?( RZY Qf‘ \>\<// N\
o = < c &% W O
w =2 0 o P ‘L74’ < v O
WiLSON 8 5 37 % Y %% Q%
= e B oM 22 G e « % 2,
S cowan GLgy, 2 3% ©% > Y
s BRAGG D4 5 A % 71 <
Lg =T < < O Q WA
5 @ ™3 & <& & ¢ TTENDORF
x WESTW, % oR 5§ KO MEMORIAL
< 00D o 7 Sh o 5 O KA o
? N 9% g N TE % %
® RS T z Bk oK 5 % 5
@ WELROSE % B 2y » %28 % 2 KN
3 & - 9 {0\\\@ A\ ot & (N Ao@ >
N R 52 2\ ooy 0, 0., 2
W~ i © K (A
v i & S OAKPARk N\ TRo $o
W o Oak p. Ors %
o 2 0 & ark Dr % <
> o EN SIMs %, P
Z >
% ¢ g & ¥ ¢ o 5
2 & S o X e PR
Z S ¢ D ] PN\ 3
< [0} o) et = 7} o <<\(b NS 4
©“ 2 < = Ty @ (&) & R@ )
D 5 < Mg, Hermit, 9] Qi 20 N
% 5 P %o, el age Dr = X &
Z 3 £ L Yp. O o N &
S £ g a 4 Kt o nC:) ™ o®
c, o 2 o w Q
%, Migy §  Slemonr = 2 g &
MJ’r IS > = 2 =z )N %
Up 5 £ Glade Dr I o) S 0,
5 T 2 %" % ¥y ® ?oo
@ [te} )
2 5 @:» W O@ Qf,p
- ° T? S 2 ’SZ” %
o & 3 & &
S 5 %, e,
Legend . Patan $ G
i urkey Creek Drive Oaq 2 £ %
|:| Commercial, Central COMM C 5 =1 P fé&
IC (e} 23
® Zz
- Commercial, General Neighborhood COMM GN 3&, 4,
[} Pl ‘v,
[ Industrial, IND 8 3 & 5
5 o =
|| Residential Low Density Single-Family, RLD 8 © %
|| Residential Medium Density Single-Family, RMD
" Hendrix Lane K
[ | Residential High Density Multi-Family, RHD " Lap, g 8
- Xx
/7 Institutional and Other Public, INST s §
&
> [} \;a“
I:l Recreation and OPen Space, RECOS J%‘ Z ‘e\o\“@“ Growg
rowden Lane
Q
2 L
77 TULLAHOMA UGB b Todd Lane ook
106 %ad



msamaniego
Textbox
(ADOPTED)


ORDINANCE NO. 1657

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CITY OF TULLAHOMA’S OCCUPATIONAL
SAFETY AND HEALTH PROGRAM PLAN AND RELATED RULES AND
REGULATIONS

WHEREAS, in compliance with Public Chapter 561 of the General Assembly of the State of
Tennessee for the year 1972, the City of Tullahoma, Tennessee, hereby updates the Occupational
Safety and Health Program Plan for our employees; and

WHEREAS, the City of Tullahoma, Tennessee, last updated the Occupational Safety and Health
Program Plan by the passage of Ordinance No. 1498 on April 23, 2018; and

WHEREAS, the Occupational Safety and Health Program Plan shall proved a safe and healthy
place and condition of employment; acquire, maintain, and require the use of safety equipment,
personal protective equipment and devises reasonably necessary to protect employees; keep
record, preserve and make available to the Commissioner of Labor and Workforce Development
adequate records of all occupational accidents and illnesses and personal injuries; provide
reasonable opportunity for the participation of employees of employees in the effectuation of the
objectives of this Program Plan and provide education and notification to employees of the
existence of the Occupational Safety and Health Standards; and

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board if the Mayor and Aldermen of the City
of Tullahoma, Tennessee, that Ordinance No. 1498 is hereby repealed and superseded by this
Ordinance, Exhibit “A” which is attached and hereby establishes “The Occupational Safety and
Health Program Plan” for the employees of the City of Tullahoma.

SECTION 1. Ifthere are any provisions enacted hereby in conflict with the Personnel
Regulations of the City of Tullahoma, Tennessee, in full force in effect now, or as amended
hereafter, the provisions in said Personal regulations shall control.

SECTION 2. The Human Resource Officer is designated as the Safety Director of Occupational
Safety and Health to perform duties and to exercise powers assigned to plan, develop, and
administer this Program Plan.

SECTION 3. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this ordinance is
for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such
portion shall be deemed separate, distinct. And independent provision, and such holding shall not
affect the validity of the remaining portions hereof.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN OF
THE CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE, that this Ordinance shall take effect and be in
full force and effect from and after its passage, the public welfare requiring it.

CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE

Charles Lynn Sebourn, Mayor
ATTEST:

Lori Ashley, City Recorder

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Stephen M. Worsham, City Attorney

PASSED ON FIRST READING:
PASSED ON SECOND READING:

107



THE OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH PROGRAM PLAN FOR

THE EMPLOYEES OF THE CITY OF TULLAHOMA

SECTION

4-201. Purpose and coverage.

4-202. Definitions.

4-203. Employer’s rights and duties.

4-204. Employees’ rights and duties

4-205. Administration.

4-206. Standards authorized.

4-207. Variance procedure.

4-208. Recordkeeping and reporting.

4-209. Employee complaint procedure.

4-210. Education and training.

4-211. General inspection procedures.

4-212. Imminent danger procedures.

4-213. Abatement orders and hearings.

4-214. Penalties.

4-215. Confidentiality of privileged information.
4-216. Discrimination investigations and sanctions.
4-217. Compliance with other laws not excused.
4-218. Appendices.

4-201. Purpose and Coverage. The purpose of this plan is to establish guidelines and

procedures for implementing the Occupational Safety and Health Program Plan for the
employees of the City of Tullahoma.

This applies to all City employees — whether full-time, part-time, seasonal, or permanent.

In updating and maintaining an effective Occupational Safety and Health Program, the City of
Tullahoma will:

N —

Provide safe and healthy working conditions and places of employment.

. Require the use of personal protective equipment and safety devices where reasonably

necessary.

Maintain and make available to the Commissioner of Labor and Workforce development
(or designated representatives) complete records of all occupational accidents, illnesses,

and injuries for appropriate evaluation and corrective action.

Consult with the Commissioner or designated representatives regarding the adequacy of
recordkeeping.

108



4-202.

Seek guidance from the Commissioner on unique or complex safety concerns not
addressed by existing standards.

Assist the Commissioner in monitoring the effectiveness of the Program and compliance
with applicable standards.

Submit annual (or otherwise required) reports to the Commissioner detailing accidents,
illnesses, and progress toward safety goals.

Provide employees with reasonable opportunities to participate in program development,
including the ability to submit anonymous safety complaints.

Definitions. For the purpose of the Program Plan, the following definitions apply:

“Commissioner of labor and workforce Development” means the chief executive officer
of the Tennessee Department of Labor and Workforce Development. This includes any
person appointed, designated, or deputized to perform the duties or to exercise the powers
assigned to the Commissioner of Labor and Workforce Development.

“Employer” refers to the City of Tullahoma, including all administrative departments,
boards, commissions, divisions, and other affiliated agencies.

“Safety Director of Occupational Health” or “Safety Director” means the person
designated by the establishing ordinance, or executive order to perform duties or to
exercise powers assigned so as to plan, develop, and administer the Occupational Safety
and Health Program Plan for the employees of the City of Tullahoma.

“Inspector(s)” means the individual(s) appointed or designated by the Safety Director of
Occupational Safety and Health to conduct inspections provided for herein. If no such
compliance inspector(s) is appointed, inspections shall be conducted by the Safety
Director of Occupational Safety and Health.

“Appointing Authority” means any official or group of officials of the employer having
legally designated powers of appointment, employment, or removal there from a specific
department, board, commission, division, or other agency of this employer.

“Employee” means any individual performing services for the City of Tullahoma who
appears on its payroll, whether part-time, full-time, seasonal, or permanent. This includes
volunteers who receive any form of compensation. Independent contractors and their
employees are excluded.

“Person” means one or more individuals, partnerships, associations, corporations,
business trusts, or legal representatives or any organized group of persons.

“Standard” refers to an occupational safety and health regulation issued by the
Commissioner of Labor and Workforce Development in accordance with Section VI of
the Tennessee Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1972.

“Imminent Danger” means any conditions or practices in any place of employment which
are such that a hazard exists which could reasonably be expected to cause death or

109



serious physical harm immediately or before the imminence of such hazard can be
eliminated through normal compliance enforcement procedures.

10. “Establishment” or “Worksite” means a single physical location under the control of this
employer where business is conducted, services are rendered, or industrial type
operations are performed.

11. “Serious injury” or “Harm” means the type of harm that would cause permanent or
prolonged impairment of the body in that:

a. A part of the body would be permanently removed (e.g., amputation of an arm,
leg, finger(s), loss of an eye(s), or rendered functionally useless or substantially
reduced in efficiency on or off the job (e.g., leg shattered so severely that mobility
would be permanently reduced), or

b. A part of an internal body system would be inhibited in its normal performance or
function to such a degree as to shorten life or cause reduction in a physical or
mental efficiency (e.g., lung impairment causing shortness of breath).

12. “Act” or “TOSH Act” shall mean the Tennessee Occupational Safety and Health Act of
1972.

13. “Governing body” means the Board of Aldermen of the City of Tullahoma, Tennessee.

14. “Chief Executive Officer” means the chief administrative official, City Judge, County
Chairman, County Mayor, Mayor, City Manager, General Manager, etc., as may be
applicable.

4-203. Employer Rights and Duties. Rights and duties of the employer shall include,

but are not limited to, the following provisions:

1. Provide employees with workplaces free from recognized hazards that may cause death
or serious physical harm.

2. Comply with all applicable occupational safety and health standards as required under the
Tennessee Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1972.

3. Permit inspections by the Commissioner and provide access to personnel, records, or
other resources as reasonably required for monitoring purposes.

4. Participate in the development of safety standards through public comment, hearings, or

formal requests.

Request a variance from a safety standard if needed.

Retain all legally privileged communications.

Conduct regular worksite inspections to ensure compliance with this Program Plan.

Inform any employee who has been significantly exposed to harmful agents about the

exposure and corrective actions taken.

9. Ensure all employees are made aware of their rights and responsibilities under this
Program Plan.

e B

110



4-204. Employees Rights and Duties. Rights and duties of employees shall include, but
are not limited to, the following provisions:

1. Employees must comply with all applicable safety standards and procedures outlined in
this Program and the TOSH Act.

2. Employees must be notified of any applications for temporary or permanent variances.

Employees have the right to participate in hearings related to such variance applications.

4. Employees may petition the Commissioner if adversely affected by a standard or
variance.

5. Ifexposed to toxic or harmful agents above permissible limits, employees must be
provided with hazard information and corrective actions being taken.

6. Employee representatives may request inspections and consult with inspectors during on-
site evaluations.

7. Employees may report unsafe conditions or violations directly to the Safety Director.

8. No employee may be retaliated against for filing a complaint or initiating proceedings
under this Program.

9. Employees who believe they were discriminated against for such actions may file a
complaint with the Safety Director or the Commissioner within 30 days.

10. Medical treatment or procedures shall not be mandated for employees objecting on
religious grounds, except when necessary for public safety or job performance.

11. All job-related accidents, injuries, or illnesses—regardless of severity—must be reported
to the supervisor or Safety Director within 24 hours.

[98)

4-205. Administration.

1. The Safety Director of Occupational Safety and Health is designated to carry out the
duties and exercise the powers necessary to administer this Occupational Safety and
Health Program Plan.

2. The Safety Director shall have the authority to:

a. Designate additional personnel as deemed necessary to assist in fulfilling the
power, duties, and responsibilities outlined in this Program Plan.

b. Delegate inspection authority to qualified individuals, provided that inspection
procedures used by those individuals are as effective as those conducted by the
Safety Director personally.

c. Coordinate departmental safety efforts, to the extent feasible, to promote
operational efficiency and minimize disruption across departments under this
Program Plan.

d. Request technical assistance from qualified personnel in any department or
governmental division to support:

1. Compliance inspections.
ii. Accident investigations.

111



iii.  Other safety-related responsibilities deemed necessary by the Safety
Director Personnel from any department or section of government to assist
them in making compliance inspections, accident investigations, or as they
may otherwise deem necessary and appropriate in order to carry out the
duties under this Program Plan.

e. Prepare and submit the required report to the Commissioner of Labor and
Workforce Development in accordance with Subsection (g), Section 1 of this plan.

f. Conduct or direct periodic and follow-up inspections of all employer-operated
facilities and worksites:

i. Identify and recommend corrective actions for observed hazards.

ii. Address employee complaints.

iii. Respond to inspection requests submitted by employees.

g. Assist department officials in the investigation of occupational accidents or
illnesses.

h. Ensure proper maintenance of safety records as required under Section VIII of
this Program Plan.

i. Ensure timely reporting of serious incidents:

1. Notify the Commissioner of Labor and Workforce Development within
eight (8) hours of any fatality or incident resulting in the hospitalization of
three (3) or more employees.

ii. Report all work-related impatient hospitalizations, amputations, or loss of
an eye to TOSHA within 24 hours.
The administrative or Department Head of each department, division, board, or other
agency shall be responsible for the implementation of the Occupational Safety and Health
Program Plan within their area of responsibility.
Each Department Head shall:
a. Comply with directions provided by the Safety Director on all matters related to
employee occupational safety and health as outlined in this Program Plan.
b. Comply with all abatement orders issued under this plan or formally request a
review of the order with Safety Director within the designated abatement period.
c. Conduct regular safety surveys of their facilities and operations:
1. Identify existing hazards or standard violations.
ii. Take prompt corrective action as needed.
d. Investigate all occupational accidents, injuries, or illnesses reported within their
jurisdiction:

1. Submit findings and/or recommendations to the Safety Director.

il. Report incidents in accordance with the procedures outlined in Appendix
IV of this plan.

112



4-206. Standards Authorized. The standards adopted under this Program Plan are the
applicable standards developed and promulgated under Section VI (6) of the Tennessee

Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1972. Additional standards may be promulgated by the
governing body of this employer as that body may deem necessary for the safety and health of
employees. Note: This Program adopts applicable standards from 29 CFR Part 1910 (General

Industry Regulations) and Tennessee Occupational Safety and Health Regulations, Chapters
0800-01-01 through 0800-01-11.

4-207. Variance Procedure. The Safety Director may apply for a variance upon

becoming aware of safety hazards or upon receiving a substantiated employee complaint.
Variances must be submitted in writing to the Commissioner and include: The application for a
variance shall be prepared in writing and shall contain:

a. A specification of the standard or portion thereof from which the variance is
sought.

b. A detailed statement of the reason(s) the employer is unable to comply with the
standard supported by representations by qualified personnel having first-hand
knowledge of the facts represented.

c. A statement of the steps employer has taken and will take (with a specific date) to
protect employees against the hazard covered by the standard.

d. A statement of when the employer expects to comply and what steps have or will
be taken (with a specific date) to come into compliance with the standard.

e. A certification that the employer has informed employees, their authorized
representative(s), and/or interested parties by giving them a copy of the request,
posting a statement summarizing the application (to include the location a copy
will be available for examination) at the places where employee notices are
normally posted and by other appropriate means. The certification shall contain a
description of the means actually used to inform employees and that employees
have been informed of their right to petition the Commission of Labor and
Workforce Development for a hearing.

1. The application for a variance should be sent to the Commissioner of Labor and
Workforce Development by registered or certified mail.

2. The Commissioner of Labor and Workforce Development will review the application for
a variance and may deny the request or issue an order granting the variance. An order
granting a variance shall be issued only if it has been established that:

a. The employer

i. Is unable to comply with the standard by the effective date because of
unavailability of professional or technical personnel or materials and
equipment required or necessary construction or alteration of facilities or
technology.

113



4-208.

ii. Has taken all available steps to safeguard employees against the hazard(s)
covered by the standard.
iii. Has an effective Program Plan for coming into compliance with the
standard as quickly as possible.
b. The employee is engaged in an experimental Program Plan as described in
subsection (b), section 13 of the Act.
A variance may be granted for a period of no longer than is required to achieve
compliance or one (1) year, whichever is shorter.
Upon receipt of an application for an order granting a variance, the Commissioner to
whom such application is addressed may issue an interim order granting such a variance
for the purpose of permitting time for an orderly consideration of such application. No
such interim order may be effective for longer than one hundred eighty (180) days.
The order or interim order granting a variance shall be posted at the worksite and
employees notified of such order by the same means used to inform them of the
application for said variance.

Recordkeeping and reporting. All occupational accidents, injuries, and

illnesses must be recorded and reported in accordance with OSHA guidelines available at

www.osha.gov or as directed by the Tennessee Department of Labor and Workforce
Development.

4-209.

Employee Complaint Procedure. If any employee feels that they are

assigned to work in conditions which might affect his health, safety, or general welfare at the

present time or at any time in the future, they should report the condition to the Safety Director
or Occupational Safety and Health.

1.

2.

The complaint should be submitted in the form of a letter and should provide detailed
information regarding the conditions in question and how the employee believes their
health, safety, or general welfare may be affected. The letter should be signed by the
employee, although anonymity is allowed (see Section 4-204, Subsection 8).

Upon receipt of the letter of complaint, the Safety Director will evaluate the conditions
described and implement corrective actions, if warranted. Within ten (10) working days
following the receipt of the complaint, the Safety Director will respond in writing
indicating whether their complaint is considered valid. If not, the response will include
reasons for the determination.

If the complainant finds the reply not satisfactory because it was held to be invalid, the
corrective action is felt to be insufficient, or the time period for correction is felt to be too
long, they may forward a letter to the Chief Executive Officer or to the governing body

114


http://www.osha.gov/

explaining the conditions citing in his original complaint and why he believes the answer
to be inappropriate or insufficient.

4. The Chief Executive Officer, or a representative of the governing body will evaluate the
complaint and will begin to take action to correct or abate the conditions through
arbitration or administrative sanctions or may find the complaint to be invalid. An
answer will be sent to the complaint within ten (10) working days following receipt of the
complaint explaining decisions made and action taken or to be taken.

5. After the above steps have been followed and the complainant is still not satisfied with
the results, he may then file a complaint with the Commissioner of Labor and Workforce
Development. Any complaint filed with the Commissioner of Labor and Workforce
Development in such cases shall include copies of all related correspondence with the
Safety Director and the Chief Executive Officer of the representative of the governing
body.

6. Copies of all complaints and answers thereto will be filed by the Safety Director who will
make them available to the Commissioner of Labor and Workforce Development or his
designated representative upon request.

4-210. Education and Training.

1. Safety Director and/or Compliance Inspector(s):

a. Arrangements will be made for the Safety Director and/or Compliance
Inspector(s) to attend training seminars, workshops, etc., conducted by the State
of Tennessee or other agencies. A list of seminars can be obtained.

b. Access will be made to reference materials such as 29 CFR 1910 General Industry
Regulations; 29 CFR 1926 Construction Industry Regulations; The Rules of
Tennessee Department of Labor and Workforce Development Occupational Safety
and Health and other equipment / supplies, deemed necessary for use in
conduction compliance inspections, conducting local training, and informing
officials, supervisors, and employees of the existence of safety and health hazards
will be furnished.

2. All Employees (including supervisory personnel): A suitable safety and health training
program for employees will be established. This program will, as a minimum:

a. Instruct each employee in the recognition and avoidance of hazards or unsafe
conditions and of standards and regulations applicable to the employees work
environment to control or eliminate any hazards, unsafe conditions, or other
exposures to occupational illness or injury.

b. Instruct employees who are required to handle or use poisons, acids, caustics,
toxicants, flammable liquids, or gases, including explosives, and other harmful
substances in the proper handling procedures and use of such items and make

115



them aware of the personal protective measures, personal hygiene, etc., which
may be required.

c. Instruct employees who may be exposed to environments where harmful plants or
animals are present, of the hazards of the environment, how to best avoid injury or
exposure, and the first aid procedures to be followed in the event of injury or
exposure.

d. Instruct all employees of the common deadly hazards and how to avoid them,
such as falls, equipment turnover, electrocution, struck by/ caught in, trench cave
in, heat stress and drowning.

e. Instruct employees on hazards and dangers of confined or enclosed spaces.

1. Confined or enclosed space means space having a limited means of egress
and which is subject to the accumulation of toxic or flammable
contaminants or has an oxygen deficient atmosphere. Confined or
enclosed spaces include, but are not limited to, storage tanks, boilers,
ventilation or exhaust ducts, sewers, underground utility accesses, tunnels,
pipelines, and open top spaces more than four (4) feet in depth such as
pits, tubs, vaults, and vessels.

ii. Employees will be given general instructions on hazards involved,
precautions to be taken, and use of personal protective and emergency
equipment required. They shall also be instructed on all specific standards
or regulations that apply to work in dangerous or potentially dangerous
areas.

iii. The immediate supervisor of any employee who must perform work in a
confined or enclosed space shall be responsible for instructing employees
in danger of hazards which may be present, precautions to be taken, and
use of personal protective and emergency equipment immediately prior to
their entry into such an area and shall require use of appropriate personal
protective equipment.

4-211. General Inspection Procedures. It is the intention of the governing body

and responsible officials to have an Occupational Safety and Health Program Plan that will
ensure the welfare of employees. In order to be aware of hazards, periodic inspections must be
carried out. These inspections will enable the finding of hazards or unsafe conditions or
operations that will need correction in order to maintain a safe and healthy worksite. Inspections
made on a pre-designated basis may not yield the desired results. Inspections will be conducted,
therefore, on a random basis at intervals not to exceed thirty (30) calendar days.

1. In order to carry out the purposes of this Ordinance, the Safety Director and/or
Compliance Inspector(s), if appointed, is authorized:

116



a. To enter at any reasonable time, any establishment, facility, or worksite where
work is being performed by an employee when such establishment, facility, or
worksite is under the jurisdiction of the employer and;

b. To inspect and investigate during regular working hours and at other reasonable
times, within reasonable limits, and in a reasonable manner, any such place of
employment and all pertinent conditions, processes, structures, machines,
apparatus, devices, equipment, and materials therein, and to question privately
any supervisor, operator, agent, or employee working herein.

If an imminent danger situation is found, alleged, or otherwise brought to the attention of
the Safety Director or Inspector during a routine inspection, who shall immediately
inspect the imminent danger situation in accordance with Section 4-212 of this plan
before inspecting the remaining portions of the establishment, facility, or worksite.

An administrative representative of the employer and a representative authorized by the
employees shall be given an opportunity to consult with and/or to accompany the Safety
Director or Inspector during the physical inspection of any worksite for the purpose of
aiding such inspection.

The right of accompaniment may be denied to any person whose conduct interferes with
a full and orderly inspection.

The conduct of the inspection shall be such as to preclude unreasonable disruptions of the
operations of the workplace.

Interviews of employees during the course of the inspection may be conducted when such
interviews are considered essential to investigative techniques.

Advance notice of inspections.

a. Generally, advance notice of inspections will not be given as this precludes the
opportunity to make minor or temporary adjustments in an attempt to create a
misleading impression of conditions in an establishment.

b. There may be occasions when advance notice of inspections will be necessary in
order to conduct an effective inspection or investigation. When advance notice of
inspection is given, employees or their authorized representative will also be
given notice of the inspection.

The Safety Director need not personally inspect each and every worksite once every
thirty (30) days. He may delegate the responsibility for such inspections to supervisors or
other personnel provided:

a. Inspections conducted by supervisors or other personnel are at least as effective as
those made by the Safety Director.

b. Records are made of the inspections, if discrepancies are found, corrective actions
will be taken. This information is forwarded to the Safety Director.

The Safety Director shall maintain records of inspections to include identification of
worksite inspected, date of inspection, description of violations of standards or other
unsafe conditions or practices found, and corrective action taken toward abatement.

117



Those inspection records shall be subject to review the Commissioner of Labor and

Workforce Development or his authorized representative.

4-212

Imminent Danger Procedures.

1. Any discovery, any allegation, or any report of imminent danger shall be handled in

accordance with the following procedures:

a.

The Safety Director shall immediately be informed of the alleged imminent
danger situation, and he shall immediately ascertain whether there is a reasonable
basis for the allegation.
If the alleged imminent danger situation is determined to have merit by the Safety
Director, they shall make or cause to be made an immediate inspection of the
alleged imminent danger location.
As soon as it is concluded from such inspection that conditions or practices exist
which constitute an imminent danger, the Safety Director or Compliance
Inspector shall attempt to have the danger corrected. All employees at the
location should be informed of the danger and the supervisor or person in charge
of the worksite shall be requested to remove employees from the area, if deemed
necessary.
The administrative or operational head of the workplace in which the imminent
danger exists, or his authorized representative, shall be responsible for
determining the madder in which the imminent danger situation will be abated.
This shall be done in cooperation with the Safety Director or Compliance
Inspector and with the mutual satisfaction of all parties involved.
The imminent danger shall be deemed abated if:

1. The imminence of danger has been eliminated by removal of employees

from the area of danger.

ii.  Conditions or practices which resulted in imminent danger have been
eliminated or corrected to the point where an unsafe condition or practice
no longer exists.

A written report shall be made by or to the Safety Director describing in detail the
imminent danger and its abatement. This report will be maintained by the Safety
Director in accordance with subsection nine (9) of Section 4-211 of this plan.

2. Refusal to abate.

a.

Any refusal to abate an imminent danger situation shall be reported to the Safety
Director and Chief Executive Officer immediately.

The Safety Director and/or Chief Executive Officer shall take whatever action
may be necessary to achieve abatement.

118



4-213.
1.

4-214.
1.

Abatement Orders and Hearings.

Whenever, as a result of an inspection or investigation, the Safety Director or Compliance
Inspector finds a worksite is not in compliance with the standards, rules or regulations
pursuant to this plan and is unable to negotiate abatement with the administrative or
operational head of the worksite within a reasonable period of time, the Safety Director
shall:

a. Issue an abatement order to the head of the worksite.

b. Post or cause to be posted, a copy of the abatement order at or near each location

referred to in the abatement order.

Abatement orders shall contain the following information:

a. The standard, rule, or regulation which was found to be violated.

b. A description of the nature and location of the violation.

c. A description of what is required to abate or correct the violation

d. Areasonable period of time during which the violation must be abated or

corrected.

At any time within ten (10) days after receipt of an abatement order, anyone affected by
the order may advise the Safety Director in writing of any objections to the terms and
conditions of the order, Upon receipt of such objections, the Safety Director shall act
promptly to hold a hearing with all interested and/or responsible parties in an effort to
resolve any objections. Following such hearing, the Safety Director shall, within three
(3) working days, issue and abatement order and such subsequent order shall be binding
on all parties and shall be final.

Penalties.

No civil or criminal penalties shall be issued against any official, employee, or any other
person for failure to comply with safety and health standards or any rules or regulations
issued pursuant to the Program Plan.
Any employee, regardless of status, who willfully and/or repeatedly violates, or causes to
be violated, any safety and health standard, rule, regulation or any abatement order shall
be subject to disciplinary action by the appointing authority. It shall be the duty of the
appointing authority to administer discipline by taking action in one of the following
ways as appropriate and warranted:

a. Oral reprimand.

b. Written reprimand.

c. Suspension for three (3) or more working days.

d. Termination of employment.

119



4-215. Confidentiality of Privileged Information. All information obtained by or

reported to the Safety Director pursuant to this plan of operation or the legislation (ordinance, or
executive order) enabling this Occupational Safety and Health Program Plan which contains or
might reveal information which is otherwise privileged shall be considered confidential. Such
information may be disclosed to other officials or employees concerned with carrying out this
Program Plan or when relevant in any proceeding under this Program Plan. Such information
may also be disclosed to the Commissioner of Labor and Workforce Development on their
authorized representatives in carrying out their duties under the Tennessee Occupational Safety
and Healthy Act of 1972.

4-216. Discrimination Investigation and Sanctions. The Rule of Tennessee
Department of Labor and Workforce Development Occupational Safety and Health,
DISCRIPIMATION AGAINST EMPLOYEES EXERCISING RIGHTS UNDER THE
OCCUPATIONAL SAFERTY AND HEALTH ACT OF 1972 0800-0 1-08, as authorized by
T.C.A., Title 50. The agency agrees that any employee who believes that they have been
discriminated against or discharged in violation of Tenn. Code Ann § 50-3-409 can file a
complaint with their agency / Safety Director within 30 days, after the alleged discrimination

occurred. Also, the agency agrees the employees have a right to file their complaint with the
Commissioner of Labor and Workforce Development within the same 30-day period. The
Commissioner of Labor and Workforce Development may investigate such complaints, make
recommendations, and/or issue a written notification of a violation.

4-217. Compliance with other Laws not Excused.

1. Compliance with any other law, statute, ordinance, or executive order, which regulates
safety and health in employment and places of employment, shall not excuse the
employer, employee, or any other person from compliance with the law, statue,
ordinance, or executive order, as applicable, is specifically repealed.

4-218. Appendices.
1. Notice to all employees of the City of Tullahoma.

The Tennessee Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1972 provides job safety and
health protection for Tennessee workers through the promotion of safe and healthful
working conditions. Under a plan reviewed by the Tennessee Department of Labor and
Workforce Development, this government, as an employer, is responsible for
administering the Act to its employees. Safety and health standards are the same as State
standards and jobsite inspections will be conducted to ensure compliance with the Act.

120



Employees shall be furnished conditions of employment and a place of employment free
from recognized hazards that are causing or are likely to cause death or serious injury or
harm to employees.

Each employee shall comply with occupational safety and health standards and all rules,
regulations, and orders issued pursuant to this Program Plan which are applicable to his
or her own actions and conduct.

Each employee shall be notified by the placing upon bulletin boards or other places of
common passage of any application for a temporary variance from any standard or
regulation.

Each employee shall be given the opportunity to participate in any hearing which
concerns an application for a variance from a standard.

Any employee who may be adversely affected by a standard or variance issued pursuant
to this Program Plan may file a petition with the Safety Director or City Administrator.

Any employee who has been exposed or is being exposed to toxic materials or harmful
physical agents in concentrations or at levels in excess of that provided by an applicable
standard shall be notified by the employer and informed of such exposure and corrective
action being taken.

Subject to regulations issued pursuant to this Program Plan, any employee or authorized
representative of employees shall be given the right to request an inspection.

No employee shall be discharged or discriminated against because such employee has
filed any complaint or instituted or caused to be instituted any proceedings or inspection
under, or relating to, this Program Plan.

Any employee who believes they have been discriminated against or discharged in
violation of these sections may, within thirty (30) days after such violation occurs, have
an opportunity to appear in a hearing before Safety Director or City Administrator for
assistance in obtaining relief or to file a complaint with the Commissioner of Labor and
Workforce Development alleging such discrimination.

A copy of the Occupational Safety and Health Program Plan for the Employee’s of the
City of Tullahoma is available for inspection by any employee at City Hall during regular
office hours.

2. Statement of Financial Resource Availability. The City of Tullahoma has sufficient
financial resources available or will make sufficient financial resources available as may
be required in order to administer and staff its Occupational Safety and Health Program
Plan and to comply with standards.

3. Accident Reporting Procedures.

121



a.

Employees shall report all accidents, injuries, or illnesses to their supervisors as
soon as possible, but no later than two (2) hours after the occurrence, The
supervisor will provide the Safety Director and/or record keeper with the name of
the injured and a brief description of the accident or illness as soon as possible,
but no later that four (4) hours, after the accident or injury occurred or the time of
the first report of illness.
All fatalities or accidents involving the hospitalization of three (3) or more
employees shall be reported to the Safety Director and/or record keeper
immediately and follow with a written report within four (4) hours and their
occurrence. The supervisor will then make a thorough investigation of the
accident or illness ( with the assistance of the Safety Director, if needed) and will
complete a written report on the accident or illness and forward it to the Safety
Director within seventy-two (72) hours after the accident, injury or first report of
illness and will provide one (1) copy of the written report to the recordkeeper.
Since Workers Compensation Form 6A or OSHA NO. 301 Form must be
completed; all reports submitted in writing to the person responsible for
recordkeeping shall include the following information as a minimum:
1. Accident location if different from employer’s mailing address and state
whether accident occurred on premises owned or operated by employer.
ii. Name, home address, age, sex, and occupation (regular job title) of injured
or ill employee.
iii. Title of the department or division in which the injured or ill employee is
normally employed.
iv. Specific description of what the employee was doing when injured.
v. Specific description of how the accident occurred.
vi. A description of the injury or illness in detail and the part of the body
affected.
vii. Name of the object or substance which directly injured the employee.
viii. Date and time of injury or diagnosis or illness.
ix. Name and address of physician, if applicable.
x. If employee was hospitalized, name and address of hospital.
xi. Date of report.

122



ORDINANCE NO. 1658

DATE: July 28, 2025
TO: Board of Mayor and Aldermen
FROM: Susan Wilson, Finance Director

Jason Quick, City Administrator
SUBJECT: Amend FY2024-25 Budget, First Reading

BACKGROUND

As required by Tennessee Code Annotated, at the end of every year, we incorporate all
changes made by the Board of Mayor and Aldermen and departmental transfers into a
final budget document which is presented for formal amendment and adoption. Attached
is the budget ordinance for the first reading, with amended detail for the city’s operating
funds. Information will be updated as it becomes available on subsequent readings and
the Tullahoma City School funds will be added prior to presentation for third reading.
Detail results are unaudited and estimated to year end based on information received to
date. A public hearing will be held prior to the third and final reading.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval of the FY25 amended budget as presented on first reading.

FISCAL IMPACT
Finalizes and closes out FY25 budget.

ATTACHMENTS
Ordinance 1658

123



ORDINANCE No. 1658

AN ORDINANCE OF THE

CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 1632

ADOPTING THE ANNUAL BUDGET AND TAX RATE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2024 AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

Tennessee Code Annotated § 9-1-116 requires that all funds of the State of
Tennessee and all its political subdivisions shall first be appropriated before being
expended and that only funds that are available shall be appropriated; and

the Municipal Budget Law of 1982 requires that the governing body of each
municipality adopt and operate under an annual budget ordinance presenting a
financial plan with at least the information required by that state statute, that no
municipality may expend any moneys regardless of the source except in
accordance with a budget ordinance and that the governing body shall not make
any appropriation in excess of estimated available funds; and

the Board of Mayor and Aldermen has published the annual operating budget and
budgetary comparisons of the proposed budget with the prior year (actual) and the
current year (estimated) in a newspaper of general circulation not less than ten
(10) days prior to the meeting where the Board will consider final passage of the
budget.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF MAYOR AND
ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1:

That the governing body projects anticipated revenues from all sources and
appropriates planned expenditures for each department, board, office or other
agency of the municipality, herein presented together with the actual annual
receipts and expenditures of the last preceding fiscal year and the estimated
annual expenditures for the current fiscal year, and from those revenues and
unexpended and unencumbered funds as follows: for fiscal year 2025, and
including the projected ending balances for the budget year, the actual ending
balances for the most recent ended fiscal year and the estimated ending balances
for the current fiscal years:

124



Revenues

Local Taxes

Iﬁtergovermnental

Licenses & Permits

Fees & Fines

Miscellaneous

Fund Balance Utilized
Total Revenues

Appropriations
General Government
Police Department
Fire Department
Public Works
Parks & Recreation
Debt Service
Education

Tullahoma Municipal Airport

TAEDC
Other Agencies
Transfer to Capital

Transfer to Solid Waste
Total Appropriations

Revenues

Commercial Garbage
Recycling & Other

Transfer from General Fund

Fund Balance Utilized
Total Revenues

Appi‘opriations
Administration
Commercial Garbage
Residential Garbage
Brush & Leaves
Recycling

Total Appropriations

29,607,419 29,682,732 31,336,961
3,888,878 4,636,895 4,725,585
183,587 210,287 298,765
462,512 525,650 597,000
574,415 644,021 757,902

0 663,900 657,060
34,716,812 36,363,485 38,373,273
2,627,130 2,891,977 3,097,616
3,673,353 5,021,028 5,380,718
3,297,732 3,498,906 3,825,028
2,576,635 3,673,282 3,754,668
2,646,041 2,805,803 3,173,191
1,259,851 1,246,456 1,733,215
13,854,215 13,854,215 14,116,222
165,560 156,000 156,000
275,268 300,000 300,000
463,169 525,274 465,995
326,500 279,671 142,233
2,192,880 2,110,873 2,228,386
33,358,333 36,363,485 38,373,273

770,240 738,500 738,500
113,562 247,000 247,000
2,192,880 2,110,873 2,228,386
0 118,374 126,138
3,076,682 3,214,747 3,340,024
260,717 284,746 308,545
663,158 721,079 747,057
844,146 878,444 943,338
571,248 626,752 583,117
686,269 703,726 757,968
3,025,539 3,214,747 3,340,024

125



VRe’v’éleues kk
Drug Fund

Tullahoma Industrial Development Board

Airport

TAEDC

Debt Service Fund
USDA/UDAG

Equipment Reserve

Building Reserve

Internal Service Fund

City Capital Projects

TCS School General Purpose
TCS School Federal Projects
TCS School Nutrition Dept.
TCS School Capital Projects
TCS School Debt Service
TCS School Kool Kids

TCS School "Little Cats" Daycare

Appropriations
Drug Fund

Tullahoma Industrial Development Board

Airport

TAEDC

Debt Service Fund
USDA/UDAG

Equipment Reserve

Building Reserve

Internal Service Fund

Clty Capital Projects

TCS School General Purpose
TCS School Federal Projects
TCS School Nutition Dept.
TCS School Capital Projects
TCS School Debt Service
TCS School Kool Kids

TCS School "Little Cats" Daycare

100,140
84,010
1,908,428
354,395
3,886,852
362,668
730,273
1,139,175
2,567,468
3,784,555
N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

20,006
71,757
1,645,527
323,317
3,883,045
333,519
730,273
669,067
2,365,234
2,088,943
N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

126

95,275
83,725
1,629,484
425,376
4,507,099
677,700
1,047,214
1,890,741
3,154,939
4,664,309
44,462,987
N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

95,275
83,725
1,629,484
425,376
4,507,099
677,700
1,047,214
1,890,741
3,154,939
4,186,437
41,930,604
N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

72,275
67,850
1,586,488
438,025
4,649,010
682,700
844,555
992,574
3,170,404
15,188,992
43,595,194
2,793,739
3,130,534
19,040,155
3,175,795
208,000
243,224

72,275
67,850
1,586,488
438,025
4,649,010
682,700
844,555
992,574
3,170,404
15,188,992
43,595,194
2,793,739
3,130,534
19,040,155
3,175,795
208,000
243,224



SECTION 2: At the end of the fiscal year 2024, the governing body estimates fund balances or
deficits as follows:

Fund Estimated Fund Balance at June 30, 2024
General Fund $ 8,604,119
Solid Waste Fund $ 412,669
Drug Fund $ 92315
Tullahoma IDB $ 71,000
Airport $ 372,000
TAEDC $§ 78,000
USDA/UDAG Revolving Funds $ 741,000
Equipment Reserve $ 630,000
Building Reserve $ 725,000
Internal Service Fund $ 1,100,000
City Capital Projects $ 4,817,000
School General Purpose Fund $ 8,726,632
School Federal Projects $ 148,790
School Cafeteria $ 1,896,675
School ESP $ 535,024

SECTION 3: That the governing body herein certifies that the condition of its sinking funds, if
applicable, are compliant pursuant to its bond covenants, and recognizes that the
municipality has outstanding bonded and other indebtedness as follows:

Debt Debt Principal ‘ FY2025 FY2025
Instrument Authorized & | Outstanding at Principal Interest
Unissued June 30,2024 Payment Payment
City 2009 Loan $0 $563,000 $52,000 $25,335
City 2013 Loan | $0 $1,498,000 - $97,000 $44,940
City 2015 Loan $0 $2,124,000 $122.,000 $63,720
City 2016 Loan $0 $ 720,000 $350,000 $17,064
City 2017 Loan $0 $6,276,000 $325,000 $149,781
City 2023 Loan $5,763,000 $1,737,000 $ 0 $183,375
School 2009 Loan | $0 $6,597,000 $537,000 $296,865
School 2013 Loan | §0 $171,000 $84,000 $3,780
133‘3}1%01 2020 Ref | $0 $4,585,000 $1,100,000 $191,550
ondas
School 2022 Bonds | $0 $13,170,000 $555,000 $407,600

127



SECTION 4:

SECTION 5:

SECTION 6:

SECTION 7:

SECTION 8:

SECTION 9:

During the coming fiscal year (2025) the governing body has pending and planned
capital projects with proposed funding as follows:

Pending Capital Total Project Project Expense Project Expense
Projects Expense Financed by Financed by Debt
Revenues/Reserves Proceeds
Municipal Buildings 1,946,146 65,128 1,881,018
Storm Water Projects 2,945.125 2,945,125 0
Parks Projects 1,889,159 0 1,899,159
Streets Projects 2,358,641 1,171,881 1,186,760
Sidewalks/Greenways 1,555,956 1,070,990 484,966
Airport Projects 433,078 433,078 0
Housing Rehabilitation 599,370 599,370 0
Misc. Projects 3,461,517 2,488,079 973,438

No appropriation listed above may be exceeded without an amendment of the
budget ordinance as required by the Municipal Budget Law of 1982 (TCA § 6-56-
208). In addition, no appropriation may be made in excess of available funds
except to provide for an actual emergency threatening the health, property or lives
of the inhabitants of the municipality and declared by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of at
least a quorum of the governing body in accord with Tennessee Code Annotated §
6-56-205.

Money may be transferred from one appropriation to another in the same fund by
the City Administrator, subject to such limitations and procedures as set by the
Board of Mayor and Aldermen pursuant to Tennessee Code Annotated § 6-56-209.
Any resulting transfers shall be reported to the governing body at its next regular
meeting and entered into the minutes.

A detailed financial plan will be attached to this budget and become part of this
budget ordinance. In addition, the published operating budget and budgetary
comparisons shown by fund with beginning and ending fund balances and the
number of full-time equivalent employees required by Tennessee Code Annotated
§ 6-56-206 will be attached.

There is hereby levied a property tax of $1.9532 per $100 of assessed value on all
real and personal property.

This annual operating and capital budget ordinance and supporting documents
shall be submitted to the Comptroller of the Treasury or Comptroller’s Designee
for approval if the City has debt issued pursuant to Title 9, Chapter 21 of the
Tennessee Code Annotated within fifteen (15) days of its adoption. This budget
shall not become the official budget for the fiscal year until such budget is

128



SECTION 10:

SECTION 11:

Passed on First Reading:
Passed on Second Reading:

Passed on Third Reading, as amended:

approved by the Comptroller of the Treasury or Comptroller’s Designee in
accordance with Title 9, Chapter 21 of the Tennessee Code Annotated (the
“Statutes”.) If the Comptroller of the Treasury or Comptroller’s Designee
determines that the budget does not comply with the Statutes, the Governing Body
shall adjust its estimates or make additional tax levies sufficient to comply with the -
Statutes or as directed by the Comptroller of the Treasury or Comptroller’s
Designee. If the City does not have such debt outstanding, it will file this annual
operating and capital budget ordinance and supporting documents with the
Comptroller of the Treasury or Comptroller’s Designee.

All unencumbered balances of appropriations remaining at the end of the fiscal
year shall lapse and revert to the respective fund balances.

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with any provision of this
ordinance are hereby repealed.

CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE:;

Charles Lynn Sebourn, Mayor

ATTEST:

Lori Ashley, City Recorder

APPROVED AS TO FORM & LEGALITY

Steve Worsham, City Attorney

129



31100
31320
31330
31500
31611
31612
31710
31720
31800
31912
31920

32210
32220
32300
32610
32620
32640
32645
32660
32690
32700
32720
32725

33210
33430
33470
33510
33511
33530
33540
33551
33552
33555
33558
33570
33590
33591

34111
34210
34217
34220
34221
34230
34240
34245
34321
34720
34721
34722
34723
34724
34725
34726
34727

City of Tullahoma
GENERAL FUND

FY2024-2025 BUDGET

REVENUES

LOCAL TAXES

Property Taxes
Property Tax Penalty
Property Tax Costs
Tax Equivalent
Sales Tax- CC
Sales Tax-FC
Wholesale Beer Tax
Wholesale Liquor Tax
Business Taxes
Cable TV Franchise
Hotel/Motel Tax

LICENSES & PERMITS
Beer Licenses
Liquor Licenses
Burglary Alarm Permits
Building Permits
Mowing Fees
Stormwater Permit
Utility Cut Permits
Zoning Permits
Inspection Fees
Mobile Home Permit
Solicitation Permits
Farmer's Market permits

INTERGOVERNMENTAL
Federal Assistance-CARES
Supplemental Pay
State Grants
State Sales Tax (per capita)
Telecommunications Tax
State Beer Tax (per capita)
Mixed Drink Tax

TOTAL:

State Gasoline Tax (per capita)
Street Transportation (per capita)

State Street Contract
State Trans. Modernization
Sports Betting (per capita)
Excise Tax

TVA Gross Receipts (per capita)

TOTAL:

FEES, COMMISSIONS & FINES
Duplicating Services & check chgs

Reserve Police Services
Background check fees
Special Fire Fees

CPR Fees - Fire Dept

Co Fees and Commission
Accident Report Charges
Registry Fees

Cemetery Burial Permit
Swimming Pool Receipts
Concessions
Recreation-Program Fees
League Fees- Girls Softball
Recreation Retail ltems
League Fees-NFL Football

League Fees-Jr. NBA

League Fees-Adult Baseball

FY22-23 FY22-23
Amended Actual

Budget Revenues
11,198,359 11,258,072
76,163 68,928
5,000 9,323
832,994 813,776
15,075,000 15,119,244
92,000 97,074
606,670 581,276
395,000 453,783
615,000 623,854
253,863 223,400
350,000 358,688
29,500,049 29,607,419
8,515 7,883
14,500 15,245
6,250 2,125
141,962 130,660
1,000 0
11,960 13,150
0 0
9,000 10,750
1,000 150
1,800 1,550
400 200
2,500 1.875
198,887 183,587
0 0
44,000 44,000
20,000 28,541
2,375,000 2,413,840
25,341 29,323
9,559 9,287
140,500 156,309
732,204 708,808
37,220 37,261
95,000 82,232
0 0
30,509 33,172
92,108 100,887
240,000 245218
3,841,441 3,888,878
100 384
2,000 3,814
900 186
10,000 10,000
0 0
25,000 29,303
1,000 439
3,200 3,300
1,100 1,150
125,000 122,009
100,000 118,120
10,000 5,130
0 1,370
2,500 2,400
4,000 0
12,000 14,930
12,000 11,500

130

FY23-24 FY23-24
Amended YTD(04/24)
Budget Actual
11,408,748 11,583,646
76,163 63,913
5,000 30,369
825,994 500,433
15,119,244 13,258,500
88,128 63,939
618,803 468,245
405,000 397,274
563,196 174,356
244,099 57,380
328,357 286,751
29,682,732 26,884,806
8,515 9,925
14,650 13,883
100 7,950
161,962 144,562
750 0
11,960 12,105
0 600
8,200 23,450
150 75
1,800 0
300 3,085
1.900 1,360
210,287 216,995
0 0
0 22,400
763,644 672,024
2,440,680 1,847,245
33,121 21,621
9,559 8,940
143,252 119,400
711,865 601,974
37,220 27,990
130,869 3,056
. 0 1,139
30,509 27,036
92,108 29,650
244,068 187,447
4,636,895 3,569,922
- 200 415
-8,000 0
500 363
10,000 16,503
1,000 1,289
30,000 28,286
500 395
3,200 3,000
1,100 1,300
125,000 75,662
130,000 81,535
5,500 4,789
1,300 5,845
2,500 659
0 0
14,000 17,987
12,000 1,995

FY24-25
Estimated

Budget

11,641,923
76,163
5,000
885,994
16,373,821
89,891
610,340
425,250
656,123
244,099
328,357
31,336,961

8,515
14,650
8,000
220,000
750
20,000
7,000
14,000
150
1,800
2,000
1.900
298,765

0

77,800
635,500
2,550,000
33,121
9,356
154,000
711,865
37,220
130,869
9,000
36,610
92,108
248,136
4,725,585

300

0

500
25,000
4,000
30,000
500
3,200
1,100
170,000
140,000
5,500
5,000
1,000

0

14,000
5,000

%
Change
Budgets

2.0%
0.0%
0.0%
7.3%
8.3%
2.0%
-1.4%
5.0%
16.5%
0.0%
0.0%
5.6%

0.0%
0.0%
7900.0%
35.8%
0.0%
67.2%
70.7%
0.0%
0.0%
566.7%
0.0%
42.1%



34728
34729
34730
34740
34741
35110
35125
35130
35131
35140
35150
35160

36100
36310
36340
36350
36512
36731
36732
36733
36741
36743
36746
36780
36950
37812
36990

37800
37799
37999

41100
141

142

161

220
235
252
253
254
255 .
280
310
320
510
799
900
949

41100

111

Red Cross Training Fees
l.eague fees- Adult basketball
Athletic Field Usage Fees
Community Center Passes
Donations-Parks Programs
City Court Fines

AHO Penalties

Impoundment Charges
Spaying & Neutering

Drug Related Fines (General)
Law Enforcement Fines
County Fines

TOTAL:

OTHER REVENUE
Interest Earnings
Sale of Land
Sale/Cemetery Lots
Insurance Recoveries
Sale/Gasoline
Projects & Events Donation
Animal Control Donations
Animal Control Events Donations
Animal Shelter Building Fund
Fireworks Sponsorships
Donated Land
ISWA Reimbursement
Tree Fund Donations
Housing COPS Grant
Miscellaneous Receipts

TOTAL:

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES:

USE OF RESERVES/GRANTS
Appropriated Fund Balance
Appropriated Restricted Reserve
Department specific reserves

TOTAL:

TOTAL REVENUES & RESERVES UTILIZED:

EXPENDITURES

LEGISLATIVE (01)

OASI

Health Insurance -Retirees
Board Salary

Printing & Publication
Membership & Dues

Legal Services

Auditing Services
Professional Services
Information Technology
Travel/Training

Office Supplies

Operating Supplies
Operating Insurance
General Expense

Capital Qutlay

Purchase of Equipment - small

TOTAL:

COURT SYSTEM (02)

Salaries-Fulltime

3,500 5,255 1,550

0 0 0

0 0 0

75,000 67,914 75,000

0 30 0

75,000 47,628 92,800

500 4,800 2,000

3,000 150 500

3,000 9,890 6,000

4,000 869 1,000

3,000 1,941 2,000

9 0 0

475,800 462,512 525,650

200,000 220,336 421,949

20,000 20,152 0

10,000 16,000 10,000

62,475 62,475 17,072

60,000 72,903 55,000

5,000 0 0

30,000 22,802 30,000

5,000

0 46,677 0

30,000 18,750 25,000

0 0 0

4,800 4,800 0

1,000 1,350 1,000

35,000 45,441 39,000

42,062 42,730 40,000

500,337 574,415 644,021

34,516,514 34,716,812 35,699,585

450,000 0 663,900

0 0 0

0 0 0

450,000 0 663,900

34,966,514 34,716,812 36,363,485
FY22-23 FY22-23 FY23-24

Amended Actual Amended

Budget Expenses Budget

3,000 2,902 2,878

89,092 84,951 99,591

37,614 37,361 37,614

28,700 27,801 24,411

8,565 7,429 8,785

90,000 88,550 95,000

23,500 20,500 28,200

70,000 60,742 50,000

25,125 11,594 55,125

23,800 22,696 18,800

700 696 800

2,350 978 2,000

20,201 20,110 13,901

7,415 5,098 7,500

0 0 0

0 0 0

430,062 391,410 444,605
FY22-23 FY22-23 FY23-24

Amended Actual Amended

Budget Expenses Budget

20,000 19,753 20,340

131

3,904
3,400

0
71,896
0
71,581
0

87
6,940
1,040
1,641
0
400,512

563,623
0

6,900
25,767
42,343
16,000
28,827
0

0

1,650

0

1,600
1,850

0
41,713
730,273

31,802,508

oo o

31,802,508

FY23-24

YTD(04/24)
Actual

2,280

69,312

30,381

16,255

7,703

92,844

12,010

17,404

16,966

10,899

202

1,556

13,779

4,688

0

0
296,279

FY23-24
YTD(04/24)
Actual
16,458

2,500
3,500

0
75,000
10,000
80,000

0

200
7,500
1,200
2,000

0

597,000

509,000
0
10,000
15,702
55,000
0

40,000
5,000

0
25,000
7,200

0

1,000
50,000
40,000
757,902

37,716,214

644,560
0
12,500
657,060

38,373,273

FY24-25
Estimated
Budget
4,378
89,891
61,000
19,911
10,285
103,000
42,500
32,600
49,475
18,800
800
2,000
41,932
7,500
7,200
0
491,272

FY24-25
Estimated

Budget
21,609

20.6%

0.0%
-8.0%
0.0%
33.3%
0.0%

Fedok

0.0%

Kk

0.0%
28.2%
0.0%
17.7%

5.6%

-2.9%

E23d

-1.0%
5.53%

%
Change
Budgets

52.1%
-9.7%
62.2%
-18.4%
17.1%
8.4%
50.7%
-34.8%
-10.2%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
201.6%
0.0%

Fkk

10.5%

%
Change

Budgets
6.2%



112
135
141
142
143
147
190
220
255
280
310
510

41500

111
112
135
141
142
143
147
190
220
235
245
251
255
262
280
310
331
510
540
940
949

41500

111
112
114
135
141
142
143
147
190
211
220
235
245
251
255
280
310
510
540
940
949

41500

111

Purchase of Equipment - small

Salaries - Overtime
Salaries-longevity
OASI

Health & Life Insurance
Retirement
Unemployment
Personal Services
Printing & Publication
Information technology
Travel & Training
Office Supplies
Operating Insurance

TOTAL:

CITY ADMINISTRATOR (03)

Salaries-Fulltime
Salaries- Overtime
Salaries - longevity

OASI

Health & Life Insurance
Retirement
Unemployment Insurance
Contractual Services
Printing & Publication
Membership & Dues
Telephone Service

Hiring Expense
Technology

Maintenance & Repair
Training

Office Supplies

Gas

Operating Insurance
Depreciation Transfer
Purchase of Equipment - large

EINANCE DIRECTOR (04)

Salaries-Fulitime
Salaries-Overtime
Salaries-Parttime
Salaries - longevity
OASI

Health & Life Ins.
Retirement

. Unemployment Insurance

Professional Services
Postage

Printing & Publication
Membership & Dues
Telephone Service

Hiring Expense

Information Technology
Training

Office Supplies

Operating Insurance
Depreciation Transfer
Purchase of Equipment - large
Purchase of Equipment - small

TOTAL:

HUMAN RESOURCES (06)

_ Salaries-Fulltime

TOTAL:

FY22-23
Amended
Budget
199,656
5,198
0
16,328
41,902
19,775
110
0
300
2,110
750
0
1,834
260
5,888
300
240
3,063

FY22-23
Amended
Budget
254,396
0
33,370
8,523
22,680
51,670
18,491
299
5,000
75
3,600
850
700
440
26,891
2,930
3,071
3,667

0
436,653

FY22-23
Amended

Budget
143,000

0
900
2,854
5,148
1,429
0
16,500
100
5,375
111
161
673
53,004

FY22-23
Actual
Expenses
196,649
5,170
0
14,990
35,777
17,190
76
0
245
2,110
427
0
1,833
230
5,887
190
143
3,060
0
0

Y
283,977

FY22-23
Actual
Expenses
243,404
0
19,049
8,523
19,994
51,670
17,657

398,905

FY22-23
Actual

Exgenses
141,943

132

0

365
2,846
5,147
1,491
50
16,500
200
6,065
300
200
812
54,316

FY23-24
Amended

Budget

195,386

130

2,220

12,421

25,529

11,901

110

9,940

317

1,650

800

800

1,850

470

7,000

300

240

3,725

0

0

Q
274,789

FY23-24
Amended

Budget

355,055

300

4,122

2,843

25,499

68,312

23,960

300

5,500

75

4,100

850

500

440

26,891

2,500

3,000

4,034

0

0

0

528,281

FY23-24
Amended

Budget
151,004

0

275
2,274
4,290
1,229
11
13,327
156
5,976
121
47
811
44,975

FY23-24
YTD(04/24)
Actual
149,417
130
1,500
11,114
21,119
11,099
62
9,940
317
584
232
464
1,847
0
6,520

9
218,149

FY23-24
YTD(04/24)
Actual
301,756
0
4,121
2,791
22,734
55,800
19,851
122
4,883
0
3,728
300
0
362
23,317
1,000
2,094
3,820
0
0
0
446,679

FY23-24
YTD(04/24)
Actual
147,591

0

365
2,932
5,147
1,589
50
16,500
150
8,000
1,500
350
758
58,950

FY24-25
Estimated

Budget

223,379

200

1,580

17,225

34,186

16,144

110

0

350

1,650

200

500

350

470

6,900

400

240

6,272

0

0

0
310,156

FY24-25
Estimated

Budget

363,759

0

0

2,853

25,446

76,566

25,682

300

38,000

0

4,100

850

0

440

27,391

1,450

3,000

4,278

0

0

0

574,116

FY24-25
Estimated

Budget
92,145

0.0%
3.0%
0.0%
6.6%
0.0%
0.0%
-25.0%
31.9%
400.0%
75.0%
-6.7%
8.5%



114
135
141
142
143
147
190
211
220
235
245
251
252
255
280
281
282
310
510
799
940
949

41500

11
112
114
135
141
142
143
147
172
211
220
235
245
251
254
255
280
310
510
540
940
949

41500

111
135
141
142
143
147
220
235
245
251
255
256
257
280
320

Salaries-Parttime
Salaries - longevity
OASI

Health Insurance
Retirement
Unemployment Insurance
Professional Services
Postage

Printing & Publication
Membership & Dues
Telephone Service

* Hiring Expense

Wellness Initiatives
Information Technology
Training (H.R.)

l.oss Control Programs
Citywide training

Office Supplies
Operating Insurance
Special Events

Purchase of Equipment - large
Purchase of Equipment - small

CITY RECORDER (08)

Salaries-Fulltime
Salaries-Overtime
Salaries-Part time
Salaries - longevity
OASI

Health & Life Ins.
Retirement
Unemployment Insurance
Election Expense
Postage

Printing & Publication

~ Membership & Dues

Telephone Service
Hiring Expense
Contracted Services
Information Technology
Training

Office Supplies
Operating Insurance
Depreciation Transfer

Purchase of Equipment - large
Purchase of Equipment - smali

COMMUNITY DEV. SERVICES(090)

Salaries-Fulitime
Salaries-longevity
OASI

Health Insurance
Retirement
Unemployment
Printing and Publications
Membership & Dues
Telephone Service
Hiring Expense
Information Technology
Go! Green Initiatives

* Arts Council

Training
Operating Supplies

0 0
4,575 4,575
10,899 10,847
27,860 27,859
10,530 10,272
99 40
18,800 15,705
50 0
2,600 1,419
1,567 1,667
500 216
0 0
3,950 3,935
4,500 3,194
4,000 3,872
11,050 10,205
6,200 4,750
2,212 2,212
3,200 3,016
7,200 6,602
0 0
0 0
262,792 252,229
FY22-23 FY22-23
Amended Actual
Budget Expenses
202,000 201,972
0 0
0 0
6,345 6,000
15,718 15,705
35,016 32,615
15,301 11,417
200 87
3,548 3,532
16,800 15,885
2,700 1,090
600 35
100 0
400 333
0 0
17,023 17,022
3,065 2,743
2,116 2,116
2,646 2,645
0 0
0 0
1,140 1,140
324,718 314,338
FY22-23 FY22-23
Amended Actual
Budget Expenses
24,443 23,923
990 900
1,946 1,892
6,200 5,148
1,775 1,703
55 0
2,600 603
200 0
615 0
0 0
600 0
4,000 1,467
10,000 8,508
1,780 65
200 0

133

7,000
2,000
11,705
27,828
9,069
99

0

50
562
1,196
415
302
6,011
8,000
4,555
3,848
5,403
2,145
3,621
10,700
0

9
255,513

FY23-24
Amended

Budget

158,684

0

0

1,085

12,222

39,151

11,632

200

3,000

13,700

2,800

600

100

210

7,772

16,730

2,190

2,500

3,331

0

0

0

275,907

FY23-24
Amended

Budget
25,699
240
1,984
5,147
1,884
55
1,500
200
0
0
2,000
3,000
8,000
1,500
200

6,851
650
11,594
19,010
6,398
41

0

0

0

471
120
301
6,010
7,744
4,246
186
3,680
1,580
3,621
7,132
0

9
227,226

FY23-24
YTD(04/24)
Actual
124,283
0
227
975
9,575
22,305
9,272
81
0
13,449
560
579
120
210
7,772
16,730
1,847
2,351
3,331
0
0
Q0
213,667

FY23-24
YTD(04/24)
Actual
20,858
150
1,603
3,861
1,547
0
636
0
0
88
1,866
589
1,744
352
0

0
190
7,064
14,563
6,607
99
18,050
0

0
1,196
500
1,200
1,011
3,000
4,750
4,750
630
2,200
6,156
13,450
0

0
177,561

FY24-25
Estimated

Budget

71,263

0

0

723

5,628

9,500

5,110

200

4,000

15,885

418

300

500

210

11,443

17,868

3,000

2,300

3,731

0

0

0

152,078

FY24-25
Estimated

Budget
75,186
300
5,775
18,800
5,391
55

500
200
400

0
1,000
0
6,000
3,800
200

-100.0%
-90.5%
-39.7%
-47.7%
-27.1%

0.0%
-100.0%
-100.0%

0.0%

20.5%
297.4%
-83.2%
-62.5%
4.3%
23.4%
-88.3%
2.6%
70.0%
25.7%

ke

ke

-30.5%

%
Change

Budgets
-55.1%

dedkek

Kk

-33.4%
-54.0%
75.7%
-56.1%
0.0%
33.3%
15.9%
-85.1%
-50.0%
400.0%
0.0%
47.2%
6.8%
37.0%
-8.0%
12.0%

Kk

%
Change
Budgets

192.6%
25.0%
191.1%
265.3%
186.1%
0.0%
-66.7%
0.0%

*k

dew

-50.0%
-100.0%
-25.0%
183.3%
0.0%



510
540
798
799
940
949

41600

111
135
141
142
143
147
190
195
245
251
255
257
280
320
331
510
940
940
949

41800

240
245
262
510
532
540
900
949

41700

111
112
135
141
142
143
147
190
191
220
235
240
244
245
251
255
257
262
265
266

Operating Insurance
Depreciation Transfer
Farmer's Market

Special Events

Purchase of Equipment - large
Purchase of Equipment - small

TOTAL:

TECHNOLOGY (07)

Salaries-Fulltime
Salaries-longevity

OASI

Health Insurance

Retirement

Unemployment Ins.
Professional Services
Security Prof. Services
Internet & Phone

Hiring Expense

Information Technology
Technology Licensing Fees
Training

Operating Supplies

Gas and Qil

Operating Insurance
Depreciation Transfer
Purchase of Equipment - large
Purchase of Equipment - small

TOTAL:

MUNICIPAL BUILDING (09)

~ Utility Service

Internet/Telephone
Maintenance & Repair
Operating Insurance

L & N Railroad Rent
Depreciation Transfer
Capital & Furnishings
Furnishing & Equipment

TOTAL:

PLANNING & CODES (08)

Salaries-Fulltime
Salaries-Overtime
Salaries - longevity
OASI

Health Insurance
Retirement
Unemployment Ins.
Other Professional Services
GIS/Mapping

Printing & Publications
Membership & Dues
Utilities - Electric
Utilities - Gas
Telephone Expense

- Hiring Expense

Information technology
Planning Commission
Maintenance & Repair
Property Maintenance
Repair of Building

820
0
3,500
7,400
0

0
67,124

FY22-23
Amended
Budget
120,540
1,549
10,191
26,057
9,494
65
22,200
0
8,000
181
15,976
35,380
1,000
2,500
0
1,000
0
0

0
254,133

FY22-23
Amended
Budget
20,000
8,820
22,180
11,137
4,200
140,000
0
0
206,337

FY22-23
Amended
Budget
296,801
50
9,580
25,102
68,302
22,165
200
10,710
855
9,200
1,100
3,763
1,800
7,520
950
9,547
7,000
3,800
0
5,500

803

0
1,936
6,765
0

0
53,712

FY22-23
Actual
Expenses
115,800
1,500
8,727
24,523
8,207
63
7,475
0
7,486
181
10,543
35,378
409

223,01

FY22-23
Actual
Expenses
16,948
8,797
15,005
8,502
3,734
140,000
0
0
192,986

FY22-23
Actual
Expenses
287,115
0
9,250
22,156
63,709
19,571
144
4,086
855
5,323
319
3,660
770
7,138
601
6,655
6,867
2,169
0
3,910

134

965
0
3,000
7,400
0

0
62,774

FY23-24
Amended

Budget

107,926

480

10,987

28,857

7,493

55

16,441

3,259

6,140

181

43,126

35,380

8,400

2,500

0

2,798

0

7,219

600

281,842

FY23-24
Amended

Budget

25,000

8,996

31,344

12,251

4,200

21,000

FY23-24
Amended

Budget

370,201

50

2,260

28,497

78,302

27,239

100

9,775

500

6,600

1,100

3,763

1,500

7,520

950

8,150

5,000

3,300

10,000

6,000

965

0

669
4,041
0

0
38,969

FY23-24
YTD(04/24)

Actual

25,699

0

1,860

1,547

1,872

47

4,021

3,259

1,187

58

28,287

5,437

FY23-24
YTD(04/24)
Actual
13,036
7,342
9,734
10,742
3,828

FY23-24
YTD(04/24)
Actual
230,353
0
800
17,481
39,983
16,171
123
9,518
392
3,516
535
2,948
550
5,926
423
5,541
2,026
376
0
5,877

1,081 12.0%
0 Fkk
1,000 -66.7%
8,000 8.1%
0 Fkek
g e
127,687 103.4%
FY24-25 %
Estimated Change
Budget Budgets
140,500 30.2%
240 -50.0%
10,767 -2.0%
21,200 -26.5%
10,074 34.4%
55 0.0%
36,000 119.0%
1,000 -69.3%
1,000 -83.7%
181 0.0%
35,000 -18.8%
45,000 27.2%
1,000 -88.1%
2,700 8.0%
250 dekk
5,500 96.6%
75,000 b
0 -100.0%
600 0.0%
386,066 37.0%
FY24-25 %
Estimated Change
Budget Budgets
18,000 -28.0%
9,176 2.0%
34,500 10.1%
14,300 16.7%
4,620 10.0%
150,000 614.3%
0 ko
1,000 -88.2%
231,596 108.1%
FY24-25 %
Estimated Change
Budget Budgets
371,287 0.3%
130 160.0%
1,900 -15.9%
28,559 0.2%
65,021 -17.0%
24,055 -11.7%
200 100.0%
1,000 -89.8%
2,200 340.0%
6,900 4.5%
1,500 36.4%
3,763 0.0%
1,500 0.0%
7,520 0.0%
950 0.0%
9,500 16.6%
7,000 40.0%
5,000 51.5%
10,000 0.0%
10,000 66.7%



280
310
320
326
331
510
540
940
949

42100

111
112
114
135
141
142
143
147
211
220
235
240
245
251
255
262
266
280
310
320
326
331
510
531
540
949
42129-940

42100

111
112
114
129
135
141
142
143
147
190
220
245
255
262
310
320
324
326
331
510
540

135

Training & Travel 6,050 4,073 7,771
Office Supplies 2,000 846 2,104
Operating Supplies 1,500 600 1,250
Uniforms 1,500 1,073 1,650
Gas 4,800 2,961 4,650
- Operating Insurance 8,337 7,505 14,427
Depreciation Transfer o] 0 0
Purchase of Equipment - large 0 0 0
Purchase of Equipment - small 2.300 2,200 0
TOTAL: 510,432 463,556 602,659
TOTAL ADMINISTRATION 2,844,976 2,627,130 2,891,977

FY22-23 FY22-23 FY23-24

POLICE ADMINISTRATION (10) Amended Actual Amended

Budget Expenses Budaget
Salaries-Fulltime 258,992 250,489 282,641
Salaries-O/T 500 0 0
Salaries-P/T 5,600 5,371 23,200
Salaries - longevity 12,200 12,200 4,200
OASI 21,473 20,149 27,528
Health Insurance 53,846 53,739 70,033
Retirement 16,373 14,546 26,069
Unemployment Ins. 360 94 360
Postage 130 29 130
Printing & Publications 3,000 2,416 2,000
Membership & Dues 600 515 700
Utility Services 19,770 19,743 18,270
Telephone Services 9,600 9,395 9,600
Hiring Expense 670 657 2,500
Information Technology 27,766 24,391 25,766
Maintenance & Repair 1,500 935 1,000
~ Building Repair 9,000 7,241 24,000
Travel & Training 0 0 0
Office Supplies 500 13 500
Operating Supplies 3,865 3,371 3,750
Uniforms 1,400 97 1,400
Gas 2,200 1,055 2,200
Operating Insurance 13,270 12,644 18,688
Radio Tower Rental 1,285 1,283 1,200
Depreciation Transfer 0 0 0
Purchase of Equipment - small 0 0 0
Restricted Capital ) 4]
TOTAL: 463,900 440,371 545,735

FY22-23 FY22-23 FY23-24

INVESTIGATION (11) Amended Actual Amended

Budget Expenses Budget

Salaries-Fulltime 260,153 251,777 348,138
Salaries - Overtime 10,776 10,646 17,000
Salaries-Parttime 9,800
Court Pay 300 0 0
Salaries - longevity 11,940 11,100 4,600
OASI 21,587 19,683 23,518
Health & Life Ins. 80,817 75,801 84,254
Retirement 20,492 17,313 19,322
Unemployment Ins. 200 84 200
Professional Services 2,437 1,123 500
Printing & Publication 500 349 500
Telephone Services 4,000 2,400 4,000
Information Technology 5,000 1,925 7,000
Maintenance & Repair 6,939 2,202 6,500
Office Supplies 600 185 500
Operating Supplies 1,900 1,853 2,200
Restricted Supplies 2,725 944 2,625
Uniforms 2,700 2,125 2,700
Gas 10,000 8,443 9,000
Operating Insurance 17,937 17,926 21,225
Depreciation Transfer 0 0 0

5,779
1,819
655
1,549
1,424
14,379
0

0

Q
368,144

1,983,412

FY23-24
YTD(04/24)
Actual
225,126
0
20,188
3,300
18,514
43,274
14,269
133
21
1,805
677
15,928
7,714
2,468
22,216
207
19,488
0

214
2,666
551

429
18,688
1,095

0

0

o]
418,971

FY23-24
YTD(04/24)
Actual
266,630
12,030
6,440
340
3,700
21,092
81,806
19,171
141
0
340
2,435
6,170
5,250
483
2,145
1,653
2,550
6,013
21,224
0

8,900
2,700
3,050
2,300
3,500
9,700

0

0

0
588,135

3,097,616

FY24-25
Estimated

Budget
345,000
0
26,200
4,200
28,718
76,500
22,300
360
130
2,000
1,000
22,000
9,700
1,000
36,300
1,000
26,500
0
500
3,800
2,700
2,250
18,500
1,400
0

0
0
632,058

FY24-25
Estimated
Budget
397,623
7,000
19,000
400
4,800
31,797
111,500
28,395
200
500
500
4,000
7,000
7,900
500
2,500
2,725
3,100
9,000
21,772
0

14.5%
28.3%
144.0%
39.4%
-24.7%
-32.8%

sk



940
949

42100

111
112
114
129
135
141
142
143
147
190
216
217
220
235
245
251
262
310
320
321
322
324
326
331
510
540
940

949

42100

114
135
141
147
326
510

42100

111
112
114
129
135
141
142
143
147
245
251
262
280
320
326
331
510

Purchase of Equipment - large
Purchase of Equipment - small

PATROL/TRAFFIC (12)

Salaries-Fulltime
Salaries-Overtime
Salaries-Parttime

Court Pay

Salaries - longevity
OASI

Health Insurance
Retirement
Unemployment Ins.
Professional Service
Radio Repair

Vehicle Tow Charges
Printing & Publication
Membership and Dues
Telephone Services
Hiring Expense
Maintenance & Repair
Office Supplies
Operating Supplies
Community Service Fund
SWAT Supplies

Law Enforcement Fines
Uniforms

Gas

Operating Insurance
Depreciation Transfer
Purchase of Equipment -large

Purchase of Equipment-small

SCHOOL PATROL (15)

Salaries-Parttime
Salaries-Bonus
OASI
Unemployment Ins.
Uniforms

Operating Insurance

SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICER (16)

Salaries-Fulltime
Salaries-Overtime
Salaries-Parttime
Salaries-Court Pay
Salaries-Bonus

- OASI

Health Insurance
Retirement
Unemployment Ins.
Telephone

Hiring Expense
Maintenance & Repair
Training & Travel
Operating Supplies
Uniforms

Gas

Operating Insurance

0 0
0 0
461,003 425,879
FY22-23 FY22-23
Amended Actual
Budget Expenses
1,282,209 1,264,609
123,007 114,440
16,000 11,056
9,500 6,511
42,610 40,350
111,495 105,591
323,857 320,454
100,856 94,512
1,680 690
2,500 2,400
1,500 1,015
1,200 225
3,000 2,711
400 300
7,000 6,721
6,000 5,575
52,000 47,856
800 468
4,300 4,036
450 0
0 0
1,400 736
24,000 21,289
72,520 68,272
138,070 137,879
130,000 130,000
0 0
25,700 3,534
2,482,054 2,391,231
FY22-23 FY22-23
Amended Actual
Budget Expenses
26,626 21,478
4,500 4,500
2,382 1,987
150 74
500 0
1.892 1.756
36,050 29,796
FY22-23 FY22-23
Amended Actual
Budget Expenses
56,354 52,524
14,400 12,929
5,000 4,782
100 0
2,140 1,900
5,401 5,110
18,563 18,023
3,547 3,270
55 35
600 480
0 0
2,185 2,172
0 0
0 0
325 0
2,000 1,828
2,884 2,539

136

0 0
0 9
563,582 459,513
FY23-24 FY23-24
Amended YTD(04/24)
Budget Actual
1,495,467 1,005,750
111,907 102,599
0 0
9,500 8,355
11,960 6,400
128,410 82,720
433,067 271,268
122,162 80,562
1,680 638
: 0 0
5,000 61
1,400 1,050
3,200 2,029
629 629
7,000 3,927
6,430 4,549
66,089 59,449
800 439
3,700 2,049
800 733
0 0
1,400 0
26,300 24,246
75,520 47,727
147,577 147,409
0 0
0 0
216,644 171,620
2,876,642 2,024,209
FY23-24 FY23-24
Amended YTD(04/24)
Budget Actual
27,425 18,496
0 0
2,098 1,415
150 49
650 641
2,081 2,081
32,404 22,682
FY23-24 FY23-24
Amended YTD(04/24)
Budget Actual
381,509 228,949
20,000 19,710
0 0
100 0
1,140 1,100
30,776 17,917
115,430 69,743
29,438 15,450
440 170
4,800 420
0 152
5,000 1,535
7,000 3,897
0 0
27,210 27,039
6,400 1,860
16,578 16,577

0
0
660,112

FY24-25
Estimated
Budget
1,530,225
127,825
0
9,500
6,000
128,026
392,610
117,563
1,680
2,500
3,000
1,400
3,200
629
7,000
6,430
44,763
800
5,500
2,300
7,595
1,400
28,000
72,520
183,000
200,000

FY24-25
Estimated

Budget
28,385
0
2,171
150
650
2,331
33,687

FY24-25
Estimated
Budget
403,859
10,000
0
100
2,370
31,849
105,500
29,674
200
650
600
14,000
2,500
7
5,000
8,000
19,200

Hhk

Kk

17.1%

%
Change
Budgets

2.3%
14.2%
0.0%
-49.8%
-0.3%
-9.3%
-3.8%
0.0%
-40.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
-32.3%
0.0%
48.6%
187.5%
0.0%
6.5%
-4.0%
24.0%

wkk

ke

-54.1%
3.7%

%
Change
Budgets

3.5%
0.0%
3.5%
0.0%
0.0%
12.0%
4.0%

%
Change
Budgets

5.9%
-50.0%
0.0%
107.9%
3.5%
-8.6%
0.8%
-54.5%
-86.5%
180.0%
-64.3%
-81.6%
25.0%
15.8%



949

42100

220
280
310
320
510
949

44143

11
112
114
135
141
142
143
147
190
220
235
240
245
251
255
262
266
268
280
320
322
326
331
510
540
799
940
949

42200

111
114
135
141
142
143
147
190
220
235
245
251
255
262
280
310
322

" Small Equipment

TRAINING (19)

Printing & Publication

Training

Office Supplies
Operating Supplies
Operating Insurance
Equipment purchase

ANIMAL CONTROL (16)

Salaries-Fu

litime

Salaries-Overtime

Salaries-Pa

ritime

Salaries - ongevity

OASIH

Health & Life Ins.

Retirement

Unemployment Ins.
Professional Services
Printing & Publication
Membership & Due
Utility Services

Telephone

Hiring Expe
Technology
Maintenanc

nse

e & Repair

Repair of Building
Shelter Donations-medical

Training

Operating Supplies
Spaying & Neutering

Uniforms
Gas

Operating Ins.
Depreciation Expense

Event Spon

Purchase of Equipment -large .
Purchase of Equipment-small

FIRE ADMINISTRATION (10)

sorship

TOTAL POLICE

Salaries-Fulltime
Salaries- Part-time

OASI

_ Salaries-longevity

Health Insurance

Retirement

Unemployment Ins.
Professional Services
Printing and Publications
Membership & Dues
Telephone Expense

Hiring Expe
Technology
Maintenanc
Training

nse

e & Repair

Office Supplies

Donated Prevention Materials

TOTAL:

TOTAL:

9 [
113,554 105,592
FY22-23 FY22-23
Amended Actual
Budget Expenses
100 0
20,000 15,009
100 0
3,592 2,602
236 200
0 9
24,028 17,811
FY22-23 FY22-23
Amended Actual
Budget Expenses
110,565 102,186
7,000 6,249
18,000 17,164
4,470 4,050
11,372 9,564
35,151 33,148
8,535 7,890
200 108
4,000 3,985
750 689
400 335
13,340 12,189
2,000 1,885
4,600 1,318
0 0
5,000 3,694
6,000 1,034
25,000 19,095
1,600 1,402
16,200 15,931
9,000 7,208
1,120 1,113
2,640 2,014
8,035 6,521
0 0
0 0
0 0
4,000 3,899
298,978 262,673
3,879,567 3,673,353
FY22-23 FY22-23
Amended Actual
Budget Expenses
193,194 189,983
18,743 18,175
8,070 8,050
18,567 16,304
41,651 39,154
15,667 12,216
200 63
0 0
0 0
1,300 680
8,700 8,541
500 488
763 497
5,200 2,393
2,700 2,628
750 715
1,500 1,496

137

0
645,821

FY23-24
Amended
Budget
100
26,000
200
4,900
260

Q
31,460

FY23-24
Amended

Budget
121,469
11,000
16,616
720
11,154
39,151
9,417
200
3,000
1,000
1,200
13,340
2,000
4,600
1,024
5,000
5,500
30,000
2,000
17,000
9,000
1,600
2,016
12,377
0
5,000
0
0
325,384

5,021,028

FY23-24
Amended

Budget
244,095
19,680
3,020
20,410
39,151
17,892
200
0
0
1,300
7,490
805
1,213
6,685
2,200
750
1,500

0
404,519

FY23-24
YTD(04/24)
Actual
0
13,858
154
3,843
260
0
18,115

FY23-24
YTD(04/24)
Actual
81,704
7,765
16,375
0
7,823
29,196
5,936
97
2,924
425
540
9,473
1,309
2,569
1,024
2,168
90
27,692
1,816
12,777
6,301
1,541
1,244
11,903
0

0
0
9
232,692
3,580,701

FY23-24
YTD(04/24)
Actual
186,846
17,247
2,600
15,469
28,858
12,143
77
0
0
758
7,051
393
20
6,650
1,803
546
1,387

1,088
634,597

FY24-25
Estimated

Budget
100
25,000
500
21,500
300
10.000
57,400

FY24-25
Estimated

Budget
134,832
10,000
23,800
720
12,955
42,300
10,384
200
4,000
1,000
1,200
12,340
2,000
1,200
0
5,000
5,500
33,000
2,000
21,500
9,000
1,800
2,166
10,000
30,000
3,000
0
0
379,898

5,380,718

FY24-25
Estimated

Budget
276,255
23,000
3,850
23,188
47 421
19,808
200
1,600
120
2,400
10,900
805
2,500
2,500
2,200
750
2,000

Kk

-1.7%

%
Change
Budgets

0.0%
-3.8%
150.0%
338.8%
15.4%

kK

82.5%

%
Change
Budgets

11.0%
-9.1%
43.2%
0.0%
16.2%
8.0%
10.3%
0.0%
33.3%
0.0%
0.0%
-7.5%
0.0%
-73.9%
-100.0%
0.0%
0.0%
10.0%
0.0%
26.5%
0.0%
12.5%
7.4%
-19.2%
-40.0%

Hdk

16.8%
7.2%

%
Change
Budgets

13.2%
16.9%
27.5%
13.6%
21.1%
10.7%

0.0%

ok

ke

84.6%
45.5%
0.0%
106.1%
-62.6%
0.0%
0.0%
33.3%



323
326
331
510
540
940
949

42200

111
112
113
135
141
142
143
147
190
216
220
251
255
262
263
310
320
321
323
326
328
331
510
540
200
940
949

42200

141
147
167
280
326
510
940
949

42200

111
141
142
143
280
510

42200

Community Risk Reduction
Uniforms

Gas

Operating Ins.

Depreciation Transfer
Purchase of Equipment - large
Purchase of Equipment - small

TOTAL:

SUPPRESSION (17)

Salaries-Regular
Salaries-Overtime/Call Back
Night Time call Out
Salaries - longevity
OASI

Health & Life ins.
Retirement
Unemployment Ins.
Professional Services
Radio Repair

Printing & Publications
Hiring Expense

. Technology

Maintenance & Repair- Vehicles
Maintenance & testing - Equipment
Office Supplies

Operating Supplies

Medical Supplies

Fire Hose Replacement
Uniforms

Turnout Gear & Safety

Gas

Operating Insurance
Depreciation Transfer

Capital Outlay

Purchase of Equipment -large
Purchase of Equipment-small

TOTAL:

EMERGENCY ASSISTANCE (18)

OASI

Unemployment Ins.
Salaries-Volunteer

Training

Uniforms

Operating Insurance
Purchase of Equipment -large

~ Purchase of Equipment-small
TOTAL:

FIRE TRAINING (19)

Training-Salaries
OASI

Health & Life Ins.
Retirement

Training

Operating Insurance

TOTAL:

FIRE BUILDING MAINTENANCE (21)

0 0 1,000
1,200 1,140 1,275
4,560 4,064 4,160
6,500 6,068 7,796
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
329,765 312,656 380,622
FY22-23 FY22-23 FY23-24
Amended Actual Amended
Budget Expenses Budget
1,605,000 1,591,637 1,679,606
24,000 18,133 21,000
72,000 71,780 82,000
64,200 64,200 18,400
129,027 126,495 137,012
443,107 441,090 465,939
115,875 113,636 129,932
1,600 675 1,600
800 800 0
3,010 1,346 4,510
0 0
6,315 5,515 5,500
13,600 13,526 15,000
72,207 72,036 62,955
12,820 12,565 14,850
600 225 600
15,834 15,833 16,000
5,000 4,896 6,500
1,900 1,289 8,950
15,000 12,889 14,250
16,900 16,659 7,699
22,080 20,388 27,000
82,574 81,341 92,506
35,000 35,000 0
0 0 0
28,000 27,895 0
18,500 18,409 31,251
2,804,949 2,768,257 2,843,060
FY22-23 FY22-23 FY23-24
Amended Actual Amended
Budget Expenses Budget
574 479 689
50 23 50
7,500 6,267 9,000
250 0 0
1,000 988 2,000
14,660 14,491 11,226
0 0 0
Q 0 9]
24,034 22,249 22,965
FY22-23 FY22-23 FY23-24
Amended Actual Amended
Budget Expenses Budget
22,359 17,640 27,030
1,710 1,285 2,062
500 0 0
1,623 1,160 1,988
17,000 16,682 17,775
138 113 152
43,330 36,880 49,007
FY22-23 FY22-23 FY23-24
Amended Actual Amended
Budget Expenses Budget

138

163
1,209
2,915
7477

0
0

9
293,612

FY23-24
YTD(04/24)
Actual
1,439,101
15,729
79,995
17,900
113,942
356,944
108,124
661
0
2,557
213
4,774
9,755
49,649
7,272
532
15,615
4,979
1,350
13,430
7,694
13,633
92,464

[eNeNe)

29,453
2,385,766

FY23-24
YTD(04/24)
Actual
376
13
4,911
0
614
11,214
0
0
17,128

FY23-24
YTD(04/24)
Actual
26,251
1,940
0
1,863
17,544
152
47,750

FY23-24
YTD(04/24)
Actual

3,900
1,275
4,000
8,000

0

0

0
436,671

FY24-25
Estimated

Budget
1,860,733
27,000
111,500
19,100
154,402
427,000
140,345
1,600
4,000
4,510
500
5,500
15,000
82,000
14,850
600
16,000
7,000
3,000
14,250
10,500
20,000
96,000
75,000
0
0
1,000
3,111,390

FY24-25
Estimated

Budget

689

50

9,000

0

1,500

12,560

0

Q

23,798

FY24-25
Estimated

Budget

26,000

1,989

0

1,864

18,000

500

48,353

FY24-25
Estimated

Budget

290.0%
0.0%
-3.8%
2.6%

dkk
FkK

ok

14.7%

%
Change
Budgets

10.8%
28.6%
36.0%
3.8%
12.7%
-8.4%
8.0%
0.0%

sk

0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
30.3%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
7.7%
-66.5%
0.0%
36.4%
-25.9%
3.8%

*hk



240
263
266
510
531
540
900
940
949

42200

111
135
141
142
143
147
220
245
251
262
280
320
326
331
510
540
940
949

43000

111
112
135
141
142
143
147
190
220
235
245
255
262
280
310
320
326
331
510
531
540
900
940
949

43120

111

23,793

Utilities 25,100 24,377
Sirens & Transmitter 1,000 780 6,000
Repair of Buildings 21,563 18,189 17,600
Operating Insurance 6,315 6,315 6,315
Radio Tower Rental 1,283 1,283 1,246
Depreciation Transfer 0 0 0
Capital Outlay 0 0 22,000
Purchase of Equipment -large 0 0 0
Purchase of Equipment-small 0 0 Q
TOTAL: 55,261 50,943 76,954
FY22-23 FY22-23 FY23-24
FIRE INSPECTION (22) Amended Actual Amended
Budaet Expenses Budget
Salaries-Fulltime 68,132 67,036 80,838
Salaries - longevity 2,405 2,200 990
QASI 5,338 4,903 6,260
Health & Life Ins. 18,563 18,023 18,563
Retirement 4,888 4,785 - 5,925
Unemployment Ins. 55 21 55
Printing and Publications 1,600 1,109 1,600
Telephone Expense 775 480 775
Hiring Expense 135 131 235
Maintenance & Repair 750 104 2,037
Training 757 757 1,250
Operating Supplies 2,493 1,885 2,000
Uniforms 325 0 325
Gas 2,525 2,490 2,340
Operating Insurance 2,823 2,823 3,105
Depreciation Transfer 0 0 0
Purchase - Large Equipment 0 0 0
Purchase - Small Equipment 0 [¢]
TOTAL: 111,564 106,748 126,298
TOTAL FIRE DEPARTMENT 3,368,903 3,297,732 3,498,906
FY22-23 FY22-23 FY23-24
PUBLIC WORKS ADMIN.(10) Amended Actual Amended
Budget Expenses Budget
Salaries-Fulltime 157,000 155,658 165,082
Salaries-Overtime 200 158 450
Salaries - longevity 3,750 3,750 1,280
OASI 12,242 12,227 12,750
Health & Life ins. 20,688 20,590 20,588
Retirement 11,600 11,346 12,122
Unemployment Ins. 150 42 150
Other Professional Services 55,000 54,674 60,000
Printing and Publications 2,200 1,934 2,350
Membership & Dues 1,310 928 1,310
Telephone 6,853 6,731 6,853
Technology 1,464 75 4,000
Maintenance & Repair 3,000 2,393 3,000
Training 2,000 740 2,000
Office Supplies 3,350 3,291 3,500
Operating Supplies 1,500 1,189 1,500
Uniforms 925 449 925
Gas 5,513 4,957 7,513
Operating Insurance 6,463 5,896 8,963
Radio Tower Rental 1,500 1,283 1,200
Depreciation Transfer 0 0 0
Capital Outlay 0 0 0
Purchase - Large Equipment 0 0 0
Purchase - Small Equipment 2,000 2,000 2,000
TOTAL: 298,708 290,310 317,536
FY22-23 FY22-23 FY23-24
STREET LABOR COSTS (10) Amended Actual Amended
Budget Expenses Budget
Salaries-Fulltime 487,913 480,842 549,712

139

17,742
5,093
12,725
5,904
1,096
0
22,000
0

4]
64,560

FY23-24
YTD(04/24)
Actual
64,049
750
4643
15,064
4,786
21
0
420
131
1,973
520
1,122
239
1,933
2,197
0
0
o]
97,848

2,906,664

FY23-24
YTD(04/24)
Actual
133,580
336
900
10,292
17,158
9,998
51
29,860
871
824
5,602
3,723
1,310
1,423
1,108
576
795
3,709
8,945
1,096
0

0
0
4]
232,157
FY23-24
YTD(04/24)

Actual
415,059

23,793
1,000
28,500
4,000
1,400
50,000
0

0

0
108,693

FY24-25
Estimated

Budget

60,779

990

3,000

16,563

3,000

55

1,600

775

235

750

1,750

2,000

425

1,000

3,200

0

0

0

96,122

3,825,028

FY24-25
Estimated
Budget
174,161
450
1,280
13,456
24,723
12,520
150
67,000
2,350
1,310
6,900
13,000
2,000
2,000
3,500
2,000
1,200
5,513
10,018
1,300

Cooo

344,831

FY24-25
Estimated

Budget
585,288



112
135
141
142
143
147
149
251
326
510

43120

190
241
262
268
269
270
320
331
400
510
540
940
949

43120

262
331
342
510
540
940
949

43120

111
141
142
143
180
200
262
320
331
400
490
510
540
940
949

43400

111
112
135

Salaries-Overtime

Salaries - longevity

OASI

Health & Life Ins.
Retirement

Unemployment Ins.

Payroll Contractual Services
Hiring Expense

Uniforms

Operating Insurance

STREETS/HIGHWAYS (023)

Professional Services

Street Lights

Maintenance & Repair
Permanent Streets

State Street Contract
Sidewalk Repair

Operating Supplies

Gas

Road Surfacing Materials
Operating Insurance
Depreciation Transfer
Purchase - Large Equipment
Purchase - Small Equipment

STREET SIGNS (24)

Maintenance & Repair

Gas

Parts & Supplies

Operating Insurance
Depreciation Transfer
Purchase - Large Equipment
Purchase - Small Equipment

TOTAL:

TOTAL:

TOTAL:

STORMWATER MANAGEMNT (30)

~ Salaries-Fulltime

OASI

Health & Life Ins.
Retirement

Professional Services
Contract Services
Maintenance & Repair
Operating Supplies

Gas

Materials

Culverts

Operating Insurance
Depreciation Transfer
Purchase - Large Equipment
Purchase - Small Equipment

TOTAL:

CEMETERY MAINTENANCE (32)

Salaries - Fulitime
Salaries - Overtime
Salaries - longevity

30,000 28,665 29,500
29,920 27,190 9,590
44,078 39,420 44,814
181,099 174,133 166,900
39,621 37,229 42,236
500 355 500
4,060 2,616 4,060
1,958 1,907 1,958
5,600 5,220 6,000
34,931 32,900 40424
859,680 830,477 895,694
FY22-23 FY22-23 FY23-24
Amended Actual Amended
Budget Expenses Budget
5,733 0 15,000
392,700 391,446 456,000
52,000 50,681 44,600
650,000 0 825,000
85,086 75,086 130,869
33,832 18,467 33,832
4,680 2,973 4,680
32,650 32,448 33,000
70,117 66,196 80,117
17,492 13,998 18,241
90,000 90,000 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
1,434,290 741,294 1,641,339
FY22-23 FY22-23 FY23-24
Amended Actual Amended
Budget Expenses Budget
2,500 2,379 9,529
2,040 1,721 2,040
37,764 34,514 38,897
5,374 5,300 2,687
0 0 0
0 0 0
4,660 4658 0
52,338 48,572 53,153
FY22-23 FY22-23 FY23-24
Amended Actual Amended
Budget Expenses Budget
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
62,000 60,136 57,000
5,442 3,880 5,442
1,290 138 1,800
2,300 1,399 4,200
750 347 0
16,500 13,744 16,500
38,500 35,067 40,000
1,981 1,950 2,204
20,000 20,000 0
0 0 0
0 [} [0}
148,763 136,660 127,146
FY22-23 FY22-23 FY23-24
Amended Actual Amended
Budget Expenses Budget
68,804 68,804 91,091
4,200 1,577 4,200
2,275 2,275 710

140

29,495
7,400
33,197
133,260
33,056
257
2,309
400
632
39.275
694,340

FY23-24
YTD(04/24)
Actual
3,600
442,942
35,958
751,852
0
23,581
3,928
23,919
61,059
16,386
0
0

Q
1,363,225

FY23-24
YTD(04/24)
Actual
748
1,397
30,691
1,339
0
0
0
34,175

FY23-24
YTD(04/24)
Actual

[eNeRoNe)

31,452
3,460
200
1,787
0
10,957
12,585
2,203
0

0
Q
62,644

FY23-24
YTD(04/24)
Actual
71,851
2,154
500

29,500
9,590
47,765
170,250
44,080
500
4,060
1,958
5,600
28.500
927,091

FY24-25
Estimated
Budget
15,000
570,000
76,500
670,000
118,000
31,832
4,680
33,000
75,117
20,430
90,000
0

Q
1,704,559

FY24-25
Estimated

Budget

5,000

2,500

38,897

1,000

0

0

9
47,397

FY24-25
Estimated

Budget

23,000

1,600

3,000

1,600

55,000

4,000

500

4,200

200

16,500

25,000

4,000

0

0

0

109,400

FY24-25
Estimated
Budget
95,400
4,200
710

0.0%
0.0%
6.6%
2.0%
4.4%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
6.7%
-29.5%
3.5%



141
142
143
147
262
320
331
400
510
540
940
949

43120

262
320
331
510
540

43170

111
112
135
141
142
143
147
240
245
251
261
262
266
269
310
320
326
331
510
540
940
949

44400

111
112
135
141
142
143
147
220
235
245
251
255
262

OASI

Health & Life Insurance
Retirement

Unemployment Insurance
Maintenance & Repair
Operating Supplies

Gas

Materials

Operating Insurance
Depreciation Transfer
Purchase - Large Equipment
Purchase - Small Equipment

TOTAL:

R-O-W MOWING (65)

Maintenance & Repair
Operating Supplies
Gas

Operating Insurance
Depreciation Transfer

TOTAL:

FLEET MAINTENANCE (31)

Salaries-Fulitime
Salaries-Overtime
Salaries - longevity
OASI

Health Insurance
Retirement
Unemployment
Utilities

Telephone Service
Hiring Expense
Repair Parts
Maintenance & Repair
Repair of Building
Labor Reimbursement
Office Supplies
Operating Supplies
Uniforms

Gas

Operating Insurance
Depreciation Transfer
Purchase - Large Equipment
Purchase - Small Equipment

TOTAL:

TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS

RECREATION ADMIN. (10)

Salaries-Fulltime
Salaries-O/T

Salaries - longevity
OASI

Health Insurance
Retirement
Unemployment
Printing & Publications
Membership & Dues
Telephone

Hiring Expense
Information Technology
Maintenance & Repair

6,768
26,954
6,264
135
4,406
4,200
5,000
6,345
7,915
20,000
7,050
0
170,316

FY22-23
Amended

Budget
18,200
500
5,840
122
0
24,662

FY22-23
Amended
Budget
203,456
2,400
7,760
16,770
65,984
15,352
260
35,600
900
300
29,000
4,496
7,500
-85,000
550
13,475
1,205
72,000
13,920
20,000
0
0
425,928

3,414,685

FY22-23
Amended

Budget
227,133
500
5,903
19,704
56,475
18,548
305
3,600
1,115
1,860
400
10,185
1,800

5,367 7,344
23,864 29,870
4,582 6,985
59 135
4,362 3,406
3,522 3,200
4,407 9,750
4,370 2,500
5,571 8,707
20,000 0
7,050 0
9 Q
155,808 167,898
FY22-23 FY23-24
Actual Amended
Expenses Budget
17,916 14,000
0 500
5,688 5,000
115 432
0 9
23,719 19,932
FY22-23 FY23-24
Actual Amended
Expenses Budget
200,256 223,244
1,798 3,000
6,800 1,860
14,924 17,412
64,270 65,984
13,462 16,547
84 260
33,846 35,000
723 650
0 600
-12,925 48,000
3,540 4,500
6,143 5,785
-96,300 -65,000
285 550
13,259 13,475
778 1,205
68,090 60,000
10,761 17,512
20,000 0
0 0
] -0
349,794 450,584
2,576,635 3,673,282
FY22-23 FY23-24
Actual Amended
Expenses Budget
220,795 181,530
228 500
5,900 1,200
16,664 14,048
56,388 38,139
15,343 13,306
147 250
1,746 1,700
1,100 1,070
1,600 1,860
362 400
10,098 9,324
223 1,800

141

5,546
24,930
5,084
53
1,750
2,233
8,832
1,025
5,398
0

0

0
129,356

FY23-24
YTD(04/24)
Actual
13,073
100
3,089
432
0
16,694

FY23-24
YTD(04/24)
Actual
167,690
2,830
900
12,112
55,859
11,494
105
25,167
320
181
47,136
4,175
2,610
-61,792
314
6,819
748
44,532
16,491
0
0
637
338,328

2,870,919

FY23-24
YTD(04/24)
Actual
147,393
0
550
10,946
26,160
1,061
53
1,414
1,070
650
0
780
1,436

7,674
34,000
7,141
135
13,500
3,200
9,250
1,000
5,000
25,000
0

Q
206,210

FY24-25
Estimated
Budget
16,000
500
3,500
500

9
20,500

FY24-25
Estimated
Budget
205,538
11,000
1,860
16,707
74,254
15,526
260
35,000
650
300
30,000
7,500
5,785
-95,000
550
10,000
750
60,000
14,000
0
0
0
394,680

3,754,668

FY24-25
Estimated

Budget
205,212
500
1,600
15,859
36,139
14,714
250
1,000
1,400
1,400
400
3,500
1,800



280
310
320
326
331
510
540
940
949

44400

11
112
114
115
135
141
142
143
147
149
190
235
240
241
245
251
255
260
262
266
268
280
320
322
324
326
331
510
531
540
940
949

44400

111
112
114
141
142
143
147
240
531
940
949

44400

111

Training
Office Supplies
Operating Supplies
Uniforms
Gas
Operating Insurance
Depreciation Transfer
Purchase - Large Equipment
Purchase - Small Equipment
TOTAL:

CITY PARKS & MAINTENANCE (033)

Salaries-Fulitime
Salaries-Overtime
Salaries-Parttime
Salaries-Parks Custodian
Salaries - longevity
OASI

Health Insurance
Retirement
Unemployment Ins.
Payroll Contractual Services
Contracted Mowing
Membership & Dues
Utilities

Street Lights
Telephone

Hiring Expense
Information Technology
Grounds Maintenance
Maintenance & Repair
Repair of Buildings
Parks Projects Donation
Training & Trave)
Operating Supplies
Chemicals

Park Grant Expense
Uniforms

- Gas

Operating Insurance
Rent - Buildings and Equipment
Depreciation Transfer
Purchase - Large Equipment
Purchase - Small Equipment
TOTAL:

TCS PARKS MAINTENANCE (038)

Salaries-Fulltime

Salaries-Overtime

Salaries-Parttime

OASI

Health Insurance

Retirement

Unemployment Ins.

Utilities

Rent - Buildings and Equipment

Purchase - Large Equipment

Purchase - Small Equipment
TOTAL:

COMMUNITY CENTERS (34)

Salaries-Fulltime

8,250 5,820
365 365
500 377
900 634
2,000 1,842
0 0
0 0
o} Q
359,543 339,633
FY22-23 FY22-23
Amended Actual
Budget Expenses
205,033 200,774
3,000 2,567
29,178 27,655
4,700 4,195
12,150 12,150
18,733 18,372
60,039 59,940
14,054 13,393
440 196
2,232 1,062
92,650 90,350
190 0
70,221 66,383
14,052 14,043
940 900
400 364
500 374
67,686 63,039
25,686 21,048
11,580 9,280
5,000 400
0 0
5,000 4,413
2,683 2,679
14,000 13,905
2,500 1,680
14,527 12,771
27,882 27,158
19,400 19,400
90,000 90,000
0 0
7.000 5,057
821,456 783,549
FY22-23 FY22-23
Amended Actual
Budget  Expenses
N/A N/A
N/A N/A
N/A N/A
N/A N/A
N/A N/A
N/A N/A
N/A N/A
N/A N/A
N/A N/A
N/A N/A
NiA NA
0 0
FY22-23 FY22-23
Amended Actual
Budget Expenses
33,000 31,722

142

8,250
188
1,997
1,000
900
3,002

0

0

0
280,464

FY23-24

Amended

Budget
196,575
3,000
27,178
31,200
3,710
20,017
50,458
14,629
440
2,232
78,500
190
73,221
14,093
900
400
500
87,961
32,111
38,413
10,000
0
3,282
2,023
0
1,565
13,027
39,761
26,900

oo

1,587
773,873

FY23-24
Amended
Budget
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

FY23-24
Amended

Budget
80,163

7,350
39
1,761
857
839
3,002
0

0

Q
205,361

FY23-24

YTD(04/24)
Actual

172,797
1,831
25,457
4,668
3,650
15,682
35,103
11,759
174
779
52,195
95
59,821
9,646
840
34
272
85,189
25,929
27,323
0
0
2,864
590
0
1,175
8,457
39,623
22,353
0
0
1.587
609,893

FY23-24

YTD(04/24)

Actual
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

FY23-24

YTD(04/24)

Actual
62,010

8,250
400
2,000
1,000
1,700
3,362
0

0

9
300,486

FY24-25

Estimated

Budget
230,000
2,900
32,500
2,000
3,000
20,686
63,000
15,500
295
1,495
96,500
150
63,000
14,000
1,200
300
900
77,500
35,000
48,600
11,000
1,000
7,000
3,000
0
1,800
13,000
36,000
29,000
0

0
2,900
813,326

FY24-25

Estimated

Budget
23,996

100
7,500
3,994
2,000
2,000

145

19,000
0
0
Q
58,735

FY24-25

Estimated

Budget
93,000

%
Change

Budgets
17.0%
-3.3%
19.6%

-93.6%
-19.1%
3.3%
24.9%
6.0%
-33.0%
-33.0%
22.9%
-21.1%
-14.0%
-0.7%
33.3%
-25.0%
80.0%
-11.9%
9.0%
26.5%
10.0%
113.3%
48.3%
21.4%
-0.2%
-9.5%
7.8%

dekk

*kk

82.7%
51%

%
Change
Budgets

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

%
Change

Budgets
16.0%



112
114
115
116
135
141
142
143
147
149
190
193
220
235
239
240
245
251
255
262
266
280
320
322
326
331
510
540
940
949

44400

111
112
114
135
141
142
143
147
149
235
239
240
245
251
255
262
266
281
320
321
322
326
331
510
540
940
949

44400

111
112

Salaries-Overtime
Salaries-Part-time
Community Center Instructors
Salaries-Custodial

Salaries - longevity

OASI

Health Ins,

Retirement

Unemployment Ins.

Payroll Contractual Services
Professional Services
Fitness & Wellness

Printing & Publication
Membership & Dues

Pool Permit

Utilities

Telephone

Hiring Expense

Information technology (p.o.s. system)
Maintenance & Repair
Repair of Buildings

Training

Operating Supplies
Chemicals

Uniforms

Gas & Qil

Operating Insurance
Depreciation Transfer
Purchase - Large Equipment
Purchase - Small Equipment

TOTAL:

AQUATICS (35)

Salaries-Fulltime
Salaries - Overtime
Salaries - Pool part-time

~ Salaries - longevity

OAS!

Health Insurance
Retirement

Unemployment ins.

Payroll Contractual Services
Membership/Dues

Pool Permit

Utilities

Telephone

Hiring Expense

Information technology (p.o.s. system)
Maint- Pool Equip.

Repair of Building

Red Cross Training
Operating Supplies

Retail Supplies

Chemicals

Uniforms

Gas & Oil

Operating Insurance
Depreciation Transfer
Purchase - Large Equipment
Purchase - Small Equipment

TOTAL:

~ CONCESSIONS (37)

Salaries-Fulitime
Salaries - Overtime

1,615 1,612
97,000 94,991
23,420 21,087

0 0
11,550 11,550
12,865 12,299
10,294 9,437

2,354 2,307

600 289

2,544 1,895

5,000 3,642

4,675 1,109

3,500 622

160 0
400 340
123,900 120,561

9,433 9,427

1,124 377
10,000 2,227
17,008 14,934
60,457 56,438

0 0
16,000 15,293

0 0

300 300
900 759
31,954 29,476
95,000 95,000
5,495 5,495
2,497 2,496
583,045 545,686
FY22-23 FY22-23
Amended Actual
Budget Sxpenses
1,700 1,588
1,000 927
192,000 190,006

5,250 5,250
16,000 15,129

0 0

200 62
1,200 566
3,600 3,066
70 0

940 628
22,200 19,539
400 0
400 297

3,500 3,011

2,845 1,227
57,296 35,548

6,000 3,225

5,900 5,000

3,000 1,364
40,950 36,650

1,886 1,883

80 0

25,413 25,376

95,000 95,000

0 0

990 990

487,820 446,331

FY22-23 FY22-23
Amended Actual

Budget Expenses

37,488 34,971

0 0

143

1,200
130,000
32,420
0

640
18,668
20,588
5,964
600
2,544
6,200
3,000
4,000
160
400
129,095
7,263
1,124
11,000
17,008
62,843
0
10,605
0

300
800
38,769

FY23-24
Amended

Budget
46,305
2,460
195,296
0
15,657
14,663
3,394
1,200
4,500
0
940
25,200
150
400
1,000
2,845
28,544
6,500
5,500
3,000
43,950
2,140
0
31,276
0
0
1.641

436,561

FY23-24
Amended

Budget

950

90,498

17,943
0

600
12,961
12,447

4,571
287
1,092
5,069
0

62

110

0
96,456
7,205

261

10,893

8,221
60,389
0
8,780
0

0

520
38,769

[aNe)

1,800
441,894

FY23-24
YTD(04/24)
Actual
34,020
3,493
160,679
0
15,045
10,060
2,690
490
4,189
0
680
24,485
30
137
723
98
21,567
782
4,733
1,258
43,362
2,139
0
31,276

OO

1,62
363,565

O

FY23-24
YTD(04/24)
Actual
0
592

1,200
110,000
27,000
17,550
650
19,079
24,000
6,754
600
2,544
10,000
500
4,000
160
600
125,000
8,500
1,400
10,000
8,000
98,000
0
14,000
0

800
800
38,000
75,000
0

o]
697,137

FY24-25
Estimated

Budget
35,344
4,000
247,000
0
21,905
9,282
2,821
1,200
5,200
0
940
30,500
250
2,250
500
3,600
12,000
4,500
8,500
3,000
57,000
500
0
41,500
75,000
0
0
566,792

FY24-25
Estimated
Budget
0
600

0.0%
-15.4%
-16.7%

1.6%

22%

16.6%
13.2%
0.0%
0.0%
61.3%
-83.3%
0.0%
0.0%
50.0%
-3.2%
17.0%
24.6%
-89.1%
-53.0%
55.9%

Kk

32.0%
166.7%
0.0%
-2.0%

EA

ok

-100.0%
18.7%

%
Change
Budgets

-23.7%
62.6%
26.5%
39.9%
-36.7%
-16.9%
0.0%
15.6%
0.0%
21.0%
66.7%
462.5%
-50.0%
26.5%
-58.0%
-30.8%
54.5%
0.0%
29.7%
-76.6%
32.7%

*hk

-100.0%
29.8%

%
Change
Budgets

*kex

*kk



115
135
141
142
143
147
235
239
251
255
262
280
320
321
322
326
331
510
540
940
949

44400

111
112
135
141
142
143
147
245
251
320
510
790
793
794
795
796
797
798
799

43200

111
112
135
141
142
143
147
180
191
220
235
245
280
320
321
323
510
540
940

Salaries - Concessions part-time 0 0
Salaries - longevity 0 0
OASI 3,097 2,675
Health Insurance 0 0
Retirement 0 0
Unemployment Ins. 250 101
Membership & Dues 75 0
. State permit 210 210
Hiring Expense 300 29
Information technology (p.o.s. system) 0 0
Maintenance & Repair 4,250 4,250
Training 250 0
Operating supplies 2,410 2,054
Concession Food Supplies 68,100 68,030
Concession paper goods 10,000 7,174
Uniforms 900 533
Gas 250 0
Operating Insurance 3,319 2,808
Depreciation Transfer 0 0
Purchase - Large Equipment 0 0
Purchase - Small Equipment 3,520 3418
TOTAL: 134,419 126,253
FY22-23 FY22-23
PROGRAMMING (39) Amended Actual
Budget Expenses
Salaries-Fulitime 0 0
Salaries - Overtime 0 0
Salaries - longevity 0 0
OASI 0 0
Health Insurance 0 0
Retirement 0 0
Unemployment Ins. 0 0
Telephone Expense 0 0
Hiring Expense 380 377
- Operating Supplies 1,000 875
Operating Insurance 2,129 2,062
Soapbox Derby 200 198
League Expense-NFL Flag Football 10,500 9,902
League Expense-Jr. NBA 15,030 14,848
League Expense-Adult Baseball 10,420 10,389
League Expense-Girls Softball
League Expense-Adult Basketball 1,544 1,543
Annual Fireworks Event 62,000 60,052
Programs and Events 28,794 20,861
TOTAL: 131,997 121,107
FY22-23 FY22-23
FORESTRY RESOURCES (62) Amended Actual
Budget Expenses
Salaries - Fulltime 28,000 20,965
Salaries - Overtime 500 167
Salaries - longevity 1,950 1,850
OASI 3,286 1,605
Health Insurance 10,927 9,282
Retirement 2,724 1,524
Unemployment 55 0
Professional Services 4,000 0
Hazard Tree Removal 26,000 25,200
Printing & Publication 500 65
Membership & Dues 250 0
Telephone Expense 325 160
Training 500 425
~ Operating Supplies 6,500 5,915
Memorial Tree Purchases 3,000 0
Tree Canopy Replacements/Grants 5,000 980
Operating Insurance 1,586 1,302
Depreciation Transfer 0 0
Purchase - Large Equipment 0 0

144

40,983

3,285

250

210
300
1,461
1,350

1,913
66,510
9,147
900

0

3,651

0

0

0
129,960

FY23-24
Amended

Budget

46,305

100

300

3,242

18,563

3,394

15

160

0

1,000

3,112

8,000

0

15,030

9,040

7,000

3,150

63,110

30,995

212,516

FY23-24
Amended

Budget

58,416

200

540

4,525

18,563

4,297

55

6,400

30,000

0

250

325

1,000

5,791

3,000

10,309

1,745

0

0

89,170

FY23-24
YTD(04/24)
Actual
16,690
92
300
838
16,062
1,365
5
40
0
275
2,373
4,503
0
14,862
9,011
3,766
3,150
63,107
30,097
166,536

FY23-24
YTD(04/24)
Actual
27,657
0
0
1,983
14,696
2,040
11
6,400
11,894
0
165
0
475
2,471
1,823
10,308
1,411
0
0

60,000
4,636

44
250

210
300
1,000
5,000

2,000
82,000
8,000
2,000

0

3,524

0

0

0
169,563

FY24-25
Estimated

Budget

oBolojleleNoNoNeNol

1,000
3,168
4,000
100
16,000
10,000
8,500
4,500
65,000
30,995
143,263

FY24-25
Estimated

Budget

36,353

200

540

2,838

9,000

2,621

55

6,500

42,000

500

250

325

1,000

3,500

3,300

7,000

1,776

0

0

46.4%

41.1%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%

-31.6%
270.4%
4.5%
23.3%
-12.5%
122.2%
-3.5%

ek

30.5%

%
Change
Budgets

-100.0%
-100.0%
-100.0%
-100.0%
-100.0%
-100.0%
-100.0%

*kk

*kk

0.0%
1.8%
-50.0%
6.5%
10.6%
21.4%
42.9%
3.0%
0.0%
-32.6%

%
Change
Budgets

-37.8%
0.0%
0.0%

-37.3%

-51.5%

-39.0%
0.0%
1.6%

40.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
-39.6%
10.0%

-32.1%
1.8%

Fkk

ke



949 Purchase - Small Equipment
TOTAL:

41800  FACILITIES MAINTENANCE (67)

111 Salaries-Fulitime

112 Salaries-Overtime

114 Salaries - Part-time

135 Salaries - longevity

141 OASI

142 Health Insurance

143 Retirement

147 Unemployment Ins.

235 Membership & Dues

245 Telephone Expense

251 Hiring Expense

255 Technology

262 Maintenance & Repair

266 Building Repair

320 Operating Supplies

326 Uniforms

331 Gas

510 Operating Insurance

540 Depreciation Transfer

940 Purchase - Large Equipment

949 Purchase - Small Equipment

TOTAL:

TOTAL RECREATION

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENDITURES

OPERATING TREND

TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS

51630-760-010 Transfer to Debt Service
43200-799-010 Transfer to Solid Waste
52500-760-010 Transfer to TAA-Operations
52000-760-010 Transfer to TAEDC
52000-765-010 Transfer to TAEDC - TIF
52000-766-020 Tourism Initiatives
52000-767-030 Tennessee Downtowns
51640-760-010 Transfer to Capital Projects
42200-246-020 Transfer to TUB Hydrant Rental
51000-799-010 Transfer TUA- Christmas lighting
51000-790-042 Transfer to TIDB- substation pymt
41990-790-010 Contingency-Operations

TOTAL:

TJULLAHOMA CITY SCHOOLS

44900-761-010 Appropriation
44900-762-010 Sales tax - Operations
44900-763-010 Sinking Fund (1/2cent)
44900-766-010 State Liquor Tax allocation
44900-240-010 Solid Waste Collections

Total Tullahoma City Schools

TOURISM AND CULTURAL
ORGANIZATIONS
51000-790-084 Beautification (Forestry)
51000-790-079 Chamber of Commerce

9 0 0
95,103 69,540 145,416
FY22-23 FY22-23 FY23-24
Amended Actual Amended
Budget Expenses Budget
128,725 125,603 143,632
3,000 2,785 3,300
0 0 3,000
7,969 7,750 3,570
10,687 9,898 11,513
39,154 39,154 39,151
9,563 9,307 10,770
210 67 210
100 0 100
780 480 780
400 181 400
1,000 0 500
2,500 2,445 2,000
3,500 2,915 3,500
6,500 4,825 6,500
1,500 546 1,000
4,228 2,346 4,000
8,121 5,640 5,933
0 0 0
0 0 0
1,000 4} 0
228,937 213,941 239,859
2,842,320 2,646,041 2,805,803
16,350,451 14,820,890 17,890,996
-9.4% 9.4%
FY22-23 FY22-23 FY23-24
Amended Actual Amended
Budget Expenses Budget
1,263,487 1,259,851 1,246,456
2,192,880 2,192,880 2,110,873
165,560 165,560 156,000
186,696 186,696 185,000
75,000 58,572 85,000
15,001 15,000 15,000
15,001 15,000 15,000
326,500 326,500 279,671
152,574 152,574 153,000
7,202 7,172 6,800
60,000 60,000 60,000
19,392 [} 24,134
4,479,293 4,439,806 4,336,934
FY22-23 FY22-23 FY23-24
Amended Actual Amended
Budget Expenses Budget
4,738,867 4,738,867 4,305,840
6,186,101 6,186,101 6,619,128
2,748,954 2,748,954 2,748,953
79,000 78,154 78,294
105,000 102,139 102,000
13,857,922 13,854,215 13,854,215
FY22-23 FY22-23 FY23-24
Amended Actual Amended
Budget Expenses Budget
38,577 9,109 37,393
43,560 42,953 47,045

145

81,334

FY23-24
YTD(04/24)
Actual
115,110
449
1,293
3,450
8,809
31,770
8,634
84
0
420
29
0
1,295
2,859
2,530
433
2,657
5,881
0
0
0
185,703

2,143,456

13,485,152

FY23-24
YTD(04/24)
Actual
992,863
1,759,061
130,000
154,167
67,657
12,500
12,500
130,641
127,338
0
60,000
o)
3,446,727

FY23-24
YTD(04/24)
Actual
2,500,000
5,082,973
2,189,062
39,646

85,116
9,896,797

FY23-24
YTD(04/24)
Actual
9,164
31,075

Q
117,758

FY24-25
Estimated
Budget
180,500
4,000
22,000
3,570
16,070
42,500
12,000
210
100
780
400
500
3,000
5,500
5,000
1,000
4,000
5,000
0
0
0
306,130

3,173,191
19,231,222
7.5%

FY24-25
Estimated

Budget
1,733,215
2,228,386
156,000
185,000
85,000
15,000
15,000
142,233
153,500
6,800
60,000
1.790
4,781,924

FY24-25
Estimated
Budget
3,931,236
6,993,732
3,009,754
79,000

102,500
14,116,222

FY24-25
Estimated
Budget
12,000
40,000

Fkk

-19.0%

%
Change
Budgets

25.7%
21.2%
633.3%
0.0%
39.6%
8.6%
11.4%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
50.0%
57.1%
-23.1%
0.0%
0.0%
-15.7%

ek

%
Change
Budgets

39.1%
5.6%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%

-49.1%
0.3%
0.0%
0.0%
-92.6%
10.3%

%
Change
Budgets

-8.7%
5.7%
9.5%
0.9%
0.5%
1.9%

%
Change
Budgets

-67.9%
-15.0%



51000-790-080 Hands-On Science Center
51000-790-060 Historic Preservation Society
51000-790-048 South Jackson Civic Center-approp
51000-510-048 South Jackson Civic Center-insurance
51000-240-048 South Jackson Civic Center-Utility
51000-262-048 South Jackson Civic Center-Repairs

51000-790-074
51000-790-046

51000-790-049
51000-244-038

51000-240-038 Coffee Co. Health Dept. -other utilities

51000-790-040
51000-790-050
51000-240-050

51000-510-050 CC Sr Citizens Operating Insurance

51000-790-085
51000-240-088
51000-266-088
51000-510-088
51000-266-057
51000-790-056
51000-790-041
51000-790-089
51000-790-047
51000-790-071
51000-790-052
51000-790-051
51000-790-053
51000-790-054
51000-790-055

Tennessee Backroads Heritage

Tullahoma Fine Arts Center

Total Tourism and Cultural
Organizations

COMMUNITY SERVICE
ORGANIZATIONS

Civil Air Patrol

Coffee Co. Health Dept.-gas

Coffee County Library
CC Sr Citizens Appropriation
CC Sr Citizens Utility Services

CC Humane Society

Baltz Building - Utilities

Baltz Building - Repairs

Baltz Building-ins

114 SW Atlantic - Repairs

Skills Development Services

Tennessee Rehabilitation Center

Trinity Care Center

Tullahoma Day Care Center

South Central Human Resources

Tullahoma Sports Council

CASA Works, Inc.

Horse Play, Inc.

Imagination Library of Coffee Co.

Tullahoma Community Found.
Total Community Service

Organizations

TOTAL OTHER AGENCIES

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

10,800 10,738

1,811 1,790

21,696 21,477

10,670 10,556

600 341

0 0

7,244 7,159

21,696 21,477

156,654 125,600

FY22-23 FY22-23
Amended Actual

Budget Expenses

736 736

3,600 2,376

10,461 9,734

15,000 15,000

9,152 9,162

23,489 22,282

2,373 2,343

2,500 2,500

2,200 2,130

500 5

419 414

0 0

2,086 2,086

4,906 4,906

736 123

5,888 5,888

2,574 2,574

25,000 25,000

3,000 3,000

3,000 3,000

1,574 1,574

3,000 3,000

122,194 117,823

14,136,770 14,097,637

34,966,514 33,358,333

146

9,596
1,956
23,432
14,892
500
4,700
7,824
23,432
170,870

FY23-24
Amended

Budget

736

0

0

15,000

9,152

21,489

3,270

2,500

2,200

500

595

4,000

2,086

4,906

0

5,888

2,574

25,000

3,000

3,000

1,574

3,000

110,470

14,135,555

36,363,485

7,756
1,293
15,513
14,992
284
4,620
5171
15,513
105,381

FY23-24
YTD(04/24)
Actual
613
0
0
12,500
7,627
16,391
3,270
2,083
1,199
440
595
3,566
1,738
4,088
123
4,907
2,145
20,833
2,500
2,500
1,312
2,500
90,930

10,093,108

27,024,987

10,000
1,700
20,000
15,500
500
8,000
6,700
20,000
134,400

FY24-25
Estimated
Budget
736
0
0
15,000
9,152
21,489
4,200
2,500
2,200
1,500
700
1,000
2,086
4,906
0
5,888
2,574
25,000
3,000
3,000
1,574
3,000
109,505

14,360,127

38,373,273

4.2%

13.1%
-14.6%
3.4%
0.0%
70.2%
-14.4%
-14.6%
-21.3%

%
Change

Budgets
0.0%

ek

wkk

0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
28.4%
0.0%
0.0%
200.0%
17.6%
-75.0%

0.0%
0.0%

0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
-0.9%

1.6%

5.53%



City of Tullahoma
SOLID WASTE FUND
FY2024-2025 BUDGET

FY22-23 FY22-23 FY23-24  FY23-24
REVENUES Amended Actual Amended YTD(04/24)

Budget Revenues Budget Actual
34410 Commercial Garbage Fees 760,500 770,240 738,500 683,130
34420 Residential garbage Fees 0 0 0 0
36027 Brush/Chipping Charges 3,000 4,996 4,000 10,752
36100 Interest Income 2,000 4,055 3,000 5,658
36350 Insurance Recovery 0 0 0 0
36990 Miscellaneous Receipts 0 0 0 0
37700 Recycling Revenue 125,000 104,511 240,000 100,265
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES: 890,500 883,802 985,500 799,806
Transfer from general fund 2,192,880 2,192,880 2,110,873 1,759,061
Appropriated fund balance 0 0 118374 0
TOTAL ALL REVENUES 3,083,380 3,076,682 3,214,747 2,558,867

EXPENDITURES

FY22-23 FY22-23 FY23-24  FY23-24
41500 ADMINISTRATOR & PERSONNEL Amended Actual Amended YTD(04/24)

Budget Expenses Budget Actual
111 Salaries-Fulitime 12,189 12,135 12,826 11,667
135 Salaries - longevity 305 305 370 0
141 OASI 974 942 1,009 886
142 Health & Life Insurance 1,471 1,309 1,305 1,028
143 Retirement 885 875 940 357
147 Unemployment Insurance 55 3 30 2
245 Telephone 60 28 50 0
510 Operating Insurance 0 0 0 0
TOTAL: 15,939 15,597 16,530 13,940

FY22-23 FY22-23 FY23-24  FY23-24
41500 PAYROLL & BILLING Amended Actual Amended YTD(04/24)

Budget Expenses Budget Actual
111  Salaries-Fulltime 20,847 20,546 25,998 15,127
112 Salaries-Overtime 25 0 o] 0
135 Salaries - longevity 1,110 1,080 240 130
141 OASI 1,937 1,517 2,007 1,137
142 Heaith & Life Ins. 10,311 9,599 7,003 5,429
143  Retirement 1,755 1,487 1,906 1,116
147 Unemployment Insurance 55 13 30 27
510 Operating Insurance 0 0 0 o]
TOTAL: 36,040 34,242 37,184 22,967

FY22-23 FY22-23 FY23-24  FY23-24
43000 PUBLIC WORKS ADMINISTRATION Amended Actual Amended YTD(04/24)

Budget Expenses Budget Actual
111 Salaries-Fulltime 153,196 153,119 165,082 133,353
112 Salaries-Overtime 650 1568 500 127
135 Salaries - longevity 3,750 3,750 1,400 900
141 OASI 12,290 12,032 12,774 10,260
142 Health Insurance 20,633 20,632 20,588 17,158
143 Retirement 11,354 11,237 12,137 9,784
147 Unemployment 100 0 75 42
245 Telephone 1,200 720 1,200 630
255 Information Technology 0 0 2,000 0
280 Training 750 205 500 0
321 Litter Collection 1,000 295 1,000 235
326 Uniforms 8,000 6,313 3,000 1,105
510 Operating Insurance 3,875 2,416 2,750 2,652
540 Depreciation Expense 0 0 0 0
0 8.026 0

799 Contingency 42

147

FY24-25 %
Estimated Change
Budget Budgets
738,500 0.0%
0 0.0%
4,000 0.0%
3,000 0.0%
0 skl
O wkk
240,000 0.0%
985,500 0.0%
2,228,386 5.6%
126,138 6.6%
3,340,024 3.9%
FY24-25 %
Estimated Change
Budget Budgets
3,229 -74.8%
370 0.0%
275 72.7%
441 -66.2%
237 -74.8%
30 0.0%
50 0.0%
O dedkk
4,632 -72.0%
FY24-25 %
Estimated Change
Budget Budgets
26,996 3.8%
O Hdek
240 0.0%
2,084 3.8%
7,003 0.0%
1,979 3.8%
30 0.0%
Q kkk
38,332 3.1%
FY24-25 %
Estimated Change
Budget Budgets
174,161 5.5%
500 0.0%
1,400 0.0%
13,469 5.4%
24,723 20.1%
12,803 5.5%
75 0.0%
1,200 0.0%
2,000 0.0%
500 0.0%
1,000 0.0%
6,000 100.0%
2,750 0.0%
O *k
25,000 211.5%



43200

111
112
135
141
142
143
147
251
262
290
320
331
342
510
540
935
940
949

43200

111
112
114
135
141
142
143
147
251
262
290
320
331
510
540
935
940
949

43200

111
112
135
141
142
143
147
190
262
320
331
510

TOTAL: 216,840

TOTAL ADMINISTRATION 268,819

FY22-23
RESIDENTIAL GARBAGE(025) Amended

Budget
Salaries-Fulltime 176,129
Salaries-Overtime 3,550
Salaries - longevity 4,872
OASI 13,695
Health & Life Ins. 37,546
Retirement 10,001
Unemployment Ins. 250
Hiring Expense 379
Maintenance & Repair 95,000
Landfill 401,000
Operating Supplies 2,250
Gas 62,000
Parts and Supplies 3,500
Operating Insurance 25,000
Depreciation Expense 0
Garbage Carts 19,782
Purchase of Equipment 0
Small Equipment Q
TOTAL: 854,954

FY22-23
COMMERCIAL GARBAGE (026) Amended

Budget
Salaries-Fulitime 123,020
Salaries-Overtime 8,000
Salaries-Paritime 17,587
Salaries - longevity 7,707
OASI 11,805
Health & Life Ins. 40,737
Retirement 9,222
Unemployment Ins. 250
Hiring Expense 300
Maintenance & Repair 90,037
Landfill 285,956
Operating Supplies 700
Gas 46,500
Operating Insurance 20,321
Depreciation Expense 0
Purchase of Dumpsters 20,400
Purchase of Equipment 0
Small Equipment 0
TOTAL: 682,542

FY22-23
BRUSH & LIMB (027) Amended

Budget
Salaries-Fulltime 86,500
Salaries-Overtime 5,300
Salaries - longevity 4,980
OASI 7,352
Health & Life Ins. 37,132
Retirement 6,615
Unemployment Ins. 110
Chipping - Contractor 57,915
Maintenance & Repair 33,500
Operating Supplies 0
Gas 20,000
Operating Insurance 4,494

210,878
260,717

FY22-23
Actual

Expenses
176,022
2,985
4,650
13,528
35,286
8,743
90
379
94,008
399,247
2,005
61,034
1,527
24,859
0
19,781
0
0
844,146

FY22-23
Actual
Expenses
121,284
7,668
16,169
5,950
10,789
39,504
6,691
79
278
86,037
281,890
565
46,361
19,540
0
20,353
0
0
663,158

FY22-23
Actual
Expenses
86,154
4,619
4,500
6,605
37,127
5,196
42
57,815
32,298
0
19,908
4,185

148

231,032
284,746

FY23-24
Amended

Budget
188,445
6,750
3,010
15,163
57,715
14,308
200
400
79,500
406,849
2,000
60,000
3,000
23,104
0
18,000
0
0
878,444

FY23-24
Amended
Budget
140,258
8,300
20,567
2,960
12,989
55,690
10,721
200
500
62,062
311,015
700
47,836
25,231
0
22,050
0
0
721,079

FY23-24
Amended
Budget
94,252
7,700
2,280
7.821
37,127
7,326
100
78,975
27,000
17
18,900
5738

176,246 265,580 15.0%
213,152 308,545 8.4%
FY23-24 FY24-25 %
YTD(04/24) Estimated Change
Actual Budget Budgets
156,991 202,424 7.4%
1,816 6,750 0.0%
2,050 3,010 0.0%
11,975 16,232 7.1%
42,545 77,290 33.9%
7,712 15,332 7.2%
84 200 0.0%
0 400 0.0%
56,353 85,500 7.5%
345,281 419,054 3.0%
350 2,000 0.0%
41,584 60,000 0.0%
594 9,000 200.0%
25,587 28,145 21.8%
0 O ik
10,665 18,000 0.0%
0 O Yedrd
g Q dkk
703,586 943,339 7.4%
FY23-24 FY24-25 %
YTD(04/24)  Estimated Change
Actual Budget Budgets
134,820 153,698 9.6%
8,036 6,000 -27.7%
15,094 20,567 0.0%
2,000 2,960 0.0%
11,360 14,017 7.9%
46,349 55,690 0.0%
8,160 11,706 9.2%
76 200 0.0%
0 500 0.0%
57,246 62,062 0.0%
240,686 320,345 3.0%
74 700 0.0%
30,194 50,228 5.0%
23,214 25,231 0.0%
0 0 dkk
13,165 23,153 5.0%
O 0 L2213
_O_ g *ekek
590,474 747,057 3.6%
FY23-24 FY24-25 %
YTD(04/24)  Estimated Change
Actual Budget Budgets
75,246 99,436 5.5%
5,639 5,700 -26.0%
1,800 2,280 0.0%
5,793 8,217 5.1%
30,939 37,127 0.0%
4,669 7,706 5.2%
42 100 0.0%
78,975 63,000 -20.2%
15,071 14,000 -48.1%
16 0 -100.0%
12,588 19,845 5.0%
5,734 6,312 10.0%



540
940
949

43200

111
112
135
141
142
143
147
251
262
320
331
510
540
940
949

43200

111
112
114
135
141
142
143
147
220
251
262
266
320
331
510
540
935
940
949

(o] (= e e}
Do oo

268,54 287,23

FY22-23 FY23-24
Actual Amended
Expenses Budget

Depreciation Expense 0
Purchase of Equipment 0
Small Equipment 4]
TOTAL: 263,898
Fy22-23
LEAF COLLECTION (028} Amended
Budget
Salaries-Fulltime 145,464
Salaries-Overtime 5,750
Salaries - longevity 6,685
OASI 11,331
Health & Life Ins. 51,933
Retirement 10,287
Unemployment Ins. 250
Hiring Expense 315
Maintenance & Repair 13,800
Operating Supplies 9,400
Gas 11,652
Operating Insurance 9,506
Depreciation Expense 40,000
Large equipment 0
Small equipment 0
TOTAL: 316,373
FY22-23
RECYCLE PROGRAM (069) Amended
Budget
Salaries-Fulitime 315,000
Salaries-Overtime 18,500
Salaries-Parttime 0
Salaries - longevity 17,674
OASI 26,111
Health & Life Ins. 114,575
Retirement 23,435
Unemployment Ins. 435
Printing & Publication 0
Hiring Expense 1,325
Maintenance & Repair 43,000
Repair of Building 12,500
Operating Supplies 9,300
Gas 45,406
Operating ins. 14,420
Depreciation Expense 30,000
Purchase of Dumpsters/Containers 25,113
Equipment Purchase 0
Small Equipment 0

TOTAL: 696,794

TOTAL SOLID WASTE OPERATIONS 2,814,561

TOTAL SOLID WASTE EXPENDITURES 3,083,380

142,727 182,598
5,646 7,000
6,685 1,430

11,306 14,614
51,830 54,592
10,252 13,898
111 250
314 315
13,789 40,386
9,107 6,370

11,651 6,297
9,280 11,766
40,000 0
0 0

0 0

312,699 339,516

FY22-23 FY23-24
Actual Amended

Expenses  Budget

313,338 364,641
17,338 16,000

0 0

16,750 3,950
24,608 29,268
113,052 129,858
22,799 27,754

239 435
0 0
801 1,000

42,694 31,080
12,452 14,900

8,676 12,800
45,405 27,860
13,006 16,045

30,000 0
25,113 28,035
0 0
0 0

686,260 703,726

2,764,821 2,930,001

3,025,539 3,214,747

149

0
0

0
236,512

FY23-24
YTD(04/24)
Actual

115,215
4,172

800

8,846
44318
8,498

102

304

39,687
5,824

5,294
11,763

a

0

0

244,822

FY23-24

YTD(04/24)
Actual

296,833
15,762
0
4,000
23,506
103,399
22,184
210
0
74
31,865
9,521
6,637
24,607
16,044
0
27,667
0
0
582,309

2,357,703

2,670,856

0

0

[¢]

263,723

FY24-25
Estimated
Budget

188,063

7,000

1,430

15,032

45311

14,298

250

315

17,500

6,689

12,000

11,506

0

0

0

319,393

FY24-25
Estimated
Budget
392,474
14,000
0
3,950
31,397
138,128
29,795
435
0
1,000
32,634
16,900
12,800
40,598
14,420
0
29,437
0
0
757,967

3,031,479

3,340,024

-5.9%

%
Change
Budgets

32.2%
-11.2%
-1.3%
33.6%
33.6%
34.3%
107.2%
1245.5%
2.4%
77.5%
92.8%
65.0%
-10.1%
6.4%

Tk

7.7%

3.5%

3.9%



112 REVENUES

33470
35140
35200
36100
36320
36350
36990
37800

42129
112
141
190
220
262
280
310
320
321
323
799
940
949

State & Federal Grants
Drug Fines

Confiscated Money
Interest Income

Sale of Confiscated Items
Insurance Recoveries
Miscellaneous Income
Appropriated Fund Balance

TOTAL:

EXPENDITURES

Administration

Salaries - Overtime

OASI

Professional Service
Printing and Publications
Repair of Equipment
Training

Office Supplies

Operating Supplies
Community Service (DARE)
Fringerprinting

General Expense

Purchase of Equipment
Other Equipment Purchased

TOTAL:

CITY OF TULLAHOMA
Drug Fund
FY2024-2025 BUDGET

FY22-23 FY22-23 FY23-24 FY23-24
Amended Actual Amended YTD(04/24)
Budget Revenues Budget Actual
0 0 0 6,311
11,603 9,776 11,200 17,329
17,500 83,529 10,000 8,863
150 938 200 2,958
0 5,897 0 6,150
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
803 [t} 73.875 Q
30,056 100,140 95,275 41,611
FY22-23 FY22-23 FY23-24 FY23-24
Amended Actual Amended YTD(04/24)
Budget Expenses Budget Actual
4,900 3,921 4,900 1,205
453 300 375 100
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
900 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
3,500 2,785 3,000 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
8,000 6,000 9,000 2,500
0 0 66,000 63,402
11.500 2.000 12,000 7212
29,253 20,006 95,275 74,419

150

FY24-25
Estimated
Budget

0
11,200
10,000

200

0
0
0

th
<
]
~J
h

FY24-25
Estimated

Budget
4,900
375

Lo~ e e BN o I )

3,000

9,000
42,000
13.000
72,275

%
Change

Budgets

deded

0.0%
0.0%
0.0%

F k%
Rk

Fdok

-311%
-24.1%

%
Change
Budgets

0.0%

0.0%
ok

*dkk
#kk
sokok
Kk
0.0%
*ok

k%

0.0%
-36.4%
8.3%
-24.1%



Tullahoma Industrial Development Board

FY 2024-2025 Budget

REVENUES
Bond Service Fees
Interest Income
Transfer From City General Fund
Rock Tenn Bldg Rental
Miscellaneous Income(insurance refund)
Appropriated Fund Balance
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES

Postage

Legal Expense

Supplies & Copies

Membership & Dues

Utilities-Rock Tenn Bldg

Property & Liability Insurance

Meeting Expense

Training & Travel

Recruitment/Marketing

DREMC substation payment

Bldg repairs & contingency
Total Expenses

FY2023 FY2024 FY2024 FY2025
Actual Amended YTD(04/24) Estimated
Revenues Revenues Actual Budget
1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000

260 200 256 200
60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000
22,750 0 0 0
0 10,600 0 0

0 12,525 0 6,650
84,010 83,725 61,256 67,850
FY2023 FY2024 FY2024 FY2025
Actual Amended YTD(04/24) Estimated
Expenses Expenses Actual Budget
0 125 0 0

100 200 0 200

93 200 0 200

550 600 0 600

0 500 0 0

11,014 11,014 0 250

0 100 0 100

0 2,000 0 1,500

0 5,000 0 5,000
60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000
0 3,986 0 0
71,757 83,725 60,000 67,850

151



Tullahoma Airport Authority
FY2024-2025 BUDGET

REVENUES
Operations
. 33400 TN Aeronautics Division- Maintenance

33200 TN Aeronautics
33471 State Grant Revenue
33472 ACRGP-Covid 19 Grant
33476 State Grant-Virtower
36100 interest Income
36731 Event Sponsorships & AOPA
36990 Miscellaneous income
37812 Community Hangar Rentals
37814 Sale of oil
37515 Hangar leases
37516 Sale of fuel
37518 Office leases
37840 Catering income

TOTAL:

Non-Operating Revenue
37800 Appropriated Fund Balance
37801 Appropriated Fund Balance-restricted
37810 City of Tullahoma operating transfer
37812 Coffee County appropriation

TOTAL:

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Administration

111 Salaries-Fulltime -TAA

116 Salaries-Financial Administration
135  Salaries-Longevity

141 OASIH

142  Health & Life Insurance

143  Retirement

147  Unemployment insurance

211 Postage

220  Printing & Publication

235 Memberships & Dues

245 Telephone

251  Hiring Expense

252  Legal Fees

253  Audit fees

255  Information Tech.

262  Repair of Equipment

280  Training & Travel

310  Office Supplies

320  Operating Supplies

331 Gas &0l

510  Operating Insurance(liab & property)
597  Capital Outlay-Interest Expense
598 UDAG payments

FY22-23 FY22-23 FY23-24
Amended Actual Amended
Budget Revenues Budget
15,000 15,000 15,000
0 226,424 0
295,000 0 0
23,000 23,000 0
6,000 6,000 0
900 2,346 1,200
0 0 0
1,000 4,363 1,000
32,810 24,152 30,000
2,050 2,999 2,000
86,300 115,630 150,000
1,307,000 1,307,162 1,165,000
792 792 726
100 Q 9
1,779,952 1,727,868 1,364,926
¢] 0 93,558
0 0 0
165,560 165,560 156,000
15.000 15,000 15,000
180,560 180,560 264,558
1,960,512 1,908,428 1,629,484
FY22-23 FY22-23 FY23-24
Amended Actual Amended
Budget Expenses Budget
130,051 130,050 160,956
29,269 29,269 51,315
5,561 5,557 2,612
12,597 12,527 15,138
25,907 25,907 25,904
11,541 11,530 14,313
245 91 100
200 190 250
1,200 1,094 1,100
750 708 750
6,188 6,124 5,700
0 0 29
2,500 0 2,700
6,000 6,000 7,200
7,292 6,585 6,500
200 50 200
105 60 2,000
3,350 2,257 3,350
6,350 6,297 6,150
800 632 800
8,000 7,964 10,728
6,400 5,281 4,661
19,000 17,328 18,000

152

FY23-24
YTD(04/24)
Actual

1,888
11,232
1,988
110,648
1,165,932
770

0

1,298,986

70,697
0
130,000
16,200
216,897

1,515,883

FY23-24
YTD(04/24)
Actual
127,527
50,891
2,012
13,690
22,673
12,188
63
226
509
658
4,129
29
0
2,000
6,422
200
1,905
1,817
5,929
480
10,727
4,661
14,440

FY24-25 %
Estimated  Change
Budget Budgets
15,000 0.0%
0 0.0%
O ok
0 0.0%
0 0.0%
1,200 0.0%
0 s
1,000 0.0%
25,000 -16.7%
2,000 0.0%
150,000 0.0%
1,199,950 3.0%
726 0.0%
0 -100.0%
1,394,876 2.2%
20,612 -78.0%
0 ik
156,000 0.0%
15,000 0.0%
191,612 -27.6%
1,586,488 -2.6%
FY24-25 Y%
Estimated  Change
Budget Budgets
169,809 5.5%
46,613 -9.2%
2,612 0.0%
16,756 10.7%
28,385 9.6%
15,864 10.8%
180 50.0%
250 0.0%
1,100 0.0%
750 0.0%
5,700 0.0%
0 -100.0%
2,700 0.0%
7,000 -2.8%
6,000 1.7%
200 0.0%
1,500 -25.0%
3,350 0.0%
5,500 -10.6%
800 0.0%
11,801 10.0%
4,661 0.0%
18,000 0.0%



760
790
795
796
799

111
112
114
135
141
142
143
147
240
244
251
262
263
265
266
267
269
283
320
326
330
350
510
937
938
939
940
945
949

Transfer to capital projects- local match 295,000

Sponsored Events
Contingency

AOPA Fly-in Non-Grant
Miscellaneous expense

Operations

Salaries-Full time
Salaries-O/T
Salaries-Part-time
Salaries-Longevity
OASI

Health & Life Insurance
Retirement
Unemployment Insurance
Utilities-Electric
Utilities- Gas

Hiring Expense

Repair of Equipment
NDB/SDF/PAPI
Tractor & fuel

Building maintenance
Fuel Tanks

Airfield maintenance
Catering Expense
Operating Supplies
Uniforms

Purchase of oil for sale
Cost of goods sold
Operating Insurance
Airfield Capital repair

Terminal & Hangar Capital repair

Fuel Tanks Replacement
Equipment - Large
Vehicles & Equipment
Terminal Bldg furnishings

0 0

0 0 0

2,539 0 0

0 0 0

¢} 9 9.983

TOTAL: 581,045 275,501 350,439
FY22-23 FY22-23 FY23-24

Amended Actual Amended

Budget Expenses Budqet

36,885 36,881 39,101

0 0 100

69,410 69,407 64,775

5,550 5,550 240

8,645 8,541 7,500

10,293 9,994 10,294

2,859 2,660 2,866

250 115 150

31,752 31,295 31,752

2,200 1,755 2,200

300 79 300

2,100 293 3,000

100 100 100

10,660 10,659 10,500

17,197 16,355 18,000

7,000 6,796 11,800

19,500 18,136 16,700

100 0 o]

0 0 0

0 0 0

3,400 3,319 3,100

1,126,214 1,126,208 1,010,500

21,961 21,883 27,625

0 0 0

0 0 0

0 0 0

0 0 18,442

0 0 0

0 [t} 9

TOTAL: 1,376,376 1,370,027 1,279,045

1,645,527 1,629,484

Total Expenditures 1,957,421

153

O o oo

{7}

9.98

293,164

FY23-24
YTD(04/24)
Actual
34,028
0
62,846
o]
7,405
8,353
2,538
113
24,896
1,156
91
0
100
6,908
15,396
11,596
13,762
0
0
0
2,326
985,138
27,625
0
0
0
18,442
0
[+
1,222,719

1,615,883

0

0
30,000
0

4]
379,500

FY24-25
Estimated
Budget
48,852
0
52,775
240
7,793
10,294
3,581
150
31,752
2,200
300
3,000
100
10,500
18,000
7,000
19,500
0
3,600
1,200
3,100
952,664
30,388

0
0
0
0
0
0
1,206,988

1,586,488

whk
ek
Hhk

Hkk

-100.0%
8.3%

%
Change
Budgets

24.9%
-100.0%
-18.5%
0.0%
3.9%
0.0%
24.9%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
-40.7%
16.8%

-100.0%

*dek

ek

-5.6%



31500
36100
33470
36990
37800
37801
37802
31930
31931
37810

52000

111
115
135
141
142
143
147
190
220
235
245
252
253
255
262
280
310
322
331
510
540
790
799

949

52000

111
114
136
141
142
143
147
190
195
186
220

TIF Application Fee

Interest Income

Grant revenue - Tourism
Miscellaneous Income

City of Tullahoma-Operations
City of Tullahoma-Tourism

City of Tullahoma-Downtown
City of Tullahoma TtF Payment
Coffee County TIF Payment
Appropriated Fund Balance

Total Revenue:

Economic Development (010)

Salaries-Fulltime
Salaries-Administrative Support
Salaries - longevity
OASI

Health Insurance
Retirement
Unemployment
Professional Services
Printing & Publications
Memberships & Dues
Telephone

Legal Services
Auditing Services
Information Technology
Maintenance & Repair
Travel & Training
Office Supplies
Recruiting & Marketing
Gas

Operating Insurance
Depreciation Transfer
TIF Bank Escrow Payment
Special Events

Small Equipment

Total Economic Development

Tourism (020)

Salaries-Fulltime
Salaries-Parttime
Salaries - longevity
OAS!

Health Insurance
Retirement
Unemployment
Professional Services
Historic Signs

TDTD Grant Service
Printing & Publication

TAEDC

FY2024-2025 BUDGET

%

Budgets

0.0%
0.0%

0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
65.6%

3.0%

%
Change

Budgets
5.5%
5.5%
0.0%
54%
5.0%
5.5%
0.5%
-0.2%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
288.9%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
-42.8%
0.0%
0.0%
10.0%
0.0%
-62.5%

drkk

2.8%

%
Change
Budgets

FY22-23 FY22-23 FY23-24 FY23-24 FY24-25
Amended  Actual Amended YTD(04/24) Estimated Change
Budget Revenes Budget Actual Budget
525 396 400 2,949 400
550 1,445 700 2,835 700
0 0 0 0 0
0 315 [¢] 0 o]
175,000 186,696 185,000 154,167 185,000
20,000 15,000 15,000 12,500 15,000
20,000 15,000 15,000 12,500 15,000
85,000 58,370 85,000 67,430 85,000
105,000 77,174 105,000 88,629 105,000
[¢] 0 19,276 0 31,925
406,075 354,395 425,376 341,010 438,025
FY22-23 FY22-23  FY23-24 FY23-24 FY24-25
Amended  Actual Amended YTD(04/24) Estimated
Budget Expenses Budget Actual Budget
87,800 86,767 92.858 73,572 97,965
5,350 5,305 8,263 4,962 6,607
2,435 2,390 965 568 965
7,217 6,878 7,657 5,771 8,074
19,448 19,447 18,563 16,243 19,492
4,762 4,556 7,266 3,936 7,665
230 189 199 22 200
30,350 30,094 30,400 30,358 30,350
1,250 1,098 1,250 329 1,250
2,320 2,320 1,785 1,667 1,785
1,020 599 800 450 800
500 0 500 0 500
1,500 1,500 1.800 0 7,000
1,900 1,056 2,500 o] 2,500
500 299 500 36 500
16,000 11,979 16,000 11,615 16,000
400 122 700 535 400
11,800 5,596 11,900 4,733 11,900
700 509 700 272 700
2,291 1,631 2,520 543 2772
0 0 0 ¢ 0
170,000 135,744 190,000 0 190,000
2,781 1,109 1,600 0 600
9 0 g 2 0
370,654 319,086 396,726 155,611 408,025
FY22-23 FY22-23 FY23-24 FY23-24 FY24-25
Amended  Actual Amended YTD(04/24) Estimated
Budget Expenses Budget Actual Budget
5,000 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 ] 0
383 [¢] 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 o]
500 0 2,650 0 2,650
1,600 600 1.600 600 1,600
0 0 ¢ [¢] 0
2,425 1,150 2,425 700 2,425

154



235
255
310
799
900

52000

111
114
1356
141
142
143
147
190
185
186
211
220
235
262
280
310
325
799

Membership & Dues
Technology
Office Supplies
Events
Grant expense
Total Tourism

Downtown (030)

Salaries-Fulltime
Salaries-Parttime
Salaries - longevity
OASI
Health Insurance
Retirement
Unemployment
Professional Services
Grant Professional Services
ARC Wifi Grant Services
Postage
Printing & Publication
Membership & Dues
Repairs-D/T WIFI, Etc
Training & Travel
Office Supplies
Grant Supplies
Events

Total Tourism

Total TAEDC

2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000

600 0 0 0

300 31 600 0

5,000 0 4,375 0

[ Q 2 9

17,808 3,781 13,650 3,300
FY22-23  FY22-23 FY23-24 FY23-24

Amended  Actual Amended YTD(04/24)

Budget Expenses Budget Actual

5,000 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

383 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

] 0 0 0

0 o] 0 0

1,000 450 4,212 300

0 o] 0 0

0 0 0 0

300 0 300 0

2,000 0 2,000 o]

630 0 630 0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 o]

300 4] 300 ]

[ 0 0 0

8.000 0 7.558 0

17,613 450 15,000 300

406,075 323,317 425,376 158,211

155

2,000
600
300

5,425

Q
15,000

FY24-25
Estimated

Budget

7,558
16,000

438,025

0.0%
ek
-50.0%
24.0%

etk

9.9%



36100
36300
36910
36410
36420
37800

49106-611-010
49106-631-010
49109-611-010
49109-631-010
49111-611-010
49111-631-010
49112-611-010
49112-631-010
49113-611-010
49113-631-010
49114-631-010
49500-254-001

49157-211-020
49157-231-020
49161-611-020
49161-631-020
49162-611-020
49162-631-020
49163-611-020
49163-631-020
51000-790-020

CITY OF TULLAHOMA

DEBT SERVICE FUND
FY2024-2025 BUDGET

REVENUES

Bond Interest

Refunding Bond Proceeds

Debt Service-Re-Offering Premium
General Fund Transfer

School Board Transfer
Appropriated Fund Balance
Interest Income

TOTAL REVENUES:

EXPENDITURES

City of Tullahoma
2009 TMBF City Note-Principal

2009 TMBF City Note-Interest
2013 Pool renovation - Principal
2013 Pool renovation - Interest
2015 TMBF Loan - Recreation proj. Prin.
2015 TMBF Loan - Recreation proj. Int.
2016 TMBF loan (ref 2005 bonds) Prin
2016 TMBF loan (ref 2005 bonds) Int
2017 TMBF City-Principal
2017 TMBF City-Interest
2023 TMBF City-Interest
Fiscal Agent Fees/Debt Issuance

Total City

2009 TMBF School ($12M)-Principal
2009 TMBF School ($12M)-Interest
2013 THS roof renovation- Principal
2013 THS roof renovation- Interest
2020 Ref School (2006-2010)-Principal
2020 Ref School (2006-2010)-Interest
2021 Farrar School Bonds-Principal
2021 Farrar School Bonds-Interest
Transfer to City School-Bond Projects

Total School

Total Expenditures

FY22-23 FY22-23 FY23-24 FY23-24 FY24-25
Amended Actual Amended  YTD(04/24) Estimated
Budget Revenues Budget Actual Budget
0 0 1,000 0 0

0
0 0 0 0 0
1,259,851 1,259,851 1,246,456 950,156 1,433,215
2,735,120 2,622,294 3,185,607 2,079,050 3,175,795
18,968 0 74,036 0 40,000
0 4,707 0 1,814 0
4,013,939 3,886,852 4,507,099 3,031,020 4,649,010
FY22-23 FY22-23 FY23-24 FY23-24 FY24-25
Amended Actual Amended  YTD(04/24) Estimated
Budget Expenses Budget Actual Budget
48,000 48,000 50,000 0 52,000
29,745 20,578 27,585 21,697 25,335
95,000 95,000 96,000 0 97,000
60,170 60,170 67,820 54,725 64,940
119,000 119,000 120,000 0 122,000
83,753 83,753 87,320 76,674 83,720
325,000 325,000 340,000 340,000 350,000
32,825 32,825 25,122 25,122 17,064
310,000 310,000 317,000 317,000 325,000
165,326 165,326 157,645 157,645 149,781
0 0 30,000 3,545 183,375
10,000 1,100 3,000 1,403 3,000
1,278,819 1,260,751 1,321,492 997,811 1,473,215
492,000 492,000 514,000 0 537,000
342,135 229,309 319,995 245,327 296,865
80,000 80,000 82,000 82,000 84,000
8,585 8,585 6,212 6,212 3,780
1,055,000 1,055,000 1,055,000 1,055,000 1,100,000
297,050 297,050 244,300 244,300 191,550
25,000 25,000 530,000 530,000 555,000
435,350 435,350 434,100 434,100 407,600
0 0 0 0 0
2,735,120 2,622,294 3,185,607 2,596,939 3,175,795
4,013,939 3,883,045 4,507,099 3,594,750 4,649,010

156



Revolving Loan Funds

FY2024-2025 BUDGET

REVENUES
Commercial (UDAG)
311 Loan Payments
311 Application Fees
311 Interest Earnings
311 Miscellaneous
311 Appropriated Fund Balance

UDAG Totals:

Small Business (USDA)
321 Loan Payments
321 Application Fees
321 Credit Report Fees
321 Interest Earnings
321 Appropriated Fund Balance

USDA Totals:

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Commercial (UDAG)
311 Loan Administration
311 Demolition of condemned property
311 Commercial Loans
311 Sign improvement grants

UDAG Totals:

Small Business (USDA)
321 Loan Administration
321 Legal Expense
321 Loan fees
321 Small Business Loans

USDA Totals:

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

FY2023 FY2024 FY2024 FY2025
Actual Amended YTD(04/24) FEstimated
Revenues  Budget Actual  Revenues
202,293 200,000 143,112 150,000
50 100 - 100
9,716 4,000 29,758 10,000
16 50 - 50
113,944 412,850 - 461,850
326,019 617,000 172,870 622,000
FY2023 FY2024 FY2024 FY2025
Actual Amended YTD(04/24) Estimated
Revenues  Budget Actual  Revenues
35,052 15,000 7,981 7,500
25 50 25 50
0 0 0 0
1,572 600 5,337 3,000
0 45,050 0 50,150
36,649 60,700 13,343 60,700
362,668 677,700 186,213 682,700
FY2023 FY2024 FY23-24 FY2025
Actual Amended YTD(04/24) Estimated
Expenses Budget Actual Expense
1,019 2,000 53 2,000
- 15,000 - 20,000
325,000 600,000 - 600,000
326,019 617,000 53 622,000
FY2023 FY2024 FY23-24 FY2025
Actual  Amended YTD(04/24) Estimated
Expenses Budget Actual Expense
0 200 0 100
0 500 0 500
0 0 0 100
7,500 60,000 0 60,000
7,500 60,700 0 60,700
333,519 677,700 53 682,700

157



611

41100
799-001
940-003
940-001
949-007
940-008
940-012
949-012
940-010
940-023
940-025
940-036
790-001
940-010

CITY OF TULLAHOMA
Equipment Reserve Fund
FY2024-2025 BUDGET

REVENUES

State/Federal Grants

Interest Income

Police Surplus Sale

Fire Surplus Sale

Sale of equipment

Insurance Recoveries
Transfers from General Fund
Transfers from Solid Waste
Transfers from TAEDC
Transfer from Loan Proceeds
Approp. Fund Balance

TOTAL:

EXPENDITURES

Administration
Miscellaneous-Equip Reserve
Administration-Vehicle
Administration-Equipment
Technology-Equipment
Planning-Equip & Vehicles
Police-Equip & Vehicles
Police-Vehicle Accessories
Fire-Equip&Vehicles

Public Works -Equip & Vehicles
Solid Waste-Equipment/Vehicles
Recreation-Equip & Vehicles
Contingency

TAEDC-Vehicles

TOTAL:

FY2023 FY2024 FY2024 FY2025
Amended YTD(06/24) Estimated
Actual Budget Actual Revenues
0
13,821 5,000 32,764 5,000
0 0 11,244
0 925 1,925
1,047 10,000 0 10,000
266,223 33,603 42,528 0
405,000 0 0 0
40,000 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
4,182 997,686 256,539 829,555
730,273 1,047,214 345,000 844,555
FY2023 FY2024 FY2024 FY2025
Amended YTD(06/24) Estimated
Actual Budget Actual Expense
0 2,225 0 52,225
0 17,751 0 0
0 17,265 0 65,000
0 45,000 22,298 70,453
0 16,341 0 16,341
254,833 163,217 2,025 161,192
20,814 24,500 24,106 0
0 143,080 110,359 32,721
8,055 271,560 0 271,560
446,571 50,377 0 65,377
0 265,898 186,212 79,686
0 0 0 0
0 30,000 0 30,000
730,273 1,047,214 345,000 844,555

158



CITY OF TULLAHOMA
Building Repair Reserve

FY2024-2025 BUDGET

612
REVENUES

36100 Interest Income
36350 Insurance Recoveries
36410  Transfers from General Fund
36411 Transfer - Municipal Bldg
36413  Transfer-Fire Halls
36414  Transfer-Public Works Bldg
36415  Transfer-Recreation Bldg
36416  Transfers from Solid Waste
36990  Miscellaneous Income
37800  Approp. Fund Balance

TOTAL:

EXPENDITURES

Administration
41800-266-005 Repairs-Municipal Bldg
41800-266-01( Repairs-Planning Annex
42200-266-017 Repairs - Fire Hall
43333-266-01C Repairs-Public Works
43200-266-065 Repairs-Solid Waste
44400-266-034 Repairs-Community Center
44400-266-035 Repairs-Pool
44400-266-03¢ Repairs-Recreation/Parks
44400-760-01¢ Transfer to Capital Projects-313
44143-266-01¢ Repairs-Animal Control
41800-266-011Repairs - Misc. Buildings
51000-760-04¢ Repairs-Civic Center
51000-760-05¢ Repairs-Senior Center

TOTAL:

FY2023 FY2024 FY2024 FY2025
Actual Amended YTD(04/24) Estimated
Revenues Budget Actual Revenue
11,826 10,000 36,220 15,000
767,349 337,050 337,256 0
0 0 0 0
140,000 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
30,000 0 0 0
190,000 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 1,543,691 524,691 977,574
1,139,175 1,890,741 898,167 992,574
FY2023 FY2024 FY2024 FY2025
Actual Amended YTD(04/24) Estimated
Expenses  Budget Actual Expense
11,786 478,377 27,337 451,040
0 25,000 18,967 6,033
164,182 39,534 0 39,534
441,039 678,600 645,682 32,918
0 106,000 0 106,000
24,048 145,242 9,703 135,539
28,012 186,988 13,563 173,425
0 164,000 137,552 26,448
0 20,000 20,000 0
0 47,000 25,363 21,637
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 9 0 g
669,067 1,890,741 898,167 992,574

159



CITY OF TULLAHOMA
Internal Service Fund
FY2024-2025 BUDGET

REVENUES

Interest Income

Pharmacy Rebate

Transfers from Other Funds
Approp. Fund Balance

TOTAL:

EXPENDITURES

Administration

Health Ins. Claims
Plan Administration
Vision/Dental/Life/Dis
Benefits Consultant
ACA federal tax
Professional Services
Operating Supplies
Annual Health Fair

TOTAL:

FY2023 FY2024 FY2024 FY205 %
Actual Amended YTD(06/24)  Proposed Change
Revenues Budget Actual Budget Budgets
19,581 7,000 68,302 7,000 0%
103,136 100,000 0 100,000 0%
2,444,750 2,491,932 2,526,816 2,508,292 1%
0 556,007 0 555,112 0%
2,567,468 3,154,939 2,595,118 3,170,404 0%
FY2023 FY2024 FY2024 FY2025 %
Actual Amended YTD(06/24)  Proposed  Change
Expense Expense Actual Budget Budgets
1,702,405 2,413,491 1,913,848 2,423,456 0%
531,026 585,598 331,582 585,598 0%
81,979 88,100 81,986 88,100 0%
36,750 36,750 27,563 36,750 0%
5,414 6,000 4,924 6,000 0%
4,570 18,500 5,751 22,500 22%
0 1,000 0 1,500 50%
3,089 5,500 1,050 6,500 18%
2,365,234 3,154,939 2,366,704 3,170,404 0%

160



Capital Projects Budgets
FY2024-2025 BUDGET

REVENUES

City
302 ARPA Grant Revenue
302 TDEC Grant Revenue

302 ARPA Appropriated Fund Balance

303 ARC Grant - Downtown
303 Transfer from General Fund
303 Appropriated Fund Balance

304 TECD Pivot & Recover Grant

304 ECD Projects- sale of land
305 SRTS- Grundy St.

305 STP Grant -Ledford Mills
305 STP Grant -Short Springs
305 Transfer from general fund
305 Interest Income

305 Appropriated Fund Balance
305 Sale of Land

306 THDA HOMES grant

312 Downtown Landscaping
312 Appropriated Fund Balance

313 Misc. Cap. Projects- from bldg res

313 Transfer from General Fund
313 Appropriated Fund Balance
314 CDBG-Grants

314 Trans. From General Fund
314 Appropriated Fund Balance

315 2019 STP Grant-Cedar sidewalks

315 Appropriated Fund Balance

316 CDBG Daycare Grant-Little Angels
316 CDBG- Transfer from other capital

319 2023 TMBF
319 Appropriated Fund Balance

City Totals:

Airport
320 Aeronautics Grant Revenue
320 Interest Income
320 Appropriated Fund Balance
320 Transfer From General Fund
320 Transfer from other capital

FY2023 FY2023 FY2024 FY23-24 FY2025
Amended Actual YTD(05/24)  Proposed
Budget Revenues Budget Actual Revenues
2,901,116 2,901,116 0 0 0
2,370,558 0 2,370,558 0 2,370,558
2,901,116 0 4,745,274 0 2,732,303
100,000 3,925 96,075 7,347 88,728
0 0 0 0 0
30,000 0 26,075 0 25,295
75,000 70,000 5,000 5,000 0
0 0 0 425,000 0
5,761 0 0 0 0
1,042,699 23,361 1,032,442 48,403 984,039
41,281 52,885 40,783 0 40,783
0 0 0 0 0
3,000 12,180 4,000 38,857 0
859,677 0 690,451 0 280,858
0 113,330 0 0 0
750,000 0 750,000 150,630 599,370
0 0 30,641 27,641 3,000
0 0 0 0 27,641
0 0 20,000 20,000 0
0 0 120,000 120,000 0
50,000 0 49,653 0 49,306
203,363 173,916 29,447 26,884 0
326,500 326,500 0 0 0
143,158 0 40,315 0 60,867
767,360 1,154 766,206 5,392 760,814
363,049 0 304,750 0 298,551
250,000 10,000 241,000 231,400 8,460
0 0 1,000 1,000 0
7,500,000 1,737,000 5,763,000
0 0 0 1,737,000 662,341
13,183,638 3,688,365 18,863,670 4,581,554 14,755,914
FY2023 FY2023 FY2024 FY23-24 FY2025
Amended Actual YTD(05/24)  Proposed
Budget Revenues Budget Actual Revenues
581,781 96,103 485,678 82,755 402,923
30 86 0 0
30,590 0 30,380 0 30,155
0 0 0 0
0 0 0

0
161



320 Transfer from Airport
Airport Totals:

TOTAL REVENUES

Capital Projects Budgets
FY2024-25

H

EXPENDITURES
City
302 North Jackson Streetscape Design
302 Public Safety Radios
302 Patrol/SRO vehicles
302  Fire - SCBA units
302 Fire - replacement firetruck
302 TDEC Plans & Prof Services
302 TDEC Capital Construction
302 TDEC stormwater contingency
302 Johnson Lane Parking & Design
302 Waggoner Park Field Lighting
302 Residential Garbage Truck (2)
302 Contingency
303 ARC Downtown - Engineering
303 ARC Downtown- Admin.
303 ARC Downtown-Fagade Grants
303 ARC-Downtown-Public Improvements
304 TECD Business Training Grant '
30S Short Springs
305 SRTS-Grundy St.
305 STP Ledford Mill Project
305 Drainage-All Project
305 Transfer to Other Capital
305 Comprehensive Land Use Study
305 Sidewalk Repair/ADA
305 TUA Downtown Signalization
306 HOMES housing rehab expense
312 Downtown Landscaping
313 Baltz Historic Building
313 Waggoner Park backstop
314 CDBG Stormwater-Professional Services
314 Stormwater-Capital Outlay
314 Administrative Expenses-CDBG
314 Transfer to other capital
315 Police Facility
315 STP Cedar lane sidewalks
315 Sidewalks-Kings Lane/Ovoca

0 0 0 0
612,401 96,189 516,058 82,755 433,078
13,796,039 3,784,555 19,379,728 4,664,309 15,188,992
FY2023 FY2023 FY2024 FY23-24 FY2025
Amended Actual YTD(05/24)  Proposed
Budget Expenses Budget Actual Expenses
400,000 21,353 84,672 27,446 57,226
880,000 - 879,227 874,072 -
0 - 540,000 349,026 190,974
0 - 416,370 414,570 -
0 - 1,285,016 0 1,285,016
511,600 - 511,600 12,323 499,277
2,451,598 - 2,451,598 5,750 2,445,848
600,000 - 590,000 0 590,000
850,000 24,772 63,728 29,208 34,520
789,467 710,847 78,621 78,621 -
300,000 299,986 215,000 208,279 -
1,390,125 - - 0 -
5,000 4,250 750 392 358
10,000 3,600 6,400 1,550 4,850
70,000 - 70,000 6,185 63,815
45,000 - 45,000 0 45,000
75,000 70,000 5,000 5,000 -
122,150 111,495 10,655 13 10,642
20,972 16,375 0 0 -
1,297,198 24,650 1,272,548 111,309 1,161,239
54,090 0 53,090 4,260 48,830
0 0 1,000 1,000 -
41,782 13,703 28,079 0 28,079
66,226 18,510 52,304 25,222 56,890
350,000 0 350,000 334,442 -
750,000 0 750,000 150,630 599,370
0 0 30,641 0 30,641
50,000 347 49,653 347 49,306
0 0 140,000 139,690 -
4,000 1,009 5,000 3,382 -
595,000 595,000 0 0 -
14,021 7,250 6,771 2,950 -
60,000 0 57,991 0 60,867
38,752 22,930 15,822 0 15,822
955,261 1,837 953,424 6,341 947,083
99,64% 27,382 72,267 5,250 67,017



315 CD Stamps Roof & HVAC
315 Silver Street Park
316 CDBG Daycare Grant-Little Angels
316 CDBG- Daycare Added expense
319 Kings Lane/Ovoca Sidewalk
319 Johnson lane Restrooms & pavillion
319 Johnson lane parking
319 Tara Estates Drainage
319 North Jackson Crosswalk
319 William Northern Roadway, signal
319 City Hall Renovation
319 So. Jackson Center roof
319 TMBF Loan issuance cost
319 Parks Maintenance Bldg
319 Rock Creek Bridge Repair
319 TMBF Loan Contingency
City Totals:

Airport
320 19821-Runway 24 Lighting
320 19421-Airport Layout Plan
320 FY21 N. Taxiway rehab construct
320 FY23 Obstruction Mitigation
320 FY23 Airfield Electrical Vault
320 FY23 Turf Runway Regrading
320 FY23 Land Acquisition
Airport Totals;

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

17,785 7,304 10,481 0 -
18,962 0 18,962 0 29,443
250,000 10,000 240,000 231,540 8,460
0 0 2,000 0 -
0 0 703,750 618,784 84,966
0 0 827,812 228,653 599,159
0 0 800,000 0 800,000
0 0 250,000 5,571 244,429
0 0 400,000 0 400,000
0 0 950,000 7,669 942,331
0 0 1,750,000 0 1,750,000
0 0 300,000 168,982 131,018
0 0 45,000 45,000 -
0 0 400,000 0 400,000
0 0 90,000 0 90,000
0 0 983,438 0 983,438
13,183,638 1,992,600 18,863,670 4,103,457 14,755,914
FY2023 FY2023 FY2024 FY23-24 FY2025
Amended Actual YTD(06/24)  Proposed
Budget Expenses Budget Actual Expenses
60,000 20,876 39,124 0 39,124
142,401 53,868 88,533 14,102 74,431
0 0 0 0
140,000 16,606 123,394 9,178 114,216
155,000 0 155,000 32,619 122,381
50,000 0 50,000 13,929 36,071
65,000 4,993 60,007 13,152 46,855
612,401 96,343 516,058 82,980 433,078
13,796,039 2,088,943 19,379,728 4,186,437 15,188,992

163



24-25 GEN PURPOSE BUDGET

6/13/2024

FY 24 FYZ24 FY25

Budget (amended | Projected End
ACCOUNT NUMBER 8.15.23) of Year Budget
UNDESIGNATED FUND BALANCE 300,000 0 0
40100 COUNTY TAXES
40110 CURRENT PROPERTY TAX-COFFEE CO. 6,128,011 6,609,130 6,250,571
40111 CURRENT PROPERTY TAX -FRANKLIN CQ 190,000 230,362 199,500
40120 TRUSTEE'S COLLECTION-PRICR YEAR 150,000 123,529 150,000
40130 CIRCUIT CLERK/C&M-PRIOR YEAR 27,500 24,311 27,500
40140 INTEREST & PENALTY 42,000 27,679 42,000
40161 PAYMENTS IN LIEU-TVA 100,000 102,654 100,000
TOTALS ACCOUNT NUMBER 40100 6,637,511 7,117,664 6,769,571
40600 CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT REVENUES
40710 LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX 5,440,238 6,777,298 6,186,101
TOTALS ACCOUNT NUMBERS 40600/40700 5,440,238 6,777,298 6,186,101
41000 LICENSES & PERMITS
41110 MARRIAGE LICENSES 1,300 1,641 1,350
TOTALS ACCOUNT NUMBER 41000 1,300 1,541 1,350
43000 CHARGES FOR SERVICES
43511 TUITION-REGULAR DAY STUDENTS 196,500 196,500 196,500
43570 RECEIPTS FROM INDIVIDUAL SCHOOLS 5,000 21,227 5,000
43980 OTHER CHARGES FOR SERVICES 0
TOTALS ACCOUNT NUMBER 43000 201,500 217,727 201,500
44000 OTHER LOCAL REVENUE
44110 INTEREST EARNED 85,000 264,805 120,000
44170 OTHER REVENUE 0 1,464 0
44300 NURSING REIMBURSEMENT 0 205,232 65,000

164



24-25 GEN PURPOSE BUDGET

6/13/2024

44520 INSURANCE RECOVERY 0 2,328 0
44530 SALE OF EQUIPMENT 0 6,105 0
44560 DAMAGES RECOVERED FROM INDIVIDY, 0 487 0
44570 CONTRIBUTIONS & GIFTS 23,000 24,877 23,000
44570 CONTRIBUTIONS & GIFTS - TEF 0 0 0
44800 CITY LIQUOR TAX 78,000 47,575 79,000
TOTALS ACCOUNT NUMBER 44000 186,000 552,873 287,000
46500 STATE EDUCATION FUNDS

46510 TENNESSEE IVESTMENT IN STUDENT AQ 23,357,557 24,228,896 24,732,866
46515 PRE-K 376,591 373,277 376,581
46590 OTHER STATE EDUCATICN FUNDS-CSH 0 11,185 0
46592 INTERNET CONNECTIVITY 0 0 0
46595 STUDENT MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 0 0 0
46610 CAREER LADDER 60,000 52,490 60,000
TOTALS ACCOUNT NUMBER 46500 23,794,148 24,665,858 25,169,457
46800 OTHER STATE REVENUES

46840 STATE "DICKEL" TAX 2,100 2,405 2,100
46982 SCHOOL SAFETY 145,208 145,208 0
46990 PARENTAL LEAVE 0 20,972 0
TOTALS ACCOUNT NUMBER 46800 147,308 147,613 2,100
47100 FEDERAL FUNDS through STATE

47143 IDEA PART-B HIGH COST 78,780 93,015 78,780

165



24-25 GEN PURPOSE BUDGET

6/13/2024

47210 JTPA/LITERACY PROGRAM 160,468 150,530 160,468
47590 OTHER FEDERAL THRU STATE 0 0
TOTALS ACCOUNT NUMBER 47100 239,248 243,545 239,248
49000 OTHER SOURCES /NON-REVENUE
49810 CITY GENERAL FUND TRANSFERS 4,738,867 4,738,867 4,738,867
TOTALS ACCOUNT NUMBER 490600 4,738,867 4,738,867 4,738,867
TOTALS FOR GENERAL PURPOSE FUND 41,686,120 44,462,987 43,585,194
EXPENDITURES FY24 FY24 FY25
Projected End
ACCOUNT NUMBER Budgeted of Year Budget
71100 REGULAR EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM
116 TEACHERS 13,071,240 13,040,559 14,191,420
117 CAREER LADDER 30,548 29,646 30,000
163 EDUVCATEONAL ASSISTANTS 1,114,730 1,119,847 1,338,460
195 SUBSTITUTE TEACHERS 330,000 334,150 330,000
201 SOCIAL SECURITY 901,884 839,273 985,173
204 STATE RETIREMENT 1,149,962 1,011,411 1,117,199
206 LIFE INSURANCE 22,355 22,315 23,431
207 MEDICAL INSURANCE 2,301,757 2,317,175 2,453,888
208 DENTAL INSURANCE 63,675 59,985 62,984
299 VISION INSURANCE 23,057 22,179 23,288
212 MEDICARE 210,925 201,146 230,403
355 TRAVEL 20,000 9,839 17,500
399- Other Contracted Services 0 8,906 0

166



24-25 GEN PURPOSE BUDGET

6/13/2024

429 INSTRUCTIONAL SUPPLIES & MATERIALS 364,500 364,500 352,000
449 TEXTBOOKS 400,000 400,000 400,000
489 - Other Supplies & Materials 0 28,208 12,500
524 STAFF DEVELOPMENT 10,000 3,473 10,000
599 OTHER CHARGES 115,000 143,244 115,000
722 REGULAR INSTRUCTIONAL EQUIPMENT 791,000 791,000 791,000
TOTAL 71100 ACCOUNT 20,920,632 20,746,856 22,484,246
71200 SPECIAL EDUCATION PROGRAM

116 TEACHERS 1,886,322 1,825,267 1,896,333
117 CAREER LADDER 3,000 2,000 3,000
162 CLERICAL PERSONNEL 0 0 0
163 EDUCATIONAL ASSISTANTS 872,158 856,604 893,742
171 SPEECH PATHOLOGISTS 94,241 106,246 121,197
189 OTHER SALARIES 3,733 0
195 SUBSTITUTE TEACHERS 70,000 75,875 70,000
201 SOCIAL SECURITY 179,039 166,606 185,046
204 STATE RETIREMENT 213,832 194,548 204,022
206 LIFE INSURANCE 6,013 6,018 6,309
207 MEDICAL INSURANCE 548,980 598,705 642,234
208 DENTAL INSURANCE 17,192 16,199 17,133
212 MEDICARE 41,872 39,192 43,277
299 VISION INSURANCE 6,215 5,941 6,272
312 CONTRACTS WITH PRIVATE AGENCIES 146,000 0 50,000
355 TRAVEL 0

399 OTHER CONTRACTED SERVICES 0 )

429 INSTRUCTIONAL SUPPLIES & MATERIALS 32,000 35,190 50,000
499 OTHER INSTRUCTIONAL SUPPLIES 32,500 13,488 32,500

167



24-25 GEN PURPOSE BUDGET

8/13/2024

599 OTHER CHARGES 1,324 0
725 SPECIAL EDUCATION EQUIPMENT 10,000 14,341 10,000
APPROX AMOUNT FROM SPED TRANSFER

TOTAL 71200 ACCOUNT 4,159,375 3,961,277 4,231,065
71300 VOCATIONAL EDUCATION PROGRAM

105 SUPERVISOR/DIRECTOR 110,174 110,172 113,792
116 TEACHERS 532,460 515,952 599,208
117 CAREER LADDER 1,000 1,000 1,000
201 SOCIAL SECURITY 39,905 37,009 44,268
204 STATE RETIREMENT 55,693 46,399 52,979
206 LIFE INSURANCE 737 825 867
207 MEDICAL INSURANCE 89,965 96,621 102,322
208 DENTAL INSURANCE 2,220 2,376 2,497
299 VISION INSURANCE 787 842 885
212 MEDICARE 9,333 8,655 10,353
355 TRAVEL 12,000 15,000 12,000
429 INSTRUCTIONAL SUPPLIES AND MATERIAL 15,000 20,000 15,000
599 OTHER CHARGES 5,000 300 5,000
730 VOC EQUIPMENT 0 0 0
TOTAL 71300 ACCOUNT 874,274 855,151 960,171
72110 ATTENDANCE

105 SUPERVISOR/DIRECTOR 103,380 103,379 106,639
162 CLERICAL PERSONNEL 44,200 28,845 34,653

168



24-25 GEN PURPOSE BUDGET

6/13/2024

201 SOCIAL SECURITY 9,150 7,352 8,760
204 STATE RETIREMENT 13,403 8,592 9,933
206 LIFE INSURANCE 192 174 192
207 MEDICAL INSURANCE 10,909 14,815 15,689
208 DENTAL INSURANCE 554 475 554
299 VISION INSURANCE 196 168 196
212 MEDICARE 2,140 1,719 2,049
355 TRAVEL 675 1,116 750
499 OTHER SUPPLIES AND MATERIALS 2,000 564 2,000
524 STAFF DEVELOPMENT 3,000 4,081 4,500
599 OTHER CHARGES 750 5,625 750
TOTAL 72110 ACCOUNT 190,549 176,905 186,665
72120 HEALTH SERVICES

105 SUPERVISOR/DIRECTOR 73,008 76,008 74,468
131 NURSES 416,310 423,431 429,462
201 SOCIAL SECURITY 30,338 28,524 31,244
204 STATE RETIREMENT 34,317 33,001 33,511
206 LIFE INSURANCE 767 764 803
207 MEDICAL INSURANCE 100,869 101,857 107,867
208 DENTAL INSURANCE 2,220 2,112 2,220
299 VISION INSURANCE 787 749 2,220
212 MEDICARE 7,095 6,671 7,307
355 TRAVEL 300 737 300

169



24-25 GEN PURPOSE BUDGET

6/13/2024

413 DRUGS AND MEDICAL SUPPLIES 35,000 12,832 35,000
499 OTHER CHARGES 9,500 6,636 9,500
524 STAFF DEVELOPMENT 5,200 4,470 5,200
TOTAL 72120 ACCOUNT 715,710 697,793 739,101
72130 OTHER STUDENT SUPPORT

117 CAREER LADDER 0 1,000 2,000
123 GUIDANCE PERSONNEL 643,684 667,560 699,892
161 SECRETARY 39,832 44,897 30,964
201 SOCIAL SECURITY 42,378 41,261 45,437
204 STATE RETIREMENT 56,901 48,007 49,101
206 LIFE INSURANCE 959 955 1,004
207 MEDICAL INSURANCE 97,337 104,980 11,174
208 DENTAL INSURANCE 2,497 2,376 2,497
299 VISION INSURANCE 984 936 984
212 MEDICARE 10,253 9,650 10,626
312 CONTRACTS W/PRIVATE AGENCIES 48,000 76,879 79,545
322 EVALUATION AND TESTING 15,000 116 15,000
524 STAFF DEVEL.OPMENT 340 95 340
TOTAL 72130 ACCOUNT 958,164 998,712 1,048,564
72210 INSTRUCTIONAL STAFF/ REG. INST. PROG.

105 SUPERVISOR/DIRECTOR 256,808 257,653 270,518

170



24-25 GEN PURPOSE BUDGET

6/13/2024

117 CAREER LADDER 3,000 2,600 3,000
129 LIBRARIANS 292,476 269,859 290,178
161 SECRETARY 66,320 66,320 69,677}
201 SOCIAL SECURITY 38,353 34,206 39,269
204 STATE RETIREMENT 35,977 _ 37,049 44,018 ;
206 LIFE INSURANCE 507 580 610
207 MEDICAL INSURANCE 51,960 54,912 58,152
208 DENTAL INSURANCE 1,554 1,676 1,761
289 VISION INSURANCE 551 594 1,761
212 MEDICARE 8,970 8,000 9,184
308 CONSULTANTS 0 0 0
355 TRAVEL 500 741 500
432 LIBRARY BOOKS 50,000 50,000 50,000
524 STAFF DEVELOPMENT 6,000 7,421 7,000
589 OTHER CHARGES 200 633 500
TOTAL 72210 ACCOUNT 813,175 792,244 846,130
72220 SPECIAL EDUCATION PROGRAM

105 SUPERVISOR/DIRECTOR 120,165 119,873 117,502
117 CAREER LADDER 0 0 0
124 PSYCHOLOGIST 80,000 50,480 54,497
162 CLERICAL PERSONNEL 89,444 85,643 99,828
189 OTHER SALARIES 325,270 264,961 301,835
201 SOCIAL SECURITY 38,122 30,918 35,567
204 STATE RETIREMENT 26,167 29,961 34,993

171



24-25 GEN PURPOSE BUDGET

6/13/2024

206 LIFE INSURANCE 475 757 788
207 MEDICAL INSURANCE 42,340 76,488 81,001
208 DENTAL INSURANCE 1,376 2,098 2,198
212 MEDICARE 7,619 7,231 6,871
299 VISION INSURANCE 749 744 749
355 TRAVEL 5,000 3,615 3,000
399 OTHER CONTRACTED SERVICES 150,075 66,577 75,000
499 OTHER SUPPLIES & MATERIALS 22,500 27,479 22,500
524 STAFF DEVELOPMENT 34,000 38,653 37,500
598 OTHER CHARGES 10,000 37,449 26,500
TOTAL 72220 ACCOUNT 953,302 842,937 900,328
72250 TECHNOLOGY

105 SUPERVISOR/DIRECTOR 121,466 125,110 131,439
117 CAREER LADDER 1,000 0 0
163 EDUCATIONAL ASSISTANTS 382,166 380,398 399,649
201 SOCJAL SECURITY 31,287 30,314 32,927
204 STATE RETIREMENT 39,770 38,267 40,203
206 LIFE INSURANGE 671 665 699
207 MEDICAL INSURANCE 57,795 59,048 62,5632
208 DENTAL INSURANCE 1,942 1,848 1,942
212 MEDICARE 7,317 7,090 7,701
299 VISION INSURANCE 689 655 688
355 TRAVEL 4,000 3,520 4,000

172



24-25 GEN PURPOSE BUDGET

6/13/2024

435 OFFICE SUPPLIES 1,000 724 1,000
524 STAFF DEVELOPMENT 6,000 4,049 6,500
598 OTHER CHARGES 10,000 1,293 8,000
TOTAL 72250 ACCOUNT 665,103 652,981 697,281
72310 GENERAL ADMIN/BD OF EDUCATION

191 DIRECTOR'S FEE 10,500 10,500 10,500
118 SECRETARY TO BOARD 0 0 0
201 SOCIAL SECURITY 651 698 651
205 HSA FRINGE 65,000 0 65,000
206 LIFE INSURANCE 2,655 2,362 0
207 MEDICAL INSURANCE 173,227 174,469 184,763
208 DENTAL INSURANCE 11,496 10,160 10,678
298 VISION INSURANCE 3,454 2,685 2,822
210 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 10,000 5,679 10,000
211 LOCAL RETIREMENT 650,000 650,000 650,000
212 MEDICARE 152 163 152
305 AUDIT SERVICES 35,000 24,190 48,500
320 DUES AND MEMBERSHIP 19,500 20,177 19,500
331 LEGAL SERVICES 39,000 24,300 27,000
355 TRAVEL 4,500 0 4,500
506 LIABILITY INSURANCE 234,552 235,424 269,735
508 PREMIUM ON CORP. SURETY BONDS 2,500 2,479 2,500
510 TRUSTEE COMMISSION 150,000 150,000 150,000

173

10



24-25 GEN PURPOSE BUDGET

6/13/2024

513 WORKMEN'S COMPENSATION 156,522 166,522 180,000
524 STAFF DEVELOPMENT 30,000 33,402 30,000
599 OTHER CHARGES 25,000 31,743 25,000
TOTAL 72310 ACCOUNT 1,623,710 1,534,953 1,691,301
72320 OFFICE OF THE SUPERINTENDENT

101 ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 188,155 189,165 192,938
117 CAREER LADDER 1,400 0 0
161 SECRETARY 72,470 72,470 76,137
201 SOCIAL SECURITY 16,308 14,322 16,683
204 STATE RETIREMENT 19,008 18,613 19,158
206 LIFE INSURANCE 192 190 200
207 MEDICAL INSURANCE 6,504 7,320 7,752
208 DENTAL INSURANCE 556 422 444
299 VISION INSURANCE 197 187 197
212 MEDICARE 3,814 3,697 3,902
307 COMMUNICATIONS 150,000 144,274 150,000
348 POSTAL CHARGES 6,000 6,767 6,000
355 TRAVEL 0 3,500
435 OFFICE SUPPL!ESA 10,000 6,173 10,000
524 STAFF DEVELOPMENT 18,000 8,851 18,000
599 OTHER CHARGES 20,000 18,281 18,000
TOTAL 72320 ACCOUNT 513,604 490,722 522,809
72410 OFFICE OF THE PRINCIPAL

103 ASSISTANT PRINCIPALS 776,045 680,596 801,681

174

11



24-25 GEN PURPOSE BUDGET

6/13/2024

104 PRINCIPALS 856,750 857,066 876,712
117 CAREER LADDER 3,000 3,973 3,000
161 SECRETARIES 271,920 309,220 387,649
201 SOCIAL SECURITY 118,278 110,436 128,281
204 STATE RETIREMENT 137,355 134,099 134,281
206 LIFE INSURANCE 1,629 2,107 2,214
207 MEDICAL INSURANCE 184,080 229,694 243,246
208 DENTAL INSURANCE 4,717 5,835 6,133
299 VISION INSURANCE 1,672 2,069 2,175
212 MEDICARE 85,847 24,536 30,001
435 OFFICE SUPPLIES 25,000 25,843 25,000
524 STAFF DEVELOPMENT 2,500 1,965 2,500
599 OTHER CHARGES 1,000 96 1,000
TOTAL 72410 ACCOUNT 2,469,794 2,387,535 2,643,871
72510 FISCAL SERVICES

105 SUPERVISOR/DIRECTOR 140,812 140,813 147,938
119 BOOKKEEPERS 1 93,564 193,563 203,357
201 SOCIAL SECURITY 20,731 19,856 21,780
204 STATE RETIREMENT 22,684 22,757 23,923
206 LIFE INSURANCE 383 380 399
207 MEDICAL INSURANCE 36,898 39,282 41,610
208 DENTAL INSURANCE 1,110 1,056 1,110
299 VISION INSURANCE 393 374 393
212 MEDICARE 4,848 4,644 5,094
365 TRAVEL 0 300
399 OTHER CONTRACTED SERVICES 47,500 38,724 47,500

175

12



24-25 GEN PURPOSE BUDGET 6/13/2024

435 OFF!CE SUPPLIES 3,000 5,190 3,500
524 STAFF DEVELOPMENT 1,500 1,179 1,500
599 Other 0 2,155 1,500
TOTAL 72510 ACCOUNT 473,424 469,983 499,805
72520 HR/PERSONNEL

105 SUPERVISOR/DIRECTOR 147,240 150,388 156,947
162 CLERICAL PERSONNEL 165,376 150,479 169,266
201 SOCIAL SECURITY 19,382 17,798 20,225
204 STATE RETIREMENT 25,653 22,009 23,846
206 LIFE INSURANCE 386 344 460
207 MEDICAL INSURANCE 42,336 34,727 36,776
208 DENTAL INSURANCE 1,056 792 1,056
299 VISION INSURANCE 393 346 393
212 MEDICARE 4,533 4,162 4,730
355 TRAVEL 500 991 1,000
435 OFFICE SUPPLIES ‘ 5,000 4,592 5,000
498 OTHER SUPPLIES AND MATERIALS 1,000 0 1,000
524 STAFF DEVELOPMENT 3,500 6,494 4,500
599 OTHER CHARGES 32,135 39,683] 32,135
TOTAL 72110 ACCOUNT 448,490 432,715 457,334
72610 OPERATION OF PLANT

166 CUSTODIAL PERSONNEL 810,372 820,365 838,713
201 SOCIAL SECURITY 50,245 49,269 52,000
204 STATE RETIREMENT 43,774 46,628 47,639
206 LIFE INSURANCE 2,230 2,163 2,271

13

176



24-25 GEN PURPOSE BUDGET 6/13/2024

207 MEDICAL INSURANCE 205,965 180,364 191,005
208 DENTAL INSURANCE 6,673 5,726 6,018
289 VISION INSURANCE 2,366 2,200 2,312
212 MEDICARE 11,750 11,622 12,161
398 OTHER CONTRACTED SERVICES 800,000 793,503 850,000
410 CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES 150,000 155,191 150,000
415 ELECTRICITY 950,000 985,456 1,000,000
434 NATURAL GAS 122,000 73,617 122,000
454 WATER AND SEWER 85,000 81,960 85,000
4899 Other Supplies 0 0 8,000
599 OTHER CHARGES 2,000 15,964 6,500
TOTAL 72610 ACCOUNT 3,242,373 3,223,828 3,373,620

72620 MAINTENANCE OF PLANT

189 OTHER SALARIES 618,276 523,224 645,393
201 SOCIAL SECURITY 38,333 31,655 40,014
204 STATE RETIREMENT 34,528 30,150 37,110
206 LIFE INSURANCE 1,054 908 954
207 MEDICAL INSURANGE 96,346 82,012 86,851
208 DENTAL INSURANGE 2,775 2,495 2,622
299 VISION INSURANCE 1,082 894 940
212 MEDICARE 8,965 7,403 9,358
335 MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR OF BLDGS 460,000 453,340 460,000
336 MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR OF EQUIP 150,000 153,735 150,000
338 MAINTENANCE and REPAIR VEHICLES 0 20,474 12,500
425 GASOLINE 18,000 13,884 16,000
499 OTHER SUPPLIES 1,500 11,346 10,000

14

177



24-25 GEN PURPOSE BUDGET

6/13/2024

71 7 MAINTENANCE EQUIPMENT 15,000 15,000 15,000
718 MOTOR VEHICLES 82,558 79,601 50,000
TOTAL 72620 ACCOUNT 1,528,418 1,426,121 1,536,743
72710 TRANSPORTATION

146 BUS DRIVERS 136,000 188,497 185,000
189 OTHER SALARIES AND WAGES 124,000 149,048 150,000
201 SOCIAL SECURITY 16,120 21,134 20,770
204 STATE RETIREMENT 7,183 7,568 7,236
206 LIFE INSURANCE 100 95 100
207 MEDICAL INSURANCE 3,151 7,320 7,811
208 DENTAL INSURANCE 400 283 400
289 VISION INSURANCE 200 94 200
212 MEDICARE 3,770 4,943 4,858
338 MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR OF VEHICLES 35,000 28,546 35,000
425 GASOLINE 42,000 33,933 35,000
511 VEHICLE INSURANCE 0 0 0
599 OTHER CHARGES 14,000 15,158 14,000
717 TRANSPORTATION EQUIPMENT 126,000 126,000 145,000
TOTAL 72710 ACCOUNT 507,894 562,629 605,375
76100 REGULAR CAPITAL OUTLAY

;107 BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS 628,130 1,657,262 170,585
TOTAL 76100 ACCOUNT 628,130 1,657,262 170,585
TOTAL EXPENDITURES GENERAL PURPOSE Fi 41,686,120 41,930,604 43,595,194

178

0

15



Federal FY25 - TCS

Grant Revenue Expenses
AALN k-8 $50,000.00 $50,000.00
CTE Perkins Basic $75,310.46 $75,310.46
Title | $1,180,875.66 $1,180,875.66
Title 1I $364,446.31  $364,446.31
Title IV $29,150.00 $29,150.00
Title V $93,907.78 $93,807.78
IDEA Preschool $44,123.00 $44,123.00
IDEA Part B $955,926.00  $955,026.00
Totals $2,793,739.21  $2,793,739.21

179



TULLAHOMA CITY SCHOOLS NUTRITION DEPARTMENT

BUDGET

REVENUE
ACCOUNT
NUMBER 24-26
43620 EARNINGS FROM TEMP. INVESTMENT $3,000.00
43521 RECEIPTS--STUDENT LUNCH $0.00
43522 RECEIPTS--ADULTS $30,000.00
43523 RECEIPTS--BREAKFAST $0.00
43625 A LA CARTE $650,000.00
44499 OTHER LOCAL REVENUES
TOTAL LOCAL INCOME $683,000.00
46520 STATE MATCHING FUNDS $26,000.00
TOTAL STATE MATCHING $25,000.00
47111 USDA-LUNCH $1,200,000.00
47113 USDA--BREAKFAST $999,034.00
47112 USDA COMMODITY REIMBURSEMENT $126,000.00
47114 OTHER $98,600.00
RECEIVED THROUGH STATE $2,422,634.00
GRAND TOTAL $3,130,634.00
EXPENDITURES
ACCOUNT
NUMBER
73105 105 SUPERVISOR $120,000.00
73100 166 CAFETERIA PERSONNEL $871,500.00
73100 201 SOCIAL SECURITY $560,000.00
73100 212 MEDICARE $11,000.00
73100-204 NEW RETIREMENT $28,000.00
73100-206 HSA FRINGE $1,034.00
73100 211 RETIREMENT $10,000.00
73100 207 HEALTH INSURANCE $176,000.00
73100 208 DENTAL INSURANCE $7,000.00
73100 206 LIFE INSURANCE $2,000.00
73100 299 VISION INSURANCE $2,000.00
73100 210 UNEMPLOYMENT
73100 336 REPAIR OF EQUIPMENT $20,000.00
73100 354 TRANSPORTATION OF FOOD $8,000.00
73100 365 TRAVEL-PERSONNEL $50,000.00
73100 399 OTHER CONTRACTED SERVICES $60,000.00
73100 422 FOOD $1,400,000.00
73100 469 COMMODITIES $126,000.00
73100 499 OTHER MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES $125,000.00
73100 710 EQUIPMENT $76,000.00

|

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

$3,130,634.00

180




4

T3

-
Oy
(s

To: Board Members
From: Hank Jordan
Date: 6/14/2024

Subject: Amended Max Price Budget - Farrar Elementary School

At a special board meeting on 1/2/2024, an $18,097,370 Guaranteed Max Price Budget (GMP) for the Farrar
Elementary School project was approved. That budget was based on sealed bids collected on 12/21/23. There
were four trades, however, where bids were not received, and the budget was based on estimates. These
trades were HVAC, General Trades, Casework/Millwork, and Building Concrete.

These four trade packages were rebid in late January, with two trades exceeding their estimated costs.
Additionally, it was discovered that some electrical work needed to the existing building is now required and not
an alternate as originally thought. Based on these updates, the staff requests approval for a $942,785.46
increase to the original GMP. The amended GMP budget would be $19,040,155.46.

The table below presents more details on the cost increase,

HVAC Allowance Overage $501,525.00
Casework/Countertops Allowance Overage $135,879.00
Electrical Aitern.ate $262,732.00
Business Tax $85.30
General Liability Insurance $4,242.53
Building Risk insurance $1,066.00
Payment & Performance Bond $5,374.00
Contractor’s 3.5% Fee $31,881.63
Total $942,785.46

181



TULLAHOMA CITY SCHOOLS
KOOL KIDS PROGRAM
Proposed Budget 2024-2025

PROJECTED REVENUE 2024 - 2025
Tuition Fees
Registrations

TOTAL PROJECTED REVENUES 2024-2025

PROJECTED EXPENDITURES 2024 - 2025
Personnel Costs
Salaries
Employee Benefits

Total Personnel Costs

Non-personnel Costs
Snacks

Consumable Supplies
Office Supplies
Training Expense
Field Trip Expense

Total Nen-personnel Costs

TOTAL PROJECTED EXPENSES 2024 - 2025

$206,000.00
2,000.00

$208,000.00

$167,500.00
$27,000.00

$194,500.00

$ 8,000.00
4,000.00
500.00
500.00

—500.00
$ 13,500.00

$208,000.00

*There will be NO proposed fee increases for the 2024-2025 schoel term.

Registration/Tuition fees will not vary from the 2023-2024 term

182



2024-2025

REVENUE
ACCOUNT NUMBER PROPOSED
ARPA Grant Reserves 29797
43400 CHARGES FOR SERVICES

43511 TUITION - REGULAR DAY STUDENTS 191,915
43521 - MEALS 10,000
43990 OTHER CHARGES FOR SERVICES 3,400
TOTALS ACCOUNT NUMBER 43400 205,315
44000 OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

44110 INTEREST EARNED

44170 OTHER REVENUE ( ESSER) 0
44570 CONTRIBUTIONS & GIFTS 8,112
TOTALS ACCOUNT NUMBER 44000 8,112
TOTALS FOR LITTLE CATS 243,224
EXPENDITURES 2024-25
ACCOUNT NUMBER PROPOSED
73400 Extended School Program

105 SUPERVISOR/DIRECTOR 53,665
116 TEACHERS 134,459
201 SOCIAL SECURITY 11,664
204 STATE RETIREMENT 4,868
206 LIFE INSURANCE 185
207 MEDICAL INSURANCE 14,200
208 DENTAL INSURANCE 454
299 VISION INSURANCE 161
212 MEDICARE 2,728
429 INSTRUCTIONAL SUPPLIES & MATERIALS 9,361
435 OTHER SUPPLIES AND MATERIALS 1,500
539 OTHER CHARGES (MEALS) 10,000
TOTAL 72110 ACCOUNT 243,224
TOTAL EXPENDITURES LITTLE CATS 243,224

183




AGENDA ITEM NO. 25-77

DATE: July 28, 2025
TO: Board of Mayor and Alderman
FROM: Kenneth Pearson (Fire Chief)

Jason Quick, City Administrator

SUBJECT: Hazardous Materials truck and trailer transfer

BACKGROUND

Hazardous Materials Truck 706 (V305) and the associated hazardous materials trailer, designated as
the hazmat response vehicle, have played a crucial role in responding to numerous hazardous
material incidents both locally and in surrounding communities. Initially purchased with Homeland
Security funds through District 6, all subsequent maintenance and service have been provided by the
city.

The Tullahoma Fire Department is seeking approval to transfer ownership of the truck and trailer to
the Coffee County Emergency Management Agency (EMA). Coffee County EMA will take
responsibility for the hazmat response vehicle and trailer, including all future maintenance and
service.

Deployments for hazardous materials incidents have been a collaborative effort between the
Tullahoma and Manchester Fire Departments, and this partnership will continue to be a vital
resource. Coffee County EMA will also respond to future hazardous materials incidents with the
support of personnel from both the Tullahoma and Manchester Fire Departments.

RECOMMENDATION
Approve the transfer of Hazardous Materials Truck 706 and Hazardous Materials Trailer to Coffee
County EMA.

FISCAL IMPACT
No fiscal impact

184



AGENDA ITEM NO. 25-78

DATE: July 28, 2025
TO: Board of Mayor and Alderman
FROM.: Kenneth Pearson, Fire Chief

Jason Quick, City Administrator

SUBJECT: Firehall 2 Roof Replacement

BACKGROUND

The Tullahoma Fire Department is committed to maintaining its fire station facilities to ensure they
remain in good working order. Firehall 2 roof condition has deteriorated over the years and needs
replacement. The original roof was designed with 24” centers and 7/16” OSB which has caused the
roof to dip between the trusses. To remedy this the new roof will have %, plywood installed to
stabilize the roof in a manner that will not be prone to dipping between the trusses. Over the years,
we have made repairs and patched this roof to eliminate leak issues, but it has reached a point of its
lifespan that it is in need of replacement.

To address this issue, the Tullahoma Fire Department sought bids for the project from contractors:
Barrett Construction, Ross Services Corporations, Horst Company, and Carden Construction
submitted bid packages. Among the four, Barrett Construction submitted the lowest quote.

Contractor Name Amount
Barrett Construction $ 70,448.00
Ross Services Corporation $ 79,335.13
Horst Company $ 89,975.00
Carden Construction $123,786.00
RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommend that the Board approve the quote from Barrett Construction to replace the current
roof.

FISCAL IMPACT
The funds for this project will be provided from the budget account 612-42200-266-017.

ATTACHMENTS

Bid from Barrett Construction

Bid from Ross Services Corporation
Bid from Horst Company

Bid from Carden Construction

185



CITY OF TULLAHOMA

BID PACKAGE FOR
TULLAHOMA FIRE DEPARTMENT
STATION 2 ROOF AND REPAIRS BID

186



CITY OF TULLAHOMA
Request for Bids
201 W. Grundy Street
P.O. Box 807
Tullahoma, TN 37388
(931) 455-2648

Description: Work consists of the construction of Tullahoma Fire Department Station 2 Roof and
Repairs at 1801 Ovoca Rd, Tullahoma, Tennessee.

Offer Due Date: June 6, 2025 Bid Document No.: 2025-03
2:00 p.m. Local Time

It is the purpose of this document to solicit bids for the City of Tullahoma (herein referred to as the City) for the
Tullahoma Fire Department Station 2 Roof and Repairs. Quantities are NOT guaranteed. The City of Tullahoma
reserves the right to accept or reject any or all bids received. The bids for the services specified will be received
by the City at the below-specified location until the time and date cited. Bids received by the correct time and date
will be opened and the name of each Contractor will be publicly read.

No pre-bid meeting will be held. Site visits by Bidders are encouraged and can be arranged by contacting Jasen
Damron, Deputy Chief of Tullahoma Fire Department at (931) 455-0936.

Offer Opening and Submittal Location: City of Tullahoma
Assistant Finance Director
P.O. Box 807
201 W. Grundy Street
Tullahoma, TN 37388

Bids must be in the actual possession of the City of Tullahoma, Assistant Finance Director on or prior to the time
and date, and at the location indicated above. Late Bids will not be considered. The entire bid package must be
submitted in a sealed envelope and marked “TULLAHOMA FIRE DEPARTMENT STATION 2 ROOF AND
REPAIRS BID” with the congggxﬁ"s name and address clearly indicated on the envelope. Inctude license numbert;,
date of licenSe, and classification on outside of bid envelope. Additional instructions for preparing an offer are
provided within. FAX and EMAIL bids are NOT acceptable.

CONTRACTORS ARE STRONGLY ENCOURAGED TQ CAREFULLY READ THE ENTIRE
SOLICITATION.

For questions regarding For questions regarding

General Terms and Conditions contact: Technical Specification contact:

Paige Jackson Jasen Damron

Assistant Finance Director Deputy Chief of Tullahoma Fire Department
(931) 455-2648 ext. 114 (931) 455-0936

187



CITY OF TULLAHOMA

Request for Bids
201 W. Grundy Street
P.O. Box 807
Tullahoma, TN 37388
(931) 455-2648

BID PACKAGE FOR

TULLAHOMA FIRE DEPARTMENT STATION 2 ROOF AND REPAIRS BID

Section One

Section Two

Section Three

Section Four

Section Five

188

Terms and Conditions
General Requirements
Drawings
Photographs

Bid Submission Form



SECTION ONE
TERMS AND CONDITIONS
CITY OF TULLAHOMA
201 West Grundy Street
PO BOX 807
Tullahoma, TN 37388

Page 1 of 5

Evaluation Criteria: Representatives from the City will evaluate and rank each offer based on the criteria
requested within this document. Bids shall be reviewed solely on the information received in the written response.
The decision of the City shall be final and conclusive when the City of Tullahoma Board of Mayor and Aldermen
(the Board) votes and approves the bid.

In addition to the price, the following standards will also be applied in the bid evaluation:

a) The ability of the bidder to perform the contract or provide the material or service required.

b) Whether the bidder can perform the contract or provide the material or service promptly or within the
time specified without delay or interference.

c) References of the character, integrity, reputation, experience and efficiency of the bidder.

d) The previous and existing compliance by the bidder with laws and ordinances relating to the contract or
service.

e) Terms and conditions stated in the bid.

H Compliance with specifications or request for proposal.

The City of Tullahoma reserves the right to accept or reject any or all bid items received, to waive any
informal technicalities or defects, the scope and nature of which it shall be the sole judge, in any bid, insofar
as such technicality or defects do not legally, materially or substantially change such bid. The recommended
Contractor may be required to participate in negotiations concerning the nature and extent of products,
guarantees, and services provided.

Changes: The City reserves the right to revise and make changes within the general scope of work as may be
deemed necessary to best serve the interest of the City. All changes shall be documented by formal amendment.

FOB Point: Prices quoted shall be installed prices at the location specified.

Price: All prices shall be quoted on the enclosed bid submission form. Prices not on the provided bid
submission form shall not be considered.

Contractor’s Errors: The City will not be responsible for any errors or omissions on the part of the Contractor.

Notification of Award: The successful Contactor will be notified by mail that their offer has been accepted by
the Board as recommended for award.

189



SECTION ONE

TERMS AND CONDITIONS
CITY OF TULLAHOMA
201 West Grundy Street
PO BOX 807
Tullahoma, TN 37388

Page 2 of 5
Bid Bond: No bid bond will be required.

Payment and Performance Bond: Prior to entering into a contract with the City, the Contractor shall furnish
both a performance bond and a payment bond, each equal to one hundred percent of the Contract amount. The
performance bond and the payment bond shall be two totally separate bonds and shall bear two different bond
numbers. The Contractor shall pay all expenses in connection with obtaining the said bonds.

Insurance: The contractor shall carry and maintain in full force and effect, insurance in such company or
companies as is acceptable to the City of Tullahoma, insuring the contractor while he/she or his/her employees are
performing the services. The successful bidder must submit copies of appropriate insurance coverage before work
may begin. List and mark the City of Tullahoma as additionally insured if awarded. See Section Two for detail

requirements.

Type of Awards: Where applicable, the City reserves the right to make multiple awards if it is in the best interest
of the City to do so.

Alternate Bids: Bids submitted as alternates, or on the basis of exceptions to specific conditions of purchase
and/or required specifications, must be noted within the “Exceptions” Section of the Bid Form with an attachment
specifying the paragraph(s) being referenced and an adequate explanation of the exception. Exceptions may be
considered if they do not adversely affect the performance to comply with the requirements of the bid.

Effective Period of Offer: This offer shall remain in effect for a period of ninety (90) calendar days from the
offer opening date and is irrevocable.

Payment Terms: If payment terms are not indicated, terms of NET 30 days shall be applied by the City. Payment
terms to apply after receipt of invoice or final acceptance of the product, whichever is later. The payment terms
will be considered in the price evaluation of Bids.

Unit Price to Prevail: In the event of a price disparity between the unit and extended price, the unit price shall
prevail unless judged obviously in error by the City.

Offer Price Corrections: All prices and notations shall be written in ink or typed. Changes or corrections made
on the offer form must be initialed in ink by the individual signing the offer. No corrections will be permitted after
the Bids have been opened.

190



SECTION ONE

TERMS AND CONDITIONS
CITY OF TULLAHOMA
201 West Grundy Street
PO BOX 807
Tullahoma, TN 37388

Page 3 of 5

Technical Specifications: Technical specifications define the acceptable standard. Bids that do not meet or exceed
the specified standards will be reviewed and may be considered if the manufacturer’s product meets industry
standards as determined by the City. In some instances, the name of the manufacturer, a special brand, or make of
an item is used in describing the item or items desired; but this does not restrict the bidder to that manufacturer or
specific article, this means being used simply to indicate the character or quality of the article or service desired;
but the articles or service on which the proposal are submitted must be equal to that specified, and a statement to
that effect shall be made a part of the proposal. Where conflict occurs between the requirement or the General
Conditions and the specifications, the requirements of the specifications will govern.

Restrictive Offer Provisions: If specifications preclude an otherwise qualified contractor from submitting an
offer, a written request for modification must be received by the Assistant Finance Director at least five (5) days
prior to the offer opening. All contractors will be notified by an addendum to the SOLICITATION of any approved
changes.

Responsibility for Compliance with Legal Requirements: The Contractor’s products and services shall be in
full compliance with all applicable Federal, State, and local health, environmental, and safety laws, regulations,
standards, and ordinances, regardless of whether or not they are referred to by the City.

Responsibility for Correction: It is agreed that the Contractor shall be fully responsible for making any
correction, replacement, or modification necessary for specification or legal compliance. In the event of a call
back, Contractor agrees to give the City first priority. Contractor agrees that if the product or service offered does
not comply with written specification, the Finance Director has the right to cancel the sale at any time with full
refund within thirty (30) calendar days after notice of noncompliance. Contractor further agrees to be fully
responsible for any consequential damages suffered by the City.

Warranty: All work shall be guaranteed against defects in material and workmanship for a one-year period
unless otherwise noted. During the warranty period, if a defect should occur, that item shall be repaired or replaced
by the Contractor at no obligation to the City, except where it be shown that the defect was caused by misuse. The
Contractor expressly warrants all items to be new free from defects in design, materials, and workmanship, and to
be fit and sufficient for their intended purpose.

Rejection of Bids: The City reserves the right to reject any or all Bids, or any part thereof, to accept any offer or
any part thereof, or to waive any informalities when it is deemed to be in the City’s best interest.

Tax Exemption: The City is exempt from sales tax and other forms of taxation as a Municipal Corporation.

Late Submission of Claim by Seller: The City will not honor any invoices or claims which are tendered one
year after the last item of the account accrued.

191



SECTION ONE
TERMS AND CONDITIONS
CITY OF TULLAHOMA
201 West Grundy Street
PO BOX 807
Tullahoma, TN 37388

Page 4 of 5

Contractor Errors or Omissions: The City is not responsible for any Contractor’s errors or omissions.

Protest of Award: Any person who has an objection to the awarding of a Solicitation by the City, pursuant to
competitive Bid procedures shall lodge that protest, in writing, with the City Administrator prior to award by the
Board. A protest lodged after award by the Board will not be considered.

Addenda: The City shall not be responsible for any oral instructions made by any employees or officers of the
City in regard to the instructions, drawings, specifications, or contract documents. Any changes to the plans and
specifications will be in the form of an addendum, which will be furnished to all contractors who are listed with
the City as having received the solicitation or to any other vendor who requests an addendum.

Contractor Identification: The City is not responsible for the pre-opening of, post-opening of, or the failure to
open, an offer not properly addressed or identified. The bids must be in a sealed envelope and marked
“TULLAHOMA FIRE DEPARTMENT STATION 2 ROOF AND REPAIRS Bid”.

Contractor Modification: The City will not be responsible for contractors adjusting their offer based on oral
instructions by any member of the City staff.

Contractor Performance: Prior contractor performance in regard to product, service, or representation of/from
the contractor may be used in evaluation of this offer. Unsatisfactory performance to the City may be considered
sufficient grounds for rejection of this offer. Nothing herein is intended to exclude any responsible vendor, his or
her product or service or in any way restrain or restrict competition. On the contrary, all responsible vendors are

encouraged to bid and their bids are solicited.

Inspection: Final inspection and acceptance or rejection will be made at the time of delivery, but all products and
workmanship shall be subject to inspection and test at all times and places. The right is reserved to reject articles
that containdefective material and workmanship. Rejected materials shall be removed by and at the expense of the
contractor promptly after notification of rejection. The City shall not be obligated to pay the full price for any items
that do not meet specifications; however, payment may be made at a proper reduction in price.

Quantities: The City reserves the right to add, reduce, or delete any quantities listed in the bid schedule at the
unit price bid.

References: The vendor/contractor must furnish at least three (3) municipal, county, or state references with your
bid package. Please list on bid submission form.

Quantities: The City of Tullahoma reserves the right to add, reduce, or delete any quantities listed in the bid
schedule at the unit price bid.

192



SECTION ONE

TERMS AND CONDITIONS
CITY OF TULLAHOMA
201 West Grundy Street
PO BOX 807
Tullahoma, TN 37388

Page S of 5

Title VI: “It is the policy of the City of Tullahoma to ensure compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964;
49 CFR, Part 21; related statues and regulations to that end that no person shall be excluded from participation in or be
denied benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance
or any other funding source on the grounds of race, color, sex, national origin, or ancestry. By virtue of submitting a
response to this solicitation, bidders agree to comply with the same non-discrimination policy.”

Iran Divestment Act: “By submission of this bid, each bidder and each person signing on behalf of any bidder certifies,
and in the case of a joint bid each party thereto certifies as to its own organization, under penalty of perjury, that to the
best of its knowledge and belief that each bidder is not on the list created pursuant to § 12-12-106.”

Bid Submission: The City recommends that you submit your sealed bid by a reliable delivery service that guarantees
delivery. Bids received from the U.S. Postal Service have been known to arrive after the bid opening. Also, an
authorized representative from the contractor may submit a sealed bid directly to the City prior or on the date and time
designated in the bid.

Installation Completion Date: The timing of installation will be a factor in the awarding of the bid. Please fill in that
portion of the bid submission form as accurately as possible.

Permits and Licenses: The contractor shall obtain, at the contractor’s expense, all permits and licenses required by
law or ordinance and maintain the same in full force and effect.

Cancellation: The City reserves the right to cancel any agreement for non-appropriation of funds or failure of the
Vendor to perform the services to the satisfaction of the City.

193



DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE AFFIDAVIT

STATE OF TENNESSEE

COUNTY OF COFFEE

The undersigned, principal officer of &/ﬁ#{ @;J/gdm‘ a ﬁg;&zwa-!m LLE | an employer of five
(5) or more employees contracting with Tullahoma City government to provide construction services, hereby

states under oath as follows:
1. The undersigned is a principal officer of M{@M&M (hereinafter
referred to as the “Company”), and is duly authorized to execute this Affidavit on behalf of the
Company.

2. The Company submits this Affidavit pursuant to T.C.A. 50-9-113, which requires each employer with
no less than five (5) employees receiving pay who contracts with the state or any local government o
provide construction services to submit an affidavit stating that such employer has a drug-free
workplace program that complies with Title 50, Chapter 9, of the Tennessee Code Annotated.

3. The Company is in compliance with T.C.A. 50-9-113.

Further affiant saith not.

STATE OF TENNESSEE

COUNTY OF COFFEE
Before me personally appeared R\} Q\ﬂ \‘\&(ﬂb{)\ , with whom | am personally acquainted

(or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence)y.and who acknowledged that such person executed
the foregoing affidavit for the purposes therein contained.

Witness my hand and seal at office this E ﬂ day of T‘ﬁm? , 20 _25

Lordomes AAN w)%j"/\ HOK

~ Notary Public

P
£

My commission expires: __ ()~ 1X-70/1

.........
o N

e

194



SECTION TWO

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS
CITY OF TULLAHOMA
201 West Grundy Street
PO BOX 807
Tullahoma, TN 37388

Page 1 of 3

SCOPE OF WORK:

The work covered by this contract is for new installation of roof and repairs as specifically noted below. The
approximate area of roof is 14,375 sf for the project area identified in the attached Drawings. The Bidder is
responsible for field verifying roof dimensions and basing their bid on the actual roof area and quantities
required for a complete repair to the roof.

Work to be performed includes:

ROOF INSTALLATION
ARCHITECTURAL SHINGLES & 3/4 INCH PLYWOOD MATERIAL & LABOR

Remove shingles and remove felt

Remove 1/2 inch plywood and install 3/4 inch plywood

Remove valley metal flashing and install new valley metal flashing

Clean inside gutters and re-mount gutters

Install moisture guard in valleys

Install synthetic felt

Install architectural shingles

Remove side wall flashing, clean/scrap all debris and install new side wall flashing
Remove large stove vent and exhaust vent. Replace with a new bathroom exhaust fan and terminate
above original roof decking.

10. Remove power vents, cut new holes in wood decking and install new power vents
11. Remove and install new pipe flashings

12. Caulk/seal all flashings

13. Clean all waste/debris, drag magnet, haul away and dispose of all waste/debris

0PN R

The list above is not all inclusive for the installation.

All work shall be completed within 90 days of award of contract. Liquidated damages in the amount of
$100/day shall be assessed against the contractor for delays.

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:
The successful contractor and subcontractors shall maintain the following minimum insurance coverage
during the construction period. A Certificate of Insurance is required as proof of insurance with a copy of an
endorsement naming the City of Tullahoma as an additional insured. List and mark the City of Tullahoma as
additionally insured if awarded. It shall be provided to the City prior to the contractor accessing the site.

CONTRACTOR’S LIABILITY INSURANCE

The limits of liability for the insurance shall be not less than the following amounts or greater where
required by applicable Laws and Regulations.

SECTION TWO
195



GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

CITY OF TULLAHOMA
201 West Grundy Street
PO BOX 807
Tullahoma, TN 37388
Page 2 of 3
Workers” Compensation:
(N Applicable State Requirements Statutory Amount for the State of
Tennessee

(2) Employer’s Liability

Bodily Injury each accident $1,000,000

Occupational Sickness, Disease, $1,000,000

or Death Policy Limit

Occupational Sickness, Disease, $1,000,000

or Death Each Employee
Contractor’s Commercial General Liability Insurance which shall also include complete operations and
product liability coverages and eliminate the exclusion with respect to property under the care, custody and
control of the Contractor:

Commercial General Liability:

(O General Annual Aggregate

(Except Products-Completed Operations) $2,000,000

) Products-Completed Operations Aggregate $1,000,000

3 Personal and Advertising Injury $1,000,000 (per

person/organization)

4) Each Occurrence $1,000,000
(Bodily Injury and Property Damage)

(5) Each Project $1,000,000
Property Damage Liability $1,000,000

(6) Explosion, Collapse, or Underground (XCU) hazards $2,000,000

196



SECTION TWO

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS
CITY OF TULLAHOMA
201 West Grundy Street
PO BOX 807
Tullahoma, TN 37388
Page 3 of 3
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY INSURANCE
Automobile Liability Insurance:
(1 Bodily Injury: $ 500,000 Each Person
$1,000,000 Each Accident
Property Damage: $ 500,000 Each Person
$1,000,000 Aggregate
(2) Combined Single Limit $2,000,000 Each Accident
(Bodily injury and property damage)
UMBRELLA/EXCESS LIABILITY $1,000,000 Per Occurrence CONTRACTUAL

ENDORSEMENT

The Contractual Liability coverage required shall provide coverage for not less than the following

amounts:
N General Aggregate $2,000,000
2) Each Occurrence $1,000,000 (Bodily

Injury and Property Damage)
PROPERTY INSURANCE
None required.
WORK TO BE PROVIDED BY THE CONTRACTOR:
Contractor shall furnish all materials, labor, and equipment to construct the improvements.

The work includes finish grading/seeding/strawing of any disturbed areas, and repair or replacement
of any disturbed areas.

MATERIAL SPECIFICATIONS:
Preparation, products, and workmanship shall conform to the specification included herein.

Refer to submittal requirements in Section 1.01 of the specifications for product information to be submitted
and approved prior to the start of construction.

BASIS FOR PAYMENT:

All costs involved for repairs and construction, including labor, materials, equipment, and incidentals shall
be included in the unit bid prices.

The successful bidder, after award of a contract, shall submit a complete Schedule of Values for each bid

item. Progress payments will be based on work completed during that period at the prices listed in the

Schedule of Values. ‘
SECTIONJFHREE



DRAWINGS
CITY OF TULLAHOMA
201 West Grundy Street
PO BOX 807
Tullahoma, TN 37388

Page 1 of 2

This section includes project location map of the parcel. This section consists of two (2)
pages of parcel maps.

SECTIONJJHREE



DRAWINGS
CITY OF TULLAHOMA
201 West Grundy Street
PO BOX 807
Tullahoma, TN 37388

Page 1 of 2

Lourty Mambes: 710 Beappraised Yoo 000

sy T Uhwney

Prsreeh Propesty Spwoial
idbertifion igsterents

Lol Blerbet Value:
immprmnen Yabas:

Teial Blarhes Appesisal

Hsarnpment Presurioge:

Agswssments

Ll 1
Apesial bervice Desteict 1 (00 Spadial barvize Datrict & 00

pgurber of buldings 0 Humiser of mabile homes:
Leilitier - Water Sevear:

Lrilities - Kleciricity o

rilities - Gan/Gas Type & Zoning:
Fuslding MLardd Type Diosceiption Spasflinits
Sade Date Frice ook Page Vacamifimprowed Type instrument @ Cuslification

A 52 % &
Do Reres: Laboudeted Sores: & Yool Land Unbts: !
Land Code Sod Class Wity

s

SECTION FOUR
199



PHOTOGRAPHS
CITY OF TULLAHOMA
201 West Grundy Street
PO BOX 807
Tullahoma, TN 37388

Page 1 of 5

This section includes photographs of the roof. This section consists of three (5) pages of
pictures.

SECTION FOUR
200



BID SUBMISSION FORM
CITY OF TULLAHOMA
201 West Grundy Street
PO BOX 807
Tullahoma, TN 37388

Page 1 of 3

By submitting this bid, I do hereby certify that I have read and do fully understand the specifications and my
product and services will meet or exceed these specifications. I have noted any exceptions to the bid on this bid

sheet.

* Disclaimer - The GUIDE-SPEC is a brief outline of Carlisle's Sure-Tough and Sure-White Reinforced
Mechanically-Fastened Roofing System to be used or an equivalent product to Carlisle’s Sure-Tough and Sure-White
Reinforced Mechanically-Fastened Roofing System. If quoting another product, provide that information in the
exception section on the bid submission form.

Contractor understands they are required to provide submittals as to any products being provided prior to
installation. Bid will be for all work outlined in the General Requirements. All work will be performed in
accordance with the specifications and plans included herein.

No bid bond will be required.

Prior to entering into a contract with the City, the Contractor shall furnish both a performance bond and a payment
bond, each equal to one hundred percent of the Contract amount. The performance bond and the payment bond
shall be two totally separate bonds and shall bear two different bond numbers. The Contractor shall pay all
expenses in connection with obtaining the said bonds. The Contractor shall also provide a Certificate of Insurance
noting limits of liability as listed in General Requirements Section included herein.

Bidder agrees to perform the services outlined in the bid document at the price indicated as follows:

Base Bid:
Item # Description Unit Price
Installation of roof and repairs, complete $ i 34s. 21 ?t/ 5% oa/e

Total of Base Bid (In Words):Sggmﬁ?/l thovsznd Love hondred ﬁwr—l-; ee//‘c;ﬁ-/gé//ars

Alternate Bid Item:

Estimated Construction Time to completion after award if different than 90 day (Days): ?O D&) 73

Exceptions:

SECTIOXNFIVE



BID SUBMISSION FORM

CITY OF TULLAHOMA
201 West Grundy Street
PO BOX 807
Tullahoma, TN 37388
Page 2 of 3
Provide 3 references of customers that you have performed this type of service for:
Company Name Contact Person Phone #
1. Moabgomeny Bell Stoke Fack T Agatt  pls=218- 7697
ﬁpfe/c/w/f ez /J», Joe Orr 4931-ZHT1-50%%

3’f/é¢¢m fée,wé(/&fé«me/zg A?f/ wf//w G31-455- 5497

Contractor Name: 2;(4’_& ¢ ?@Sﬁygﬁ’eﬂ . g éﬁg@ﬁaﬁ' L AC

Contractor License Number: 7& 30é

Contractor License Type/Limits/Expiration: 52 :"A; ; 22:*4( m) 3 750, 006, 00 4”30"’2 [A

Contractor Phone #: CM/’ e ¢5/~ 72? Zéé’/ /[// 673/ - 53 , 3 0_3’17'
Contractor Address: QOS/ /( (/]/)ec\/? /7// /4 /%/ldhfjk/’, 7/4/’37 TS ® 5"

fb-25

Date

202



SECTION FIVE

BID SUBMISSION FORM
CITY OF TULLAHOMA
201 West Grundy Street
PO BOX 807
Tullahoma, TN 37388

Page 3 of 3
TITLE VI

Title VI: “It is the policy of the City of Tullahoma to ensure compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of
1964; 49 CFR, Part 21; related statues and regulations to that end that no person shall be excluded from
participation in or be denied benefits of, or be subj ected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving
Federal financial assistance or any other funding source on the grounds of race, color, sex, national origin, or
ancestry. By virtue of submitting a response to this solicitation, bidders agree to comply with the same non-
discrimination policy.”

Date of Bid Opening: - é - Zf

Project Name: Tullahoma Fire Department Station 2 Roof and Repairs Bid

Project No. (if applicable): _&L&WA# /1{01/ i 2025 -0%
Company Name: /3762 ya s /J}’ &AS//M-//'AA 7 Ztﬂo v’d‘)’;on LLC

For Title VI compliance, the City of Tullahoma asks for voluntary disclosure of the following
information, regarding the owner/operator of the company:

Gender: l/Male

Female

Race: V/Ca/ucasian

African American

Other (please specify)

203



204



BID SUBMISSION FORM

CITY OF TULLAHOMA
201 West Grundy Street
PO BOX 807
Tullahoma, TN 37388
Page 2 of 3
Provide 3 references of customers that you have performed this type of service for:
Company Name Contact Person Phone #
1. Naushed! Co. BOE Dewayne. Kobnsbn,  42].369.9424
2. TDECG -Pickwide Reid mulns T21. 2, HoHZ
3. Oy OF DickSon oncis Wopper 15 L. 950k

Contractor Name: KKoSD Services c,o.r-porooﬁbn

Contractor License Number: B 1 5-1%

Contractor License Type/Limits/Expiration: _Unlinmhted i B - Exp: Warch 31,2021
Contractor Phone #: 31. 4243607

Contractor Address: 108 WSt Lingdn StTullahong —TA 27388

OWA)Q/\M/(/\ wlHi2s

Signature of Ahthorized Representative Date
Bid Price must be good until 90 days after bid opening date.

205



SECTION FIVE

BID SUBMISSION FORM
CITY OF TULLAHOMA
201 West Grundy Street
PO BOX 807
Tullahoma, TN 37388

Page 3 of 3
TITLE V1

Title VI: “It is the policy of the City of Tullahoma to ensure compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of
1964; 49 CFR, Part 21; related statues and regulations to that end that no person shall be excluded from
participation in or be denied benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program ot activity receiving
Federal financial assistance or any other funding source on the grounds of race, color, sex, national origin, or
ancestry. By virtue of submitting a response to this solicitation, bidders agree to comply with the same non-
discrimination policy.”

Date of Bid Opening:_ dun-< ,2025 2.om CST”

Project Name: Tullahoma Fire Department Station 2 Roof and Repairs Bid

Project No. (if applicable):_2D26 -D3

Company Name: R osS Services Cor F_O‘fajhm

For Title V1 compliance, the City of Tullahoma asks for voluntary disclosure of the following
information, regarding the owner/operator of the company:

Gender: Male

v

Female

Race: \/

Caucasian

African American

Other (please specify)

206



207



gy 1Y ROSSCON-03 NHOWELL
ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE CATE e

THIS CERTIFICATE IS

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND,

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S}, AUTHORIZED

EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

IMPORTANT: [f the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy{ies} must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions ar be endorsed.

If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

Nashville / AssuredPartners NL
200 Crescent Centre Drive, Suite 600
Franklin, TN 37067

CONTACT Melissa Day

PHONE FAX
(A, No, Exs): {AKS, No):

| Efiikss. melissa.day@assuredpartners.com

| INSURER(S} AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIG #
_ | insurer A : Cincinnati Insurance Company 10677
INSURED insurer 8 : AmGuard Insurance Company 42390
ROSS SERVICES CORPORATION INSURER G :
109 W. Linceln St. INSURER D :
Tullahoma, TN 37388
 INSURER E :
INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMEER:

THIS IS TG CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANGE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERICD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR COADITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE I1SSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANGCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUGED BY PAID CLAIMS.

ISR TYPE OF INSURANCE ‘?%JD':I_SMUEE} POLICY NUMBER DDA TeY] | (S ey LiMITS
A | X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH GCCURRENGE 3 1,000,000
| cLams-wace | X ocour X EPP 0616248 5/22/2025 | 5/2212026 | pAiRes ex e e | S 500,000
MED EXP {Any one person) 3 1 G,OUB
L] PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | & 1,000,000
GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: | GENERAL AGGREGATE 5 2,000,000
roucy | X | 5 Loc PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | § 2,000,000
OTHER: $
A | AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY | EOMBINED SINGLELMIT 1 1,000,000
X | any auto EBA (616248 5/22/2025 | 5/22/2026 | popiLy INJURY {Perperson) | §
OWNED SCHEDULED
AUTOS ONLY AUTCS BODILY INJURY (Per aceident) | §
¥ PROPERTY DAMAGE
| RS ony ROTRONEY P hetdont s
§
A | X | umBRELLA UAB | X| occur EAGH OCCURRENCE 5 5,000,000
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE EPP 0616248 5/22/2025 | 612212026 | ;o oare $
oep | X [ rerentionss 0 Aggregate $ 5,000,000
0 S, PER T OTH-
B D ENPT Oy B Loy YIN X | STATUTE I [ ER
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE R2WC682254 5/22/2025 | 5/2212026 | .| o\ acoipEnT 5 1,000,000
QrFICERMEMBER EXCLUDED? E N/A 7 000,000
andatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE! § 4 ’
If yes, describe under 1,000,000
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | § b

DESCRIPTION OF OPE(RAI_'IONS} LOCAT!Q!_\IS 7 VEHICLES {AGORD 101, Additional Remarks SQheqL{ie, may be attached if more space is required)
City of Tuilahoma is listed as additional insureds with regards to General Liability coverage as required by written contract.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

City of Tullahoma
201 W. Grundy St.
Tuliahoma, TN 37388

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED iN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03}

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo aggegistered marks of ACORD






CITY OF TULLAHOMA

BID PACKAGE FOR
TULLAHOMA FIRE DEPARTMENT
STATION 2 ROOF AND REPAIRS BID

210



Horst Company

PO Box 37

Tullahoma, TN 37388 US
+19312229661
john@horstco.com
www.horstco.com

Estimate

ADDRESS ESTIMATE # 428
Mosaic Center DATE 06/06/2025
1958 SR 50

PELHAM, TN 37366

JoB
TULLAHOMA FIRE DEPARTMENT S 2

Roof Remove WE PROPOSE TO REMOVE 1 89,975.00 89,975.00
Replace AND REPLACE ROOF PER

SPECS PROVIDED PER CITY

BID DOCUMENTS ALL

MATERIALS AND LABOR.

INSTALL ARCHITECTRUAL

SHINGLES, 3/4" PLYWOOD.

*REMOVE SHINGLES AND
FELT

*REMOVE 1/2" PLYWOOD
*REMOVE VALLEY FLASHING
METAL & INSTALL NEW
*REMOVE & RESET
GUTTERS, CLEAN

*INSTALL MOISTURE GUARD
IN VALLEYS

*INSTALL SYNTHETIC
UNDERLAYMENT

*INSTALL ARCHITECTRUAL
SHINGLES

*REMOVE SIDEWALL
FLASHING, CLEAN/SCRAP
ALL DEBRIS & INSTALL NEW
SIDE WALL FLASHING
*REMOVE POWER VENTS,
CUTE NEW HOLES IN WOOD
DECKING AND REINSTALL
LARGE STOVE VENT AND
EXHAUST VENT

*REMOVE AND INSTALL NEW
PIPE FLASHINGS
*CAULK/SEAL ALL

211



FLASHINGS
*CLEAN ALL WASTE/DEBRIS,
DRAG MAGNET, HAUL AWAY

AND DISPOSE ALL WASTE/
DEBRIS
STATION 2 ROOF REPLACEMENT SUBTOTAL
TAX
TOTAL

Accepted By Accepted Date

212

89,975.00
0.00

$89,975.00



DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE AFFIDAVIT

STATE OF TENNESSEE
COUNTY OF COFFEE
The undersigned, principal officer of ,5“5 erD }f {” e MY ,-an employer of five

{5) or more employees contracting with Tullahoma City government to provide eoﬁstruats&n services, hereby
states under oath as follows:

1. The undersigned is a principal officer of j"f f""{”fjﬁ’ 7 Cewm ey (hereinafter
referred to as the “Company”), and is duly authorized to executé thts Affidavit on behalf of the
Company.

2. The Company submits this Affidavit pursuant to T.C.A. 50-9-113, which requires each employer with
no less than five (5) empl eyees receiving pay who contracts with the state or any local government to
provide construction services to submit an affidavit stating that such employer has a drug-free
workplace program that complies with Title 50, Chapter 9, of the Tennessee Code Annotated.

3. The Company is in compliance with T.C.A. 50-9-113.
{urther affiant saith not.

L |

Do hon %*%m{f:?

STATE OF TENNESSEE
COUNTY OF COFFEE
Before me personally appeared ;_gkm ‘H@\:&:’—J , with whom_ [ am personally acquainted

(or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence), and who acknowiedged that such person executed
the foregoing affidavit for the purposes therezn contained.

Witness my hand and seal at office thi ay of ( c’\ 20 A2 075
| / T —
4 /._,. m-rr 7
/ " ary Public

My commissionéxpires; L W e l z
/"

213



BID SUBMISSION FORM
CITY OF TULLAHOMA
201 West Grundy Street
PO BOX 807
Tullahoma, TN 37388

Page 1 of 3

By submitting this bid, I do hereby certify that I have read and do fully understand the specifications and my
product and services will meet or exceed these specifications. I have noted any exceptions to the bid on this bid
sheet.

* Disclaimer - The GUIDE-SPEC is a brief outline of Carlisle’s Sure-Tough and Sure-White Reinforced
Mechanically-Fastened Roofing System to be used or an equivalent product to Carlisle’s Sure-Tough and Sure-White
Reinforced Mechanically-Fastened Roofing System. If quoting another product, provide that information in the
exception section on the bid submission form.

Contractor understands they are required to provide submittals as to any products being provided prior to
installation. Bid will be for all work outlined in the General Requirements. All work will be performed in
accordance with the specifications and plans included herein.

No bid bond will be required.

Prior to entering into a contract with the City, the Contractor shall furnish both a performance bond and a payment
bond, each equal to one hundred percent of the Contract amount. The performance bond and the payment bond
shall be two totally separate bonds and shall bear two different bond numbers. The Contractor shall pay all
expenses in connection with obtaining the said bonds. The Contractor shall also provide a Certificate of Insurance
noting limits of lability as listed in General Requirements Section included herein.

Bidder agrees to perform the services outlined in the bid document at the price indicated as follows:

Base Bid:
Item # Description UnitPrice
Installation of roof and repairs, complete $ Vi 975 3 o

"E%@ Ve

. ) s 1
Total of Base Bid (In Words): i%i‘}@g { %%"% ff C%‘“L Lon ; ﬁiﬁm& f%;ﬁ éf cef VL Esﬁ{ﬁ(: R ’iv

Alternate Bid Item: N

Estimated Construction Time to completion after award if different than 90 day (Days): ﬁ@’ :f‘f}%’ @3}?”

Exceptions: : e T g' R Wweode &kﬁ%ﬁ; /{%@“g
%%Q’:‘{Z/{U@«\ Do:w@?{s;ﬁx ’ 7

214
SFOCTION FIVE



BID SUBMISSION FORM

CITY OF TULLAHOMA
201 West Grundy Street
- POBOX 807
Tullahoma, TN 37388
Page 2 of 3
Provide 3 references of customers that you have performed this type of service for:
Company Name Contact Person Phone #
N 1 - A oo A Ner 3. 2q e,
L Mowtoln View  Constrct en Nocton Eceler D1 5079
s F{:
’ e R G2 . e, Coq .
> [¥ im {'w@"uﬁa Ka Mxy /‘?51' Gon 13/ -30% % Ty

b 25 Sodon 615-§3(-9585

Contractor Name: H{?fjﬁ% CompPany

Contractor License Number: ] 93 &) | f oL 10 -31-202%
Contractor License Type/Limits/Expiration: pC- ’{Z ﬁc "‘g (31" / d }

Contractor Phone #: C}& f -0~ 966 g i

Contractor Address: _| > OO S WS% C jﬂ%@f\ S‘%‘ _ %}-;% Zf% if‘% SAA } N

- Q A ‘Do gf}
Stgnann*e \ﬁAuzhomzed Representanve Date
Bid Price must be good until 90 days after bid opening date.

215



SECTION FIVE
BID SUBMISSION FORM
CITY OF TULLAHOMA
201 West Grundy Street
POBOX 807
Tullahoma, TN 37388

Page3of 3
TITLE VI

Title VI: “It is the policy of the City of Tullahoma to ensure compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of
1964; 49 CFR, Part 21; related statues and regulations to that end that no person shall be excluded from
participation in or be denied benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving
Federal financial assistance or any other funding source on the grounds of race, color, sex, national origin, or
ancestry. By virtue of submitting a response to this solicitation, bidders agree to comply with the same non-
discrimination policy.”
Date of Bid Opening:__.0 /' 7¢ é; :\AD’:);S
Project Name: Tullahoma Fire Department Station 2 Roof and Repairs Bid

N ~
Project No. (if applicable): é’;’ Q }"’Qg”{ﬁ &

Company Name: j"} o/ :ﬁf_% ' Ce N\;rzﬁ‘{%’\}!

For Title VI compliance, the City of Tullahoma asks for voluntary disclosure of the following
information, regarding the ownet/operator of the company:

Gender: “J/ Male

——————

Female
Race: \f Caucasian
African American
Other (please specify)

216



CITY OF TULLAHOMA
Request for Bids
201 W. Grundy Street
Tullahoma, TN 37388
(931) 455-2648

Description: Work consists of the construction of Tullahoma Fire Department Station 2 Roof and
Repairs at 1801 Ovoca Rd, Tullaboma, Tennessee.

Offer Due Date: June 6, 2025 Bid Document No.: 2025-03
2:00 p.m. Local Time

It is the purpose of this document to solicit bids for the City of Tullahomia (herein referred to as the City) for the
Tullahoma Fire Department Station 2 Roof and Repairs. Quantities are NOT guaranteed. The City of Tullahonia
reserves the right to accept or reject any or all bids received. The bids for the services specified will be received
by the City at the below-specified location until the time and date cited. Bids received by the correct time and date
will be opened and the name of each Contractor will be publicly réad.

No pre-bid meeting will be held. Site visits by Bidders are encouraged and can be arranged by contacting Jasen
Damron, Deputy Chief of Tullahoma Fire Department at (931) 455-0936. '

Offer Opening and Submittal Location: City of Tullahoma
Assistant Finance Director
P.O. Box 807
201 W, Grundy Street
Tuliahoma, TN 37388

Bids must be in the actual possession of the City of Tullahoma, Assistant Finance Director on er prior to the time
and date, and at the location indicated above. Late B'ds wzii t 'be, consxd 'red The antlre bxd ackage must be
submitted ina seaieé enveiape and mariced “TU - ED \ ' TON

prov. 1{1@{3 Wxthm FAX anci EMAIL bids are ’\IOT acceptabie%

CONTRACTORS ARE STRONGLY ENCOURAGED 10
SOLICITATION.

For questions regarding For questions regarding

General Terms and Conditions contact: Technical Speczﬁcatxon contact:

Paige Jackson Jasen Damron

Assistant Finance Director Deputy Chief of Tullahoma Fire Department
(931) 455-2648 ext. 114 {931) 455-0936

217



CITY OF TULLAHOMA
Request for Bids
201 W. Grundy Street
P.O. Box 807
Tullahoma, TN 37388
(931) 455-2648

BID PACKAGE FOR
TULLAHOMA FIRE DEPARTMENT STATION 2 ROOF AND REPAIRS BID

Section One Terms and Conditions
Section Two General Requirements
Section Three Drawings

Section Four Photographs

Section Five Bid Submission Form

218



SECTION ONE
TERMS AND CONDITIONS
CITY OF TULLAHOMA
201 West Grundy Street
PO BOX 807
Tullahoma, TN 37388

Page 1 of 5

Evaluation Criteria: Representatives from the City will evaluate and rank each offer based on the criteria
requested within this document. Bids shall be reviewed solely on the information received in the written response.
The decision of the City shall be final and conclusive when the City of Tullahoma Board of Mayor and Aldermen
(the Board) votes and approves the bid.

In addition fo the price, the following standards will also be applied in the bid evaluation:

a) The ability of the bidder to perform the contract or provide the material or service required.

b) Whether the bidder can perform the contract or provide the material or service promptly or within the
time specified without delay or interference.

c) References of the character, integrity, reputation, experience and efficiency of the bidder.

d) The previous and existing compliance by the bidder with laws and ordinances relating to the contract or
service,

e) Terms and conditions stated in the bid.

f) Compliance with specifications or request for proposal.

The City of Tullahoma reserves the right to accept or reject any or all bid items received, to waive any
informal technicalities or defects, the scope and nature of which it shall be the sole judge, in any bid, insofar
as such technicality or defects do not legally, materially or substantially change such bid. The recommended
Contractor may be required to participate in negotiations concerning the nature and extent of products,
guarantees, and services provided.

Changes: The City reserves the right to revise and make changes within the general scope of work as may be
deemed necessary to best serve the interest of the City. All changes shall be documented by formal amendment.

FOB Point: Prices quoted shall be installed prices at the location specified.

Price: All prices shall be quoted on the enclosed bid submission form. Prices not on the provided bid
submission form shall not be considered.

Contractor’s Errors: The City will not be responsible for any errors or omissions on the part of the Contractor.

Notification of Award: The successful Contactor will be notified by mail that their offer has been accepted by
the Board as recommended for award.

219



SECTION ONE
TERMS AND CONDITIONS
CITY OF TULLAHOMA
201 West Grundy Street
PO BOX 807
Tullahoma, TN 37388

Page2of5
Bid Bond: No bid bond will be required.

Payment and Performance Bond: Prior to entering into a contract with the City, the Contractor shall furnish
both a performance bond and a payment bond, each equal to one hundred percent of the Contract amount. The
performance bond and the payment bond shall be two totally separate bonds and shall bear two different bond
numbers. The Contractor shall pay all expenses in connection with obtaining the said bonds.

Insurance: The contractor shall carry and maintain in full force and effect, insurance in such company or
companies as is acceptable to the City of Tullahoma, insuring the contractor while he/she or his’her employees are
performing the services. The successful bidder must submit copies of appropriate insurance coverage before work
may begin. List and mark the City of Tullahoma as additionally insured if awarded. See Section Two for detail
requirements.

Type of Awards: Where applicable, the City reserves the right to make multiple awards if it is in the best interest
of the City to do so.

Alternate Bids: Bids submitted as alternates, or on the basis of exceptions to specific conditions of purchase
and/or required specifications, must be noted within the “Exceptions” Section of the Bid Form with an attachment
specifying the paragraph(s) being referenced and an adequate explanation of the exception. Exceptions may be
considered if they do not adversely affect the performance to comply with the requirements of the bid.

Effective Period of Offer: This offer shall remain in effect for a period of ninety (90) calendar days from the
offer opening date and is irrevocable.

Payment Terms: If payment terms are not indicated, terms of NET 30 days shall be applied by the City. Payment
terms to apply after receipt of invoice or final acceptance of the product, whichever is later. The payment terms
will be considered in the price evaluation of Bids.

Unit Price to Prevail: In the event of a price disparity between the unit and extended price, the unit price shall
prevail unless judged obviously in error by the City.

Offer Price Corrections: All prices and notations shall be written in ink or typed. Changes or corrections made
on the offer form must be initialed in ink by the individual signing the offer. No corrections will be permitted after
the Bids have been opened.

220



SECTION ONE
TERMS AND CONDITIONS
CITY OF TULLAHOMA
201 West Grundy Street
PO BOX 807
Tullahoma, TN 37388

Page3of5

Technical Specifications: Technical specifications define the acceptable standard. Bids that do not mieet or exceed
the specified standards will be reviewed and may be considered if the manufacturer’s product meets industry
standards as determined by the City. In some instances, the name of the manufacturer, a special brand, or make of
an item is used in describing the item or items desired; but this does not restrict the bidder to that manufacturer or
specific article, this means being used simply to indicate the character or quality of the article or service desired;
but the articles or service on which the proposal are submitted must be equal to that specified, and a statement to
that effect shall be made a part of the proposal. Where conflict occurs between the requirement or the General
Conditions and the specifications, the requirements of the specifications will govern.

Restrictive Offer Provisions: If specifications preclude an otherwise qualified contractor from submitting an
offer, a written request for modification must be received by the Assistant Finance Director at least five (5) days
prior to the offer opening. All contractors will be notified by an-addendum te the SOLICITATION of any approved
changes.

Responsibility for Compliance with Legal Requirements: The Contractor’s products and services shall be in
full compliance with all applicable Federal, State, and local health, environmental, and safety laws, regulations,
standards, and ordinances, regardless of whether or not they are referred to by the City.

Responsibility for Correction: It is agreed that the Contractor shall be fully responsible for ‘making any
correction, replacement, or modification necessary for specification or legal compliance. In the event of a call
back, Contractor agrees to give the City first priotity. Contractor agrees that if the product or service offered does
not comply with written specification, the Finance Director has the right to cancel the sale at any time with full
refund within thirty (30) calendar days after notice of noncompliance. Contractor further agrees to be fully
responsible for any consequential damages suffered by the City.

Warranty: All work shall be guaranteed against defects in material and workmanship for a one-year period
unless otherwise noted. During the warranty period, if a defect should occur, that item shall be repaired or replaced
by the Contractor at no obligation to the City, except where it be shown that the defect was caused by misuse. The
Contractor expressly warrants all items to be new free from defects in design, materials, and workmanship, and to
be fit and sufficient for their intended purpose.

Rejection of Bids: The City reserves the right to reject any or all Bids, or any part thereof, to accept any offer or
any pait thereof, or to waive any informalities when it is deemed fo be in the City’s best interest.

Tax Exemption: The City is exempt from sales tax and other forms of taxation as a Municipal Corporation.

Late Submission of Claim by Seller: The City will not honor any invoices or claims which are tendered one
year after the last item of the account accrued.

221



SECTION ONE
TERMS AND CONDITIONS
CITY OF TULLAHOMA
. 201 West Grundy Street
POBOX 807
Tuliahoma, TN 37388

Page 4 of 5
Contractor Errors or Omissions: The City is not responsible for arry Contractor’s errors or omissions.

Protest of Award: Any person who has an objection to the awarding of a Solicitation by the City, pursuant to
competitive Bid procedures shall lodge that protest, in writing, with the City Administrator prior to award by the
Board. A protest lodged after award by the Board will not be considered.

Addenda: The City shall not be responsible for any oral instructions made by any employees or officers of the
City in regard to the instructions, drawings, specifications, or contract documents. Any changes to the plans and
specifications will be in the form of an addendum, which will be furnished to all contractors who are listed with
the City as having received the solicitation or to any other vendor who requests an addenduni.

Confractor Identification: The City is not responsible for the pre-opening of, post-opening of, or the failure to
open, an offer not properly addressed or identified. The bids must be in a sealed envelope and marked
“TULLAHOMA FIRE DEPARTMENT STATION 2 ROOF AND REPAIRS Bid".

Contractor Modification: The City will not be responsible for contractors adjusting their offer based on oral
instructions by any member of the City staff. '

Contractor Performance: Prior contractor performance in regard to product, service, or representation of/from
the contractor may be used in evaluation of this offer. Unsatisfactory performance to the City may be considered
sufficient grounds for rejection of this offer. Nothing herein is intended to exclude any responsible vendor, hisor
her product or service or in any way restrain or restrict competition. On the contrary, all responsible vendors are
encouraged to bid and their bids are solicited.

Inspection: Final inspection and acceptance or rejection will be made at the time of delivery, but all products and
workmanship shall be subject to inspection and test at all times and places. The right is reserved to reject articles
that containdefective material and workmanship. Rejected materials shall be removed by and at the expense of the
cottractor promptly after notification of rejection. The City shall not be obligated to pay the full price for any items
that do not meet specifications; however, payment may be made at a proper reduction in price.

Quantities: The City reserves the right to add, reduce, or delete any quantities listed in the bid schedule at the
unit price bid.

References: The vendor/contractor must furnish at least three (3) municipal, county, or state referenices with your
bid package. Please list on bid submission form.

Quantities: The City of Tullahoma reserves the right to add, reduce, or delete any quantities listed in the bid
schedule at the unit price bid.

222



SECTION ONE
TERMS AND CONDITIONS
CITY OF TULLAHOMA
201 West Grundy Street
PO BOX 807
Tullahoma, TN 37388

Page Sof 5

Title VI: “It is the policy of the City of Tullahoma to ensure compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964,

49 CFR, Part 21; related statues and regulations to that end that no person shall be excluded from participation in or be
denied benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance
or any other funding source on the grounds of race, color, sex, national origin, or ancestry. By virtue of submitting a
response to this solicitation, bidders agree to comply with the same non-discrimination pelicy.”

Iran Divestment Act: “By submission of this bid, each bidderand each person: szgnmg on behalf of any bidder certifies,
and in the case of a joint bid each party thereto cemﬁes as to its own organization, under penalty of perjury, that to the
best of its knowledge and belief that each bidder is not on the list created pursuant to § 12-12-106."

Bid Submission: The City recommends that you submit your sealed bid by a reliable delivery service that guarantees
delivery. Bids received from the U.S. Postal Service have been known to agrive after the bid opening. Also, an
authorized representative from the contractor may submit a sealed bid directly to the City prior or on the date and time
designated in the bid.

Installation Completion Date: The timing of installation will be a factor in the awarding of the bid. Please fill in that
portion of the bid submission form as accurately as possible.

Permits and Licenses: The contractor shall obtain, at the contractor’s expense, all permits and licenses required by
law or ordinance and maintain the same in full force and effect.

Cancellation: The City reserves the right to cancel any agreement for non-appropriation of funds or failure of the
Vendor to perform the services to the satisfaction of the City.

223



SECTION TWO
GENERAL REQUIREMENTS
CITY OF TULLAHOMA
201 West Grundy Street
PO BOX 867
Tullahoma, TN 37388

Page 1 of 3
SCOPE OF WORK:

The work covered by this contract is for new installation of roof and repairs as specifically noted below. The
approximate area of roof is 14,375 sf for the project area identified in the attached Drawings. The Bidder is
responsible for field verifying roof dimensions and basing their bid on the actual roof area and quantities
required for a complete repair to the roof.

Work to be performed includes:

ROOF INSTALLATION
ARCHITECTURAL SHINGLES & 3/4 INCH PLYWOOD MATERIAL & LABOR

Install architectural shingles

Remove side wall flashing, clean/scrap all debris and install new side wall flashing

Remove large stove vent and exhaust vent. Replace with a new bathroom exhaust fan and terminate
above original roof decking.

10. Remove power vents, cut new holes in wood decking and install new power vents

11. Remove and install new pipe flashings

12. Caulk/seal all flashings

13. Clean all waste/debris, drag magnet, haul away and dispose ef all waste/debris

I. Remove shingles and remove felt

2. Remove 1/2 inch plywood and install 3/4 inch plywood

3. Remove valley metal flashing and install new valley metal flashing
4. Clean inside gutters and re-mount gutters \

5. Install moisture guard in valleys

6. Install synthetic felt

7.

8.

9.

The list above is not all inclusive for the installation.

All work shall be completed within 90 days of award of contract. Liquidated damages in the amount of
$100/day shall be assessed against the contractor for delays.

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:
The successful contractor and subcontractors shall maintain the following minimum insurance coverage
during the construction period. A Certificate of Insurance is required as proof of insurance with a copy of an
endorsement naming the City of Tullahoma as an additional insured. List and mark the City of Tullahoma as
additionally insured if awarded. It shall be provided to the City prior to the contractor accessing the site.
CONTRACTOR’S LIABILITY INSURANCE

The limits of liability for the insurance shall be not less than the following amounts or greater where
required by applicable Laws and Regulations.

224
SECTION TWO



DRAWINGS
CITY OF TULLAHOMA
201 West Grundy Street
PO BOX 867
Tullahoma, TN 37388
Page 1 of 2

This section inchudes project location map of the parcel. This section consists of two (2)
pages of parcel maps.

225

Tak Al als af A RALs 4203 s b AR B



DRAWINGS
CITY OF TULLAHOMA
201 West Grundy Street
PO BOX 807
Tullahoma, TN 37388
Page 1 of 2

Parcel Details | Sy

o . | County Mumber 416 ; -
CORFRE COUNTY, TN | TAX YEAR 2005 e Rasppraisal

Prgenty Uerssy el aifingg Sefeines L Pmpecy Losatian

; dsnusry 1 Quser | e QWK RO 0T
| TLALAMOMACTY OF : . . [
CTUALROIA T ETES D commnt . ity «,
= A auas aop :

sl rdrmainn | kebdviond infowmation

. Land Market Volusr s
tepraereat Vel e 58 \

| Totat Market Appraisal: praekes

| hdmessment Ferovritage: [ie

| Bwsenseaends e

Serwrat rdoemastion

Cles: 52 - Uiy
gyl Cheys BHAAMCS
Spacial Sereice Bistrict T 53 Specied Surice Bistrict 1000
Districe 7 Weighlorhaad: 15
Siumber of budldige: Huaibar: of vobile homas:

Uit « Wlivkor [Semer: 09 « FUBLIC 7 RUBC tilitbos - Blatricily: &1 - PUBLL
Utilting - G s Type: 00 - NONE

Cxvbealichengs & Youul Rerts

BldingCard® Ty Demerigtion Arsarf Units

ke Brderahion

Price:
T , TETTE SwismE G e e
IrWTE ' ' ' -
0

e

Ll Indrwematines
Baad Ares Cpleviaved Acvear § Fotal Lark Ui
Land Code Lol Class Aits

0 LT ‘ 10

Purgat Pramos

226 ‘
SECTION FOUR



PHOTOGRAPHS
CITY OF TULLAHOMA
201 West Grundy Street
PO BOX 807
Tullahoma, TN 37388

Page 1 of 5

This section includes photographs of the roof. This section consists of three (5) pages of
pictures.

SECTION FOUR



PHOTOGRAPHS
CITY OF TULLAHOMA
201 West Grundy Street
PO BOX 807
Tullahoma, TN 37388

Page 2 of 5

228

QECTTION TOTTD



PHOTOGRAPHS
CITY OF TULLAHOMA
201 West Grundy Street
PO BOX 807
Tullahoma, TN 37388

Page 3 of 5

229
SECTION FOUR



PHOTOGRAPHS
CITY OF TULLAHOMA
201 West Grundy Street
PO BOX 807
Tullahoma, TN 37388

230

CETIOWN DI TD

Paged of 5



PHOTOGRAPHS
CITY OF TULLAHOMA
201 West Grundy Street
PO BOX 807
Tullahoma, TN 37388

Page 5 of 5

*The vent in the above picture will be refioved.*

231
SECTION FIVE



BID SUBMISSION FORM
CITY OF TULLAHOMA
201 West Grundy Street
PO BOX 807
Tullahoma, TN 37388

Page 1 of 3

By submitting this bid, I do hereby certify that I have read and do fully understand the specifications and my

product and services will meet or exceed these specifications. I have noted any exceptions to the bid on this bid
sheet.

* Disclaimer - The GUIDE-SPEC is a brief outline of Carlisle's Sure-Tough and Sure-White Reinforced
Mechanically-Fastened Roofing System to be uscd or an equivalent product to Carlisle’s Sure-Tough and Sure-White
Reinforced Mechanically-Fastened Roofing System. If quoting another product, provide that information in the
exception section on the bid submission form.

Contractor understands they are required to provide submittals as to any products being provided prior fo
installation. Bid will be for all work outlined in the General Requirements. All work will be performed in
accordance with the specifications and plans included herein.

No bid bond will be required.

Prior to entering into a contract with the City, the Contractor shall furnish both a performance bond and a payment
bond, each equal to one hundred percent of the Contract amount. The performance bond and the payment bond
shall be two totally separate bonds and shall bear two different bond numbers. The Contractor shall pay all
expenses in connection with obtaining the said bonds. The Contractor shall also provide a Certificate of Insurance
noting limits of liability as listed in General Requirements Section included herein.

Bidder agrees to perform the services outlined in the bid document at the price indicated as follows:

Base Bid:
Item # Description Unit Price
Installation of roof and repairs, complete $./23 ,186.00

Total of Base Bid (In Words): D e i g

gy,
|

Alternate Bid Item:

Estimated Construction Time to completion after award if different than 90 day (Days):

Exceptiops:_%?mi\méﬂ'(’ ‘}Ei{mfu 6\rw\l \Df’ f\? ‘{”[ d&d‘ i\( o "H\z’, f‘lﬂ“{, O'C'

Comple-rion .

232



BID SUBMISSION FORM
CITY OF TULLAHOMA
201 West Grundy Strect
PO BOX 807
Tullahoma, TN 37388

Page 2 of 3
Provide 3 references of customers that you have performed this type of service for:

Company Name Contact Person Phone #

1 0l Stone bort Bk ﬂqomaé{er Keitin U\fzm&du 31-773-5459
» (llee (;amﬁsewa g{/ﬁ%m o lvin Shoces — 931-49-759/
s Tl Stade Dave. Powecs bl —23% - 23D

Contractor Name: O{IFC(QV'] pBﬂS‘HUCJﬂOﬂ G‘ﬂ({ ﬂ')@ﬂﬂ%'{ A)ﬂ#&@ﬁ/ﬁ /VIC’ -

Contractor License Number: 7 % 30 5

Contractor License Type/Limits/Expiration: 7) C /jf %(- (SW} ) / $5 DO 000, 00 / M prch j 2027
Contractor Phone #: 673 Z L/ 7 g 40 7

Contractor Address: 2 N Jﬁh Q({ B@p C/I/]Ci'if D’M /N 370 / g

Lioke] ﬂ i : bs Jos

Slénature of Authorized Representative "Date
Bid Price must be good until 90 days after bid opening date.

233



SECTION FIVE

BID SUBMISSION FORM
CITY OF TULLAHOMA
201 West Grundy Street
PO BOX 807
Tullahoma, TN 37388

Page 3 of 3
TITLE VI

Title VI: “Itis the policy of the City of Tullahoma to ensure compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of
1964; 49 CFR, Part 21; related statues and regulations to that end that no person shall be excluded from
participation in or be denied benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving
Federal financial assistance or any other funding source on the grounds of race, color, sex, national origin, or

ancestry. By virtue of submitting a response to this solicitation, bidders agree to comply with the same non-
discrimination policy.”

Date of Bid Opening: (19 ! [ b, / 2§

Project Name: Tullahoma Fire Department Station 2 Roof and Repairs Bid
Project No. (if applicable): 207 5 - O %

Company Name: COU’ (\lev’\ ( :fmé‘f Cuch oN amd@emem( @n{f&ﬁ”j’ {”7&

For Title VI compliance, the City of Tullahoma asks for voluntary disclosure of the following
information, regarding the owner/operator of the company:

Gender: Male

X Female
Race: 2;} Caucasian

African American

Other (please specify)

234



235



AGENDA ITEM NO. 25-79

DATE: July 28, 2025
TO: Board of Mayor and Alderman
FROM: Robert Taylor, Director of Public Works

Jason Quick, City Administrator
SUBJECT: Stormwater Management Software

BACKGROUND:

Since the beginning of the Federal/State MS4 Stormwater program mandate in 2004 the
city has been using simple data entry programs for record keeping requirements which
has been a challenge. However, the latest version of the MS4 Permit contains additional
requirements that are beyond the capabilities of a reasonable spreadsheet. To comply
with the current permit, it is becoming more necessary than ever to rely on the use of true
data management software. The current permit requires that we establish and maintain an
inventory of all stormwater quality control measures that are installed in the system, both
public and private. This inventory is required to be a searchable database that contains
basic information such as location and project identification, but is also required to
contain maintenance records, maps, pictures of the installed measures, a copy of long-
term maintenance plans for the measures, and any other information that may be
necessary to show compliance. These stormwater measures will require upkeep and
maintenance in perpetuity. The Public Works Department currently does not have a tool
to do what is now required of us to be in compliance with the Federal/State mandated
stormwater requirements. We will be required to keep up with stormwater structures such
as catch basins, pipes, outfalls, curb inlets, etc.

This software is the same software that Planning and Codes uses so we can send/receive
information through the software instead of cutting and pasting forms, documents, plans
and maps and having to email them back and forth.

RECOMMENDATION:
The Public Works Department requests BOMA to approve the purchase of the
Stormwater Data Management Software from IWORQ..

FISCAL IMPACT:
Funds for this software have already been appropriated through the FY25-26 budget
process in the amount of $16.500.00

Attachments:
IWORQ Stormwater Agreement.

236



237



238



239



240



Charles Lynn Sebourn
Mayor
931-455-2648

241



242



243



244



AGENDA ITEM NO. 25-80

DATE: July 28th, 2025
TO: Board of Mayor and Alderman
FROM: Robert Taylor, Director of Public Works

Jason Quick, City Administrator

SUBJECT: Brush Grinding & Debris Removal

BACKGROUND:

The Public Works Department received (2) bids from Benchmark and CFC for the brush
and grinding debris removal service. The bids were open on Tuesday, July 15, 2025, at
1:30 p.m. The lowest bidder was Benchmark Company. Benchmark has been doing our
Brush/Grinding for the last (3) years.

RECOMMENDATION:

Public Works Department requests the BOMA to approve Benchmark Mulch Company
from Christiana, TN, to perform the brush grinding and debris removal service for the
city.

FISCAL IMPACT:
Funds for the Brush Grinding & Debris removal service in the amount $85,000.00 will
come from the 2025-2026 Brush/Grinding budget account # 120-43200-190-027.

Attachments:

Bid Sign-in Sheet
Bid Tabulation Sheet
Bid from Benchmark

245



246



Vendor 1

Vendor 2

Bid Tabulation for Brush and Leaf Chipping Services Bid £Y2026
’ ' Tuesday, July 15, 2025 at 1:30 pm .

Vendior 3

Vendor 4

Vendor 5

Benchmark
Companies LLC

CFC Recycling

Title VI

Company

Drug-free Workplace Affidavit /‘@m <®u

tran Divestment Act Disclosure Nes Nes

Price per cubic yard for brush/leaves a5 #10.00

References Nes e

Exceptions No see oMolthed
Nes Neés

247



248



CITY OF TULLAHOMA
Request for Bid
201 West Grundy Street
P.O. Box 807
Tullahoma, TN 37388
(931) 455-2648

Description: Brush & Leaf Chipping Services Bid

Offer Due Date: July 15,2025 Bid Document No.: 2026-01
1:30 p.m. CST

Itis the purpose of this document to solicit bids for the City of Tullahoma (herein referred to as the
City) for brush and leaf chipping services. Bids for the services specified will be received by the
City of Tullahoma, Finance Department at the below specified location until the time and date cited.
Bids received by the correct time and date will be opened and the name of each vendor will be
publicly read.

Offer Opening and Submittal Location: City of Tullahoma
201 West Grundy Street
PO BOX 807
Tullahoma, TN 37388
Attention: Assistant Finance Director

Bids must be in the actual possession of the City of Tullahoma, Finance Department on or prior to
the time and date, and at the location indicated above. Late Bids will not be considered. Bids must
be submitted in a sealed envelope and marked “BRUSH & LEAF CHIPPING SERVICES BID”
with the vendor’s name and address clearly indicated on the envelope. Additional instructions for
preparing an offer are provided within. FAX and email Bids are NOT acceptable.

VENDORS ARE STRONGLY ENCOURAGED TO CAREFULLY READ THE ENTIRE
SOLICITATION.

For questions regarding For technical questions contact:
General Terms, and Conditions, Contact:

Paige Jackson Eric Pierce
Assistant Finance Director Public Works Superintendent
(931) 455-2648 (931) 454-1768

249



City of Tullahoma
201 West Grundy Street
PO BOX 807
Tullahoma, TN 37388
(931) 455-2648

BRUSH & LEAF
CHIPPING SERVICES
Section One Terms & Conditions
Section Two General Instructions

Section Three Bid Submission Form

250



SECTION ONE
TERMS AND CONDITIONS
CITY OF TULLAHOMA
201 West Grundy Street
PO BOX 807
Tullahoma, TN 37388

Bid Document No.: 2026-01 Page1ofl

Evaluation Criteria: Representatives from the Public Works Department and the Finance
Department will evaluate and rank each offer based on the criteria requested within this document.
Bids shall be reviewed solely on the information received in the written response. The decision of
the City shall be final and conclusive when the Board of Mayor and Aldermen vote to approve the
recommendation.

In addition to the price, the following standards will also be applied in the bid evaluation:

a) The ability of the bidder to perform the contract or provide the material or service required.

b) Whether the bidder can perform the contract or provide the material or service promptly or
within the time specified without delay or interference.

c) References of the character, integrity, reputation, experience and efficiency of the bidder.

d) The previous and existing compliance by the bidder with laws and ordinances relating to the
contract or service.

e) The ability of the bidder to provide future maintenance and service for the use of the subject
contract.

) Terms and conditions stated in the bid.

2) Compliance with specifications or request for proposal.

The City of Tullahoma reserves the right to accept or reject any or all bids received. The
recommended vendor may be required to participate in negotiations concerning the nature and extent
of services provided.

Changes: The City reserves the right to revise and make changes within the general scope of work
as may be deemed necessary to best serve the interest of the City. All changes shall be documented
by formal amendment.

Price: All prices shall be quoted on the enclosed bid submission form. Prices not on the
provided quote form shall not be considered. The prices shown on the bid submission form
shall be guaranteed from the notice of award through June 30, 2026 with the option to renew
yearly for an additional three (3) years if both parties agree in writing.

Vendors Errors or Omissions: The City will not be responsible for any errors or omissions on the
part of the vendor.

Notification of Award: The successful vendor(s) will be notified by mail that their offer has been
accepted by the Board of Mayor and Aldermen as recommended for award.

251



SECTION TWO
GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS
CITY OF TULLAHOMA
201 West Grundy Street
PO BOX 807
Tullahoma, TN 37388

Bid Document No.: 2026-01 Page 1 of 4

Bid Bond: A bid bond will not be required.

Payment / Performance Bond: A payment or performance bond will not be required unless an
emergency occurs that requires a large amount of work. At that time, the Public Works Department
and the Assistant Finance Director will determine the amount of the payment and performance bond
if one is needed.

Type of Awards: Where applicable, the City reserves the right to make multiple awards if it is in
the best interest of the City to do so.

Alternate Bids: Bids submitted as alternates, or on the basis of exceptions to specific conditions or
required specifications, must be noted within the Exceptions Section of the bid sheet with an
attachment specifying the paragraph(s) being referenced and an adequate explanation of the
exception.

Effective Period of Offer: This offer shall remain in effect for a period of sixty (60) calendar days
from the offer opening date and is irrevocable.

Offer Price Corrections: All prices and notations shall be written in ink or typed. Changes or
corrections made on the offer form must be initialed in ink by the individual signing the offer. No
corrections will be permitted after the Bids have been opened.

Restrictive Offer Provisions: If specifications preclude an otherwise qualified vendor from
submitting an offer, a written request for modification must be received by the Assistant Finance
Director at least five (5) days prior to the offer opening. All vendors will be notified by an addendum
to the SOLICITATION of any approved changes.

Responsibility for Compliance with Legal Requirements: The Vendor’s products and services
shall be in full compliance with all applicable Federal, State, and local health, environmental, and
safety laws, regulations, standards, and ordinances, regardless of whether or not they are referred to
by the City.

252



SECTION TWO
GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS
CITY OF TULLAHOMA
201 West Grundy Street
PO BOX 807
Tullahoma, TN 37388

Bid Document No.: 2026-01 Page 2 of 4

Tax Exemption: The City is exempt from sales tax and other forms of taxation as a Municipal
Corporation.

Insurance: The contractor shall carry and maintain in full force and effect, insurance in such
company or companies as is acceptable to the City of Tullahoma, insuring the contractor while
he/she or his’her employees are performing the brush removal services. A Certificate of
Insurance is required as proof of insurance with a copy of an endorsement naming the City of
Tullahoma as an additional insured. List and mark the City of Tullahoma as additionally insured
if awarded. It shall be provided to the City prior to the contractor accessing the site.

The successful bidder must submit copies of appropriate insurance coverage before work may
begin,

Minimum requirements are as follow:
A. Liability bodily injury insurance for not less than $1,000,000
B. Property damage liability insurance for not less than $1,000,000
C. Worker’s compensation full statutory limits.

Late Submission of Claim by Seller: The City will not honor any invoices or claims which are
tendered one year after the last item of the account occurred.

Protest of Award: Any person who has an objection to the awarding of a Solicitation by the City,
pursuant to competitive Bid procedures shall lodge that protest, in writing, with the Assistant
Finance Director prior to award by the Board of Mayor and Aldermen. A protest lodged after award
by the Board will not be considered.

Addenda: The City shall not be responsible for any oral instructions made by any employees or
officers of the City in regard to the instructions, drawings, specifications, or contract documents.
Any changes to the plans and specifications will be in the form of an addendum, which will be
furnished to all vendors who are listed with the City as having received the solicitation or to any
other vendor who requests an addendum.

Vendor Identification: The City is not responsible for the pre-opening of, post-opening of, or the
failure to open, an offer not properly addressed or identified. The bids must be in a sealed envelope,
and marked “BRUSH & LEAF CHIPPING SERVICES BID” with the vendor’s name and
address clearly indicated on the envelope.

Vendor Modification: The City will not be responsible for vendors adjusting their offer based on
oral instructions by any member of the City staff.

253



SECTION TWO
GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS
CITY OF TULLAHOMA
201 West Grundy Street
PO BOX 807
Tullahoma, TN 37388

Bid Document No.: 2026-01 Page 3 of 4

Vendor Performance: Prior vendor performance in regard to service or representation of/from the
vendor may be used in evaluation of this offer. Unsatisfactory performance to the City of Tullahoma
may be considered sufficient grounds for rejection of this offer.

Quantities: The City of Tullahoma reserves the right to add, reduce, or delete any quantities listed
in the bid schedule at the unit price bid.

Rejection of Bids: The City reserves the right to reject any or all Bids, or any part thereof, to accept
any offer or any part thereof, or to waive any informalities when it is deemed to be in the City’s best
interest.

Payment Terms: Payment shall be made upon completion of the work and after inspection and
approval by the City.

Technical Specifications: Technical specifications define the acceptable standard. Bids that do not
meet or exceed the specified standards will be reviewed and may be considered if the manufacturer’s
product meets industry standards as determined by the City of Tullahoma.

Responsibility for Correction: It is agreed that the Vendor shall be fully responsible for making
any correction, replacement, or modification necessary for specification or legal compliance. In the
event of a call back, Vendor agrees to give the City first priority. Vendor agrees that if the product or
service offered does not comply with written specification, the Assistant Finance Director has the
right to cancel the sale at any time with full refund within thirty (30) calendar days after notice of
noncompliance. Vendor further agrees to be fully responsible for any consequential damages
suffered by the City.

Title VI: “Itis the policy of the City of Tullahoma to ensure compliance with Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964; 49 CFR, Part 21; related statues and regulations to that end that no person shall
be excluded from participation in or be denied benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under
any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance or any other funding source on the
grounds of race, color, sex, national origin, or ancestry. By virtue of submitting a response to this
solicitation, bidders agree to comply with the same non-discrimination policy.”

Iran Divestment Act: “By submission of this bid, each bidder and each person signing on behalf of
any bidder certifies, and in the case of a joint bid each party thereto certifies as to its own
organization, under penalty of perjury, that to the best of its knowledge and belief that each bidder is
not on the list created pursuant to § 12-12-106.”

254



SECTION TWO
GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS
CITY OF TULLAHOMA
201 West Grundy Street
PO BOX 807
Tullahoma, TN 37388

Bid Document No.: 2026-01 Page 4 of 4
Bid Submission: The City recommends that you submit your sealed bid by a reliable delivery
service that guarantees delivery. Also, an authorized representative from the vendor may submit a

sealed bid directly to City Hall prior or on the date and time designated in the bid.

References: The contractor must furnish at least three (3) references for work performed for
governmental agencies or other agencies of similar magnitude. Please list on bid submission form.

255



SECTION THREE
CITY OF TULLAHOMA
Bid Submission Form
Brush & Leaf Chipping Services

Bid Document No.: 2026-01 '~ Pagelof3
TO:  City of Tullahoma

ATTN: Assistant Finance Director

PO BOX 807

RE:

201 West Grundy Street
Tullahoma, TN 37388

Brush & Leaf Chipping Services Bid
City of Tullahoma, TN

The undersigned as bidder acknowledges by his signature that he has read and understands the work
to be performed and has included their provisions in his Bid. The Bidder further acknowledges that
he has received the following Addenda:

Addendum No. Dated

Addendum No. Dated

In submitting this Bid, the Bidder agrees:

1.

2.

To hold open his Bid for sixty (60} days from the date shown above.
To accomplish work in accord with the bid request.

To provide in full and complete accord with the shown, noted, described, and reasonably
intended requirements of the Specifications and the Contract Documents, to supply all labor,
materials, transportation and equipment to complete the work to the full and entire
satisfaction of the Owner in the amounts listed below.

The undersigned, as Bidder, further agrees to begin work within five (5) days after the
written notification to provide the described services. Bidder also agrees to time his/her
work procedure in accordance to the instructions given in these Specifications and to give the
City of Tullahoma first priority in emergency situations such as major storms.

The undersigned, as Bidder, further confirms he has the appropriate insurance coverage as
outlined in this bid and will submit copies of coverage prior to work commencing. A
Certificate of Insurance is required as proof of insurance with a copy of an endorsement
naming the City of Tullahoma as an additional insured. List and mark the City of
Tullahoma as additionally insured if awarded. It shall be provided to the City prior to the
contractor accessing the site.

256



SECTION THREE
CITY OF TULLAHOMA
Bid Submission Form
Brush & Leaf Chipping Services

Bid Document No.: 2026-01 Page 2 of 3

BASE BID

Brush & Leaf Chipping Services

Chipping will be based on a per ton cubic yard. Load tickets will be attached to all invoices to
substantiate cubic yards shipped. The bid pricing shown on the bid submission form shall be
guaranteed from the notice of award through June 30, 2026. The bid can be renewed yearly for an
additional three (3) years if both parties agree to renew yearly in writing. However, the City of
Tullahoma reserves the right to cancel this contract with a thirty (30) day written notice due to lack
of responsiveness and/or performance. Quantities are not guaranteed. Biodegradable bags will also
be the responsibility of the contractor to dispose of. All materials are the responsibility of the
contractor to be processed as a recyclable product.

Price $§ C} 7 per cubic yard for brush/leaves

Comments pertaining to brush and/or leaf services.

REFERENCES
NAME STREET ADDRESS | CITY, STATE, ZIP | TELEPHONE

S\\O fing M 7E93 Mekten m@ﬁ‘ 5’@5"{3 BN TA 3717y 750 -S4 g 2qn

Z@:r.s\w) PNl otk | 927 1S 1h e éz,u::l.ok?l]?? 772091 | 57 - F - %

(g ol Loluin |75 Tom boedse G w10 78%0) 95 7P 758y

257



SECTION THREE
CITY OF TULLAHOMA
Bid Submission Form
Brush & Leaf Chipping Services

Bid Document No.: 2026-01 Page 3 of 3
The Bidder acknowledges by his signature that he agrees to the requirements contained in the
Contract Documents and Specifications. The bidder further agrees to give the City of Tullahoma

first priority in major disasters such as weather related events.

Any exceptions or additional services that might make your bid more competitive should be listed
with the following exception section.

Exceptions:

Bid is good for 70 days prior to bid being awarded.

By submitting this bid I do hereby certify that I have read and do fully understand the
specifications.

f ge,wc,\r\ e {?— (c_; m?q\‘\:éj LZ'C

Company Name
e 7//5/45
Signmmorized Representative Date

For Title VI compliance, we ask for the voluntary disclosure of the following information:

Information of local owner of company:

Gender: Male L—" Female
Race: Caucasian / African American
Hispanic Other (please specify)

258



AGENDA ITEM NO. 25-81

DATE: July 28,2025
TO: Board of Mayor and Alderman
FROM: Chief of Police Chase Sons, Tullahoma Police Department

Jason Quick, City Administrator

SUBJECT: Surplus of firearms awarded to the Police Department for in-store credit

BACKGROUND
The Police Department requests authorization to surplus fifty-eight (58) firearms that have been
awarded to the department through the court system.

The Police Department received bids from (4) four Federal Firearms License dealers. The FFL
dealers that submitted bids were:

Craig’s Firearm Supply, Knoxville, TN - $4,670.00
Rusty Oak Armory, Mt. Juliet, TN - $5,000.00
Templar Shooting Sports, Tullahoma, TN - $4,500.00
GT Distributors Rossville, GA - $7,415.00

GT Distributors won the bid with $7,415.00. GTs will give the Tullahoma Police Department
$7,415.00 in-store credit. The department would request the in-store credit be used to obtain
optics and/or ammunition for the department’s issued firearms.

RECOMMENDATION

The Police Department requests the BOMA approves the surplus of fifty-eight (58) awarded
firearms to GTs Distributors and the in-store credit be used to purchase optics and/or ammunition
for the department’s issued firearms.

FISCAL IMPACT
There will be no cost to the City of Tullahoma.

ATTACHMENTS
List of awarded firearms & bids from four (4) FFL dealers.

259



CAD #

ITEM

202044127 Winchester Shotgun SN: L541926
Jennings 9mm Pistol SN: 969039
201710928 CZ USA .40 Cal Pistol SN: A311830, Holster
202038905 S&W 9mm Pistol SN: HNM7905
Glock 17 9mm Pistol SN: BPGV057, Magazines, Ammunition
20223891 SCCY 9mm Pistol SN: 439240
2013-79408 Remington .30-06 Rifle SN: 71071041
201626414 Sears .22 Cal Rifle SN: 5832501
2015-53325 Remington .270 Cal Rifle SN: B8288986
202244684 Charles Daly Shotgun SN: 916659
No CAD # Tristar Arms Shotgun SN: 20P4100678
2015-75916 Stevens Shotgun SN: 152284H
2019921993 CBC Shotgun SN: C1219572, Ammunition
202124446 Colt .22 Cal Rifle SN: BP078985, Magazine, Ammunition
202121087 Winchester Shotgun SN: 122954
202019396 Maverick Shotgun SN: M002770, Ammunition
202031832 Savage Arms Shotgun, No Serial Number
202171748 Glock 19 9mm Pistol SN: ABXP768, Magazine, Holster,
Ammunition
202144946 SCCY 9mm Pistol SN: 882239, Magazine, Holster
20169718 Taurus 9mm Pistol SN: TIS73214, Magazine
202470858 Hi Point .380 Cal Pistol SN: P725606
202172825 Glock .45 Cal Pistol SN: WMES530
202337982 Sterling .22 Cal Pistol SN: A32720, Magazine, Ammunition
202421275 Remington Model 41 .22 Cal Rifle, No Serial Number
20179380 Raven .25 Cal Pistol SN: 375615
202481052 Bryco Arms 9mm Pistol SN: 1449182, Magazine, Ammunition
202365318 Kmart Shotgun SN: 819021 MOD 151
202467999 Ithaca Shotgun SN: 449428
201821785 Taurus 9mm Pistol SN: TCX52296
202322032 FMK 9mm Pistol SN: BB26106
Glock 44 Pistol SN: AHCUG644, Magazines, Ammunition
202240426 Jimenez 9mm Pistol SN: 321298, Ammunition
202276249 Glock 42 Pistol SN: ADWU287
202138401 Kimber 9mm Pistol SN: S1168934
201936141 Taurus 9mm Pistol SN: TIM58284, Magazine, Ammunition
202139394 S&W 9mm Pistol SN: HFM3549
202273143 Hi Standard .22 Cal Revolver SN: 1494933

260




CAD #

ITEM

202138275 Glock 19 Pistol SN: YTF444, 4 Magazines, Ammunition

202062480 Ruger SR9 Pistol SN: 330-24794

202378056 S&W 9mm Pistol SN: NFY3008

202144646 Harrington & Richardson Shotgun SN: NZ921397

202326647 Ruger 9mm Pistol SN: 317-89827, Magazine

201765278 Savage Arms 30-06 Rifle SN: F74486C, Rifle Scope, Cloth Rifle
Case

2015-77549 Stevens Shotgun SN: 123229W

2014-37936 Taurus .40 Cal Pistol SN: SZF47086, Magazine

201770966 Marlin 30-30 Rifle SN: MR73542G

202386876 MAK CZECH CZ82 Semi Auto Pistol SN: 025687, Magazine

20204864 STAG Arms STAG-15 5.56 Cal Rifle SN: 183627
Ruger 9mm Pistol SN: 860-12460, 2 Magazines

202373098 Blue Ruger EC9S 9mm Pistol SN: 456-00053, Magazine, Extended
Magazine

202470274 Glock 45 Pistol SN: BKED561, Magazine

202481256 Glock 19 9mm Pistol SN: NAM797, Extended Magazine, Drum
Magazine, Holster
American Tactical M1911G1 Semi Auto SN: GI114658, Magazine

202469133 Pink SCCY CPX-1 9mm Pistol SN: C422095, Magazine, Holster

2015-48443 Glock 27 .40 Cal Pistol SN: CZP653, Magazine, Holster
Taurus Millenium PT 111 Pro 9mm Pistol SN: TCO14914,
Magazine, Gun Box

202383787 Glock 41 Gen 4 .45 Cal Pistol SN: YWC810, With GMCONN GM-
1085 Rail Light, Magazine

202375385 Bryco 59 9mm Pistol SN Not Found, Magazine

No CAD # Barska Rifle Scope, 2 AR-15 Magazines, Hi Point 380 ACP
Magazine
Slide Fire Single Point Attachment Device Enhancement (Spade),
Slide Fire Six Position Buffer Tube, Quad Lock for Weaver Top
Mount Bases in Matte Black.

202253455 Micro Pistol Conversion Device, 5.56 Cal Drum Magazine, 5 9mm

Glock Magazines, Glock Handgun Case, 9mm Ammunition

261




262



263



264



265



266



267



BEER BOARD MEETING
MINUTES FOR
July 14, 2025

The Beer Board of the City of Tullahoma, Coffee and Franklin Counties, Tennessee
assembled for a meeting on Monday, July 14, 2025, at 5:30 p.m. with Mayor Lynn Sebourn
presiding and the following named members of the Board of Mayor and Aldermen: Kurt Glick,
Mayor Pro Tem Mathis, Sernobia McGee, Alderman Thoma, and Alderman Bobbie Sue Wilson.
Matthew Bird was not present.

Mr. Jason Quick, City Administrator; Mr. Steve Worsham, City Attorney; Mrs. Paige
Jackson, Assistant Finance Director; and Mrs. Lori Ashley, City Recorder, were present at the
meeting.

Mayor Sebourn called the meeting to order.

COMMENTS FROM CITIZENS: N/A
Item No. 25-BB16 — Approve minutes of the June 23, 2025, Regular Meeting.

A motion was made by Alderman Mathis and seconded by Alderman McGee to approve Item No.
25-BBl16.

On roll call all members present voted aye, and it was so ordered.
Item No. 25-BB17 — Request to approve Beer Application (On-Premises Permit) for
Tullahoma Lodging, LL.C, 251 William Northern Blvd., The Manager, Mr. Trent White, will

oversee beer sales.

A motion was made by Alderman Glick and seconded by Alderman McGee to approve Item No.
25-BB17.

On roll call all members present voted aye, and it was so ordered.

There being no further business to come before the Board of Mayor and Alderman at this
time, the Board Meeting adjourned at 6:10 p.m.

CITY RECORDER MAYOR

268



AGENDA ITEM NO. 25-BB19

DATE: July 28, 2025
TO: Beer Board
FROM: Lori Ashley, Beer Board Secretary

SUBJECT: Beer Application (Special Event Permit / Non-Profit)
Beechcraft Heritage Museum
Beech Party — International Fly-In
Event to be held on: October 8-11, 2025

BACKGROUND:

Attached please find a copy of an application for a Special Event beer permit. This application
was completed by Ms. Jody Curtis with the Beechcraft Heritage Museum. She is requesting to
sell beer on Wednesday, October 8 — Saturday, October 11, 2025, at the Beech Party
International Fly-In. Ms. Jody Curtis will oversee the beer sales for the weekend event.

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve the Beer Permit
Waive the fees for non-profit

ATTACHMENTS:

Completed Beer Permit Application.
Completed Background check from the Police Department on Ms. Jody Curtis.

269



APPLICATION FOR BEER PERMIT
STATE OF TENNESSEE
CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE

Application for (check one):
On-Premises Permit
Off-Premises Permit
On and Off Premises Permit
Manufacturer’s or Distributor’s Permit

g Special Events Permit

I hereby make application for a permit to sell, store, manufacture, or distribute beer
or other beverages authorized to be sold, stored, manufactured or distributed under
the provisions of the Tennessee Code Annotated 57-5-101 ET SEQ. and the
Municipal Code of the City of Tullahoma, Tennessee, Title 8, Chapter 3, and base my
application upon the answers to the following questions:

1. Full name of Applicant (Owner): gnal\j p ﬁ;\VL s

Person __“\{Firm ___Corporation ___Joint-stock Co. ___ Syndicate ___ Association ___
Other : :

2. List all persons, firms, corporations, joint-stock companies, syndicates, or associations
having at least a (5%) ownership interest in the business (attach additional sheet, if

needed).
SOl 5 OYSA At a//tu%

3. What is your present home address?

- N e - ~

- l e U by

T XL AANT P e N AN
A"

270



APPLICATION FOR BEER PERMIT CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE

4. Previous address (es) within the last ten (10) years:

5. Date of b o , l 19 [, Home telephone:_-

Sex; |— Race: (i/),; Lo S Om

6. Driver’s License Nc.. (, , .. . Work Phone #: O] USS 1G 7<[

7. Under what name will this business operate?
“Becehe ye L Hﬁi/‘?# 1) jc: W Msewimn

8. Location of business by street address or other geographical description and phone
number of the business:

Z1 Dld §L\o(m\/,up Liwq
T llahona TR 27307

9. Will this establishment’s primary business be the sale of prepared on-premises food
that will be consumed on-premises, with not more that 30% of the Applicant’s income

being derived from the sale of beer?

NO

10. Specify the identity and address of the person to receive annual privilege tax notices
and any other communication from the City:

N A

11. Give name and address of property owner, if other than business owner:

N

Page 2

271



APPLICATION FOR BEER PERMIT CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE

12. Will the permit be used to operate one or more restaurants or other businesses under
the same permit as permitted by Section 57-5-103(a)(4) within the same building?
Yes__ ; No . If Yes, please specify number . List the names of the restaurants
or other businesses and describe their location (attach additional sheet, if needed): (Please
note that if operator has separate locations, a permit will be required for each location.)

13. Give name, date of birth, and address of any manager other than applicant: (Please
note, if you change managers, City Hall must be notified and a new background

check must be completed.)
/ <

Y —
e, Tullahoma Th) 371388

14. Has any person having at least a 5% ownership interest, any of the managers listed in
question 13, or any other employee of the business, been convicted of any violation of the
beer or alcoholic beverage laws or any crime (other than minor traffic violations) within
the last ten (10) years? - If Yes, then give particulars of each charge, court and date

convicted.

NO

15. Has this owner or the owner’s organization had a heer permit revoked, suspended, or
denied in the State of Tennessee? Yes No If Yes, then please specify
where, when and why:

16. Give the name, relationship to applicant (if applicable) and address of the former beer
permittee at this location: '

.f)&me

Page 3

272



APPLICATION FOR BEER PERMIT CITY OF TULLAHOMA, TENNESSEE

I am knowledgeable of the laws prohibiting the sale of beer to minors. I hereby
certify that no person having at least a 5% ownership interest or any person to be
employed in the distribution or sale of beer in my establishment has been convicted
of any violation of the beer or alcoholic beverage laws or any crime involving moral
turpitude within the past five (5) years. I am also aware that I shall not be issued a
permit or my permit shall be revoked if my business location causes traffic
congestion or interferes with schools, churches, or other places of public gathering,
or otherwise interferes with public health, safety and morals.

oo ﬂmﬁo

Signature of Applicant/Owner
(or Authorized Corporate Officer)

Sworn to and subscribed before me this ré’la’ay of m , 200D,
N
1 )’an;). ‘ZLZ/llﬂh/ q03 \;\ scC ( '47
Notary Public ceren 4 4,

:' STATE 07

e

My Commission Expires: C?/ /1€ f/ 07

’. NOTARY .

\\‘
= TENNESSEE :
";’ ‘. PUBuc .'

=
=
<
N
=~
N
N
N\
N

A}EE CoU“ \\\

"'ll::v||\\\\\\“

Page 4

273



5;‘-5? i TENNESSEE BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

;;w“ ‘%:'3}‘*" ATTN: TORIS
‘\!:. :}'a 901 R.S. Gass Boulevard
!b’:{“! o
e Nashville, Tennessee 37216-2639
Bill Lee '(6.15) 744-4057 David B Rausch
Governor Facsimile (615) 744-4289 Director
07/07/2025

JASON L FERRELL
213 WEST GRUNDY ST
TULLAHOMA TN 37388

Tennessee Criminal History Records Request

NO TENNESSEE CRIMINAL HISTORY RECORD HAS BEEN FOUND FOR THE PERSON LISTED BELOW. NOTE: All aliases submitted
have been searched.

JUDY CATHEY CURTIS

Please be aware that, unless a fingerprint comparison is performed, it is impossible for the Tennessee Bureau of
investigation to be sure the record belongs to the individual you requested . A fingerprint comparison will only be performed
in the event of a written appeal of criminal history results. The information you receive will be based on only those arrests

which occurred within the state of Tennessee.

The Tennessee Bureau of Investigation found no Tennessee criminal history based on the information provided. No criminal
record check was conducted for other states or for the Federal Bureau of Investigation.

Tennessee Open Records Information Services
Tennessee Bureau of Investigation

901 R.S. Gass Blvd.

Nashville, TN 37216

INTERNATIONALLY ACCREDITED SINCE 1994

274



